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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.    Yes  ¨    No  x

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the Registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.  x

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange
Act Rule 12b-2).

Large accelerated filer  x            Accelerated filer  ¨            Non-accelerated filer  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

On March 3, 2007, the Registrant had 153,810,297 common shares outstanding. The aggregate market value (based on the closing price of the
Registrant�s common shares for stocks quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market) of the Registrant�s common shares owned by non-affiliates
(which are assumed, solely for the purpose of this calculation, to be stockholders other than (i) directors and executive officers of the Registrant
and (ii) any person known by the Registrant to beneficially own five percent or more of the Registrant�s common shares), as of July 29, 2006, the
last business day of the Registrant�s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, was approximately $8.4 billion.

Documents Incorporated By Reference

Part III of this Form 10-K incorporates by reference certain information from the Registrant�s definitive proxy statement relating to its Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 4, 2007 (the �2007 Proxy Statement�), which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year to which this Form 10-K relates.
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PART I

Item 1. Business
General

Sears Holdings Corporation (�Holdings� or the �Company�) is the parent company of Kmart Holding Corporation (�Kmart�) and Sears, Roebuck and
Co. (�Sears�). Holdings was formed as a Delaware corporation in 2004 in connection with the merger of Kmart and Sears (the �Merger�). The
Merger, completed on March 24, 2005, combined two of America�s oldest existing retail entities, both with origins dating to the late 1800s. The
Company is a broadline retailer with approximately 2,300 full-line and 1,100 specialty retail stores in the United States operating through Kmart
and Sears and approximately 370 full-line and specialty retail stores in Canada operating through Sears Canada Inc. (�Sears Canada�), a
70%-owned subsidiary.

Business Segments

During fiscal 2006, the Company operated three reportable segments: Kmart, Sears Domestic and Sears Canada. Financial information,
including revenues, operating income and total assets for each of these business segments is contained in Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Information regarding the components of revenue for Holdings is included in Item 7, �Management�s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.�

Kmart

As of February 3, 2007, Holdings operated a total of 1,388 Kmart stores across 49 states, Guam, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands. This
store count included 1,333 discount stores, averaging 93,000 square feet, and 55 Super Centers, averaging 165,000 square feet. Most Kmart
stores are one-floor, free-standing units that carry a wide assortment of general merchandise, including products sold under such well-known
labels as Jaclyn Smith, Joe Boxer and Martha Stewart Everyday. During fiscal 2005, the Company began selling certain proprietary Sears brand
products, such as Kenmore, Craftsman, and DieHard products, and services within certain Kmart stores. At the end of fiscal 2005, approximately
100 Kmart stores were selling an assortment of Sears brand products, mainly within home appliances and tools. During the fall of fiscal 2006,
the Company added Craftsman tool assortments into Kmart locations nationwide. In addition, as of February 3, 2007, approximately 180 Kmart
stores were also selling an assortment of major home appliances, including Kenmore-branded products. Approximately 1,100 Kmart stores also
operate in-store pharmacies. The Super Centers generally operate 24-hours a day and combine a full-service grocery along with the general
merchandise selection of a discount store. Kmart also sells its products through its kmart.com website.

Sears Domestic

As of February 3, 2007, Sears Domestic operations consisted of the following:

� Full-line Stores�935 broadline stores of which 861 are full-line stores located across all 50 states and Puerto Rico, primarily
mall-based locations averaging 134,000 square feet. Full-line stores offer a wide array of products across many merchandise
categories, including home appliances, consumer electronics, tools, fitness and lawn and garden equipment, certain automotive
services and products, such as tires and batteries, home fashion products, as well as apparel, footwear and accessories for the whole
family, including the Company�s proprietary Lands� End brand merchandise. Also, as of February 3, 2007, the Company operated 74
Sears Essentials/Grand stores located in 25 states, primarily free-standing units averaging 113,000 square feet and offering health and
beauty products, pantry goods, household products and toys in addition to the offerings of the typical mall-based store. Sears also
extends the availability of its product selection through the use of its sears.com website, which offers an assortment of home, apparel
and accessory merchandise and provides customers the option of buying through the Internet and picking up their merchandise in
Sears full-line stores.
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� Specialty Stores�1,095 specialty stores located across all 50 states and Puerto Rico, located primarily in free-standing, off-mall
locations or high-traffic neighborhood shopping centers, and including the operations of:

� 817 Dealer Stores�Primarily independently-owned stores, predominantly located in smaller communities and averaging 8,900
square feet offering appliances, consumer electronics, lawn and garden equipment, hardware and automotive batteries. Dealer
stores carry proprietary Sears brands, such as Kenmore, Craftsman, and DieHard, as well as a wide assortment of national
brands.

� 111 Sears Hardware Stores and 85 Orchard Supply Hardware Stores�Neighborhood hardware stores averaging 40,000 square
feet that carry Craftsman brand tools and lawn and garden equipment, a wide assortment of national brands and other home
improvement products. Approximately 100 locations also offer a limited selection of home appliances.

� 16 The Great Indoors Stores�Home decorating and remodeling superstores, averaging 143,000 square feet, dedicated to the
four main rooms of the house: kitchen, bedroom, bathroom and great room.

� 47 Outlet Stores�Locations offering overstock and/or distressed appliances, consumer electronics and lawn and garden
equipment at a discount.

� Commercial Sales�This business primarily sells appliances to home builders, remodelers and property managers.

� Direct to Customer�The Direct to Customer business includes the direct merchant business of Lands� End, Inc. (�Lands� End�). Lands�
End is a leading direct merchant of traditionally-styled casual clothing, accessories and footwear for men, women and children, as
well as home products and soft luggage. These products are offered through multiple selling channels including Landsend.com, one
of the leading apparel websites, as well as catalog mailings, international businesses and 15 Lands� End retail stores. These retail
stores, averaging 8,500 square feet, offer Lands� End merchandise primarily from catalog and Internet channel overstocks.

� Home Services�Product Repair Services, the nation�s largest product repair service provider, is a key element in the Company�s active
relationship with more than 46 million households. With over 10,000 service technicians making over 13 million service calls
annually, this business delivers a broad range of retail-related residential and commercial services across all 50 states and Puerto
Rico under the Sears Parts & Repair Services and A&E Factory Service brand names. Commercial and residential customers can
obtain parts and repair services for all major brands of products within the home appliances, lawn and garden equipment, consumer
electronics, floor care products, and heating and cooling systems categories. Smaller items for repair can be brought into Sears
Parts & Repair Centers located throughout the United States or to any Sears full-line store. This business also offers protection
agreements, product installation services and Kenmore and Carrier brand residential heating and cooling systems. Home Services
also includes home improvement services (primarily siding, windows, cabinet refacing, kitchen remodeling, HVAC and carpet
cleaning) provided through Sears Home Improvement Services.

Sears Canada

Sears Canada, a consolidated, 70% -owned subsidiary of Sears, conducts retail operations in Canada similar to those conducted by Sears
Domestic, with a greater emphasis on apparel and other softlines than in the U.S. stores. In addition, Sears Canada conducted credit operations
prior to the November 15, 2005 sale of its Credit and Financial Services operations to JPMorgan Chase & Co. (�JPMorgan Chase�).

As of February 3, 2007, Sears Canada operated a total of 123 full-line stores, 250 specialty stores (48 furniture and appliance stores, 158 dealer
stores operated under independent local ownership, 5 appliances and
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mattresses stores, 28 Corbeil stores and 11 outlet stores), 50 floor covering stores, approximately 1,900 catalog pick-up locations and 100 travel
offices. Sears Canada also conducts business over the Internet through its website, sears.ca.

The Merger and Development of the Business

The Merger has provided Holdings a means for leveraging the historical strengths of Kmart and Sears with the goal of making the Company�s
products, brands and service offerings available through more locations and customer distribution channels. Furthermore, Holdings is striving to
become more responsive to the needs of customers, thereby building long-term, value-added customer relationships.

Sears has a long-standing reputation for offering customers a wide variety of merchandise and related services, with a particular emphasis on its
strong proprietary brands such as Kenmore, Craftsman, DieHard and Lands� End. Historically, Sears conducted its business primarily using a
mall-based format. At the time of the Merger, Sears operated 874 domestic full-line stores mainly located in such on-mall locations. In response
to off-mall competitor growth, Sears commenced a strategy prior to the Merger to increase the number of its off-mall stores in order to expand
distribution points for its brands, merchandise and services. Kmart, on the other hand, historically used large format, off-mall locations in selling
a selection of general merchandise goods. At the time of the Merger, Kmart operated approximately 1,400 off-mall stores and sought to further
improve its operational performance by pursuing opportunities to offer customers a differentiated high-quality product selection to distinguish
itself from competitors.

With Kmart�s approximately 1,400 off-mall locations, Holdings� store base offers a greater number of customers the opportunity to purchase
Sears products and services outside of Sears� traditional mall-based stores. This increase in distribution points brought about by the Merger
provided a more rapid and lower-cost store base growth than Sears would have been able to accomplish on its own. At the same time, the
addition of Sears-owned brands and services, including Sears� credit products, to Kmart stores enhances the selection and value proposition
offered to Kmart customers and helps to differentiate Kmart from its general merchandise competitors. During the fall of fiscal 2006, the
Company added Craftsman brand tool assortments into Kmart locations nationwide. In addition, as of February 3, 2007, approximately 180
Kmart stores were also selling an assortment of major home appliances, including Kenmore-branded products. The Company will continue to
explore opportunities to profitably cross-merchandise products and services between its Kmart and Sears formats.

The Company�s combined store base of approximately 2,300 full-line stores allows Holdings to compete on a scale larger than that of many of its
national competitors. The scale of the combined enterprise has also generated significant opportunities for realizing cost synergies across a
number of areas, including merchandise and non-merchandise purchasing, delivery and distribution and within other selling, general and
administrative expense areas. While the Company will continue to operate both the Sears and Kmart store formats in the foreseeable future,
many of the functions supporting these formats have been integrated.

For accounting purposes, the Merger was treated as a purchase business combination, with Kmart acquiring Sears. In identifying Kmart as the
acquiring entity, the companies took into account the relative share ownership of the Company after the Merger, the composition of the
governing body of the combined entity and the designation of certain senior management positions. Accordingly, the historical financial
statements of Kmart serve as the historical financial statements of Holdings, the registrant.

In connection with the Merger, Kmart shareholders received one share of Holdings common stock for each Kmart share owned. In all,
approximately 94.9 million shares of Holdings common stock were issued in exchange for all outstanding common stock of Kmart. Sears
shareholders were issued an aggregate of 62.2 million shares of Holdings common stock at a total value of approximately $6.5 billion (based on
the average closing price of $104.33 of Kmart�s common stock during the period from November 15, 2004 through
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November 19, 2004, two business days before and after the date the Merger was announced). In addition, approximately $5.4 billion in cash was
paid in consideration for (i) all outstanding shares of common stock of Sears, based upon the proration provisions of the agreement pursuant to
which the Merger was effected, and (ii) all outstanding stock options of Sears. Including transaction costs of approximately $18 million, the total
consideration paid was approximately $11.9 billion.

Additional information concerning the Merger is contained in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Bankruptcy of Kmart Corporation

Kmart Corporation (the �Predecessor Company�) is a predecessor operating company of Kmart (the �Successor Company�). In January 2002, the
Predecessor Company and 37 of its U.S. subsidiaries (collectively, the �Debtors�) filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of
the federal bankruptcy laws (�Chapter 11�). The Debtors decided to seek bankruptcy reorganization based upon a rapid decline in their liquidity
resulting from below-plan sales and earnings performance in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, the evaporation of the surety bond market, an
erosion of supplier confidence, intense competition and unsuccessful sales and marketing initiatives, as well as the continued recession and
capital market volatility in existence at that time. The Predecessor Company utilized Chapter 11 to strengthen its balance sheet and reduce debt,
focus its store portfolio on the most productive locations and terminate leases for closed stores, develop a more efficient organization and lower
overall operating costs.

On May 6, 2003 (the �Effective Date�), the Predecessor Company emerged from reorganization proceedings under Chapter 11 pursuant to the
terms of an Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization (the �Plan of Reorganization�) and related amended Disclosure Statement. This Plan received
formal endorsement of the statutory creditors� committee and, as modified, was confirmed by the U.S. Bankruptcy Court in April 2003. The
Predecessor Company is presently an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Holdings.

Sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Services Business

On November 15, 2005, Sears Canada completed the sale of substantially all of the assets and liabilities of its Credit and Financial Services
operations to JPMorgan Chase for approximately $2.0 billion in cash proceeds, net of securitized receivables and other related costs and taxes. In
addition, Sears Canada and JPMorgan Chase concurrently entered into a long-term marketing and servicing alliance with an initial term of ten
years. Sears Canada used a portion of the proceeds it generated from the sale to fund an extraordinary cash dividend and a tax-free return of
stated capital to shareholders of record on December 16, 2005. Holdings, as beneficial owner of approximately 54% of the outstanding common
stock of Sears Canada at the time of the distribution, received $877 million in after-tax proceeds from this distribution. Additional information
concerning the sale is contained in Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Acquisition of Minority Interest in Sears Canada

In December 2005, Holdings announced its intention to acquire 100% ownership of Sears Canada in order to allow Sears Canada to be in a
better competitive position relative to other Canadian retailers and the Canadian operations of major U.S. retailers. During fiscal 2006, the
Company increased its majority interest in Sears Canada from 54% to 70% by acquiring 17.8 million common shares of Sears Canada pursuant
to the takeover bid. The Company paid a total of $282 million for the additional 17.8 million common shares acquired and has accounted for the
acquisition of additional interests in Sears Canada as a purchase business combination for accounting purposes. The takeover bid expired on
November 27, 2006.

Real Estate Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Company considers opportunities to purchase leased operating properties, as well as offers to sell owned,
or assign leased, operating and non-operating properties. These
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transactions may, individually or in the aggregate, result in material proceeds or outlays of cash. In addition, the Company reviews leases that
will expire in the short term in order to determine the appropriate action to take with respect to them.

Further information concerning the Company�s real estate transactions is contained in Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Trademarks, Trade Names and Licenses

The �KMART®� and �SEARS®� trade names, service marks and trademarks, used by the Company both in the United States and internationally, are
material to the Company�s retail and other related businesses.

The Company sells proprietary branded merchandise under a number of brand names that are important to its operations. The Company�s
KENMORE®, CRAFTSMAN®, DIEHARD® and LANDS� END® brands are among the most recognized proprietary brands in retailing. These
marks are the subject of numerous United States and foreign trademark registrations. Other well recognized Company trademarks and service
marks include THE GREAT INDOORS®, OSH®, CANYON RIVER BLUES®, COVINGTON®, and ATHLETECH®. The Company also has
the right to sell an exclusive line of Martha Stewart Everyday® products in its Kmart locations over the next three years, as well as within Sears
Canada stores through August 2008. The Company�s right to use its trade names and marks continues so long as it uses them.

Seasonality

The retail business is seasonal in nature, and the Company generates a high proportion of its revenues and operating cash flows during the fourth
quarter of its fiscal year, which includes the holiday season. As a result, the Company�s overall profitability is heavily impacted by its fourth
quarter operating results. Additionally, in preparation for the fourth quarter holiday season, the Company significantly increases its merchandise
inventory levels, which have traditionally been financed from operating cash flows and credit terms received from vendors. Fourth quarter
reported revenues accounted for 31% of total reported revenues in fiscal 2006.

Competition

The Company�s business is subject to highly competitive conditions. The Company competes with a wide variety of retailers including other
department stores, discounters, home improvement stores, consumer electronics dealers and auto service providers, specialty retailers, wholesale
clubs and many other competitors operating on a national, regional or local level along with Internet and catalog businesses, which handle
similar lines of merchandise. Wal-Mart, Target, Kohl�s, JC Penney, Home Depot, Lowe�s and Best Buy are some of the national competitors with
which the Company competes. Home Depot, Lowe�s and Best Buy are major competitors in relation to the Company�s home appliance business,
which accounted for approximately 15% of the Company�s fiscal 2006 reported revenues. Sears Canada competes in Canada with Hudson�s Bay
Company and U.S.-based competitors, including those mentioned above, that are expanding into Canada. Success in this competitive
marketplace is based on factors such as price, product assortment and quality, service and convenience, including availability of retail-related
services such as access to credit, product delivery, repair and installation.

Employees

As of February 3, 2007, the Company had approximately 315,000 employees in the United States and U.S. territories, and approximately 37,000
employees in Canada through Sears Canada including, in each case, part-time employees.

Our Website; Availability of SEC Reports and Other Information

The Company�s corporate website is located at searsholdings.com. The Company�s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to these
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reports are available, free of charge, through the SEC filings portion of the Investor Information section of the Company�s website as soon as
reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Corporate Governance Guidelines of the Company�s Board of Directors, the charters of the Audit, Compensation, Finance and Nominating
and Governance Committees of the Board of Directors, the Company�s Code of Conduct and the Board of Directors Code of Conduct are
available on the Corporate Governance section of searsholdings.com. References to the Company�s website address do not constitute
incorporation by reference of the information contained on the website, and the information contained on the website is not part of this
document.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
References to �us�, �we� and �our� refer to the Company. The following risk factors could adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently
known to us may also negatively impact us.

If we fail to offer merchandise and services that our customers want, our sales may be limited, which would reduce our revenues and
profits.

In order for our business to be successful, we must identify, obtain supplies of, and offer to our customers attractive, innovative and high-quality
merchandise on a continuous basis. Our products and services must satisfy the desires of our customers, whose preferences may change in the
future. If we misjudge either the demand for products and services we sell or our customers� purchasing habits and tastes, we may be faced with
excess inventories of some products and missed opportunities for products and services we chose not to offer. In addition, our sales may decline
or we may be required to sell the merchandise we have obtained at lower prices. This would have a negative effect on our business and results of
operations.

If we do not successfully manage our inventory levels, our operating results will be adversely affected.

We must maintain sufficient inventory levels to operate our business successfully. However, we also must guard against accumulating excess
inventory as we seek to minimize out-of-stock levels across all product categories and to maintain in-stock levels. We obtain a significant
portion of our inventory from vendors located outside the United States. These vendors often require lengthy advance notice of our requirements
in order to be able to supply products in the quantities we request. This usually requires us to order merchandise, and enter into purchase order
contracts for the purchase and manufacture of such merchandise, well in advance of the time these products will be offered for sale. As a result,
we may experience difficulty in responding to a changing retail environment, which makes us vulnerable to changes in price. If we do not
accurately anticipate the future demand for a particular product or the time it will take to obtain new inventory, our inventory levels will not be
appropriate and our results of operations may be negatively impacted.

If we are unable to compete effectively in the highly competitive retail industry, our business and results of operations could be
materially adversely affected.

The retail industry is highly competitive with few barriers to entry. We compete with a wide variety of retailers including other department
stores, discounters, home improvement stores, consumer electronics dealers and auto service providers, specialty retailers, wholesale clubs and
many other competitors operating on a national, regional or local level. Some of our competitors are actively engaged in new store expansion.
Internet and catalog businesses, which handle similar lines of merchandise, also compete with us. In this competitive marketplace, success is
based on factors such as price, product assortment and quality, service and convenience.
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Our success depends on our ability to differentiate ourselves from our competitors with respect to shopping convenience, a quality assortment of
available merchandise and superior customer service. We must also successfully respond to our customers� changing tastes. The performance of
our competitors, as well as changes in their pricing policies, marketing activities, new store openings and other business strategies, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Due to the seasonality of our business, our annual operating results would be adversely affected if our fourth quarter results fail to meet
our expectations.

Our business is seasonal, with a high proportion of revenues and operating cash flows being generated during the fourth quarter of our fiscal
year, which includes the holiday season. As a result, our fourth quarter operating results significantly impact our annual operating results. Our
fourth quarter operating results may fluctuate significantly, based on many factors, including holiday spending patterns and weather conditions.

Our comparable store sales may fluctuate for a variety of reasons, which could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our business is sensitive to customers� spending patterns, which in turn are subject to prevailing economic conditions. Our comparable store sales
and results of operations have fluctuated in the past, and we expect them to continue to fluctuate in the future. A variety of other factors affect
our comparable store sales and financial performance, including:

� actions by our competitors, including opening of new stores in our existing markets or changes to the way these competitors go to
market on line,

� seasonal fluctuations due to weather conditions,

� changes in our merchandise strategy and mix,

� changes in population and other demographics, and

� timing of our promotional events.
Accordingly, our results for any one fiscal quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any other quarter, and
comparable store sales for any particular future period may decrease. For more information on our results of operations, see �Management�s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� in Item 7 of this Form 10-K.

We rely on foreign sources for significant amounts of our merchandise, and our business may therefore be negatively affected by the
risks associated with international trade.

We depend on a large number of products produced in foreign markets. We face risks associated with the delivery of merchandise originating
outside the United States, including:

� potential economic and political instability in countries where our suppliers are located,

� increases in shipping costs,

� transportation delays and interruptions,
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� adverse fluctuations in currency exchange rates, and

� changes in U.S. and foreign laws affecting the importation and taxation of goods, including duties, tariffs and quotas, or changes in
the enforcement of those laws.

A decline in general economic conditions, consumer-spending levels and other conditions could lead to reduced consumer demand for
our merchandise thereby reducing our revenues and gross margins.

Many economic and other factors outside our control, including consumer confidence, consumer spending levels, employment levels, prevailing
interest rates, housing sales and remodels and consumer debt levels, as well
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as fuel costs and the availability of consumer credit, affect consumer-spending habits. In addition, disposable income levels may influence
consumer-purchasing patterns. A general slowdown in the United States economy or an uncertain economic outlook could adversely affect
consumer spending habits and our operating results.

The domestic and international political situation also affects consumer confidence. The threat, outbreak or escalation of terrorism, military
conflicts or other hostilities could lead to a decrease in consumer spending. Any of these events and factors could cause us to increase inventory
markdowns and promotional expenses, thereby reducing our gross margins and operating results.

We rely extensively on computer systems to process transactions, summarize results and manage our business. Disruptions in these
systems could harm our ability to run our business.

Given the number of individual transactions we have each year, it is critical that we maintain uninterrupted operation of our computer and
communications hardware and software systems. Our systems are subject to damage or interruption from power outages, computer and
telecommunications failures, computer viruses, security breaches, catastrophic events such as fires, tornadoes and hurricanes, and usage errors
by our employees. If our systems are damaged or cease to function properly, we may have to make a significant investment to fix or replace
them, and we may suffer interruptions in our operations in the interim. Any material interruption in our computer operations may have a material
adverse effect on our business or results of operations. In addition, we are pursuing complex initiatives to transform our information technology
processes and systems, which will include, for many systems, establishing a common platform across our lines of business, such as common
human resources, supply chain and financial systems. The risk of disruption is increased in periods where such complex and significant systems
changes are undertaken. Also, if we fail to successfully combine our systems, we may fail to realize cost savings anticipated to be derived from
these initiatives.

The loss of key personnel may disrupt our business and adversely affect our financial results.

We depend on the contributions of key personnel, including Edward S. Lampert (chairman), Aylwin B. Lewis (Chief Executive Officer and
President) and other key employees, for our future success. Although certain executives, including Mr. Lewis, have employment agreements
with us, changes in our senior management and any future departures of key employees may disrupt our business and materially adversely affect
our results of operations.

Affiliates of our Chairman, whose interests may be different than your interests, exert substantial influence over our Company.

Affiliates of Edward S. Lampert, the Chairman of our Board of Directors, beneficially own 42.5% of the outstanding shares of our common
stock. These affiliates are controlled, directly or indirectly, by Mr. Lampert. Accordingly, these affiliates, and thus Mr. Lampert, have substantial
influence over many if not all actions to be taken or approved by our stockholders, including the election of directors and any transactions
involving a change of control.

The interests of these affiliates, which have investments in other companies, may from time to time diverge from the interests of our other
stockholders, particularly with regard to new investment opportunities. This substantial influence may have the effect of discouraging offers to
acquire our Company because the consummation of any such acquisition would likely require the consent of these affiliates.

We may be subject to product liability claims if people or property are harmed by the products we sell or the services we offer.

Some of the products we sell may expose us to product liability claims relating to personal injury, death, or property damage caused by such
products, and may require us to take actions such as product recalls. We also
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provide various services which could also give rise to such claims. Although we maintain liability insurance, we cannot be certain that our
coverage will be adequate for liabilities actually incurred or that insurance will continue to be available to us on economically reasonable terms,
or at all.

We may be subject to periodic litigation and other regulatory proceedings. These proceedings may be affected by changes in laws and
government regulations or changes in the enforcement thereof.

From time to time, we may be involved in lawsuits and regulatory actions relating to our business, certain of which may be in jurisdictions with
reputations for aggressive application of laws and procedures against corporate defendants. Due to the inherent uncertainties of litigation and
regulatory proceedings, we cannot accurately predict the ultimate outcome of any such proceedings. An unfavorable outcome could have a
material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, regardless of the outcome of any litigation or
regulatory proceedings, these proceedings could result in substantial costs and may require that we devote substantial resources to defend our
Company. Further, changes in governmental regulations both in the United States and in the other countries where we operate could have
adverse effects on our business and subject us to additional regulatory actions. For a description of current legal proceedings, see Item 3, �Legal
Proceedings� in this Form 10-K.

The Company�s failure to successfully invest available surplus cash could negatively affect the Company�s performance

The Company�s performance with respect to the investment of surplus cash is substantially dependent on the performance of Edward S. Lampert,
to whom the Company�s Board of Directors has delegated authority to direct such investments, subject to certain limitations.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in its efforts to identify investment opportunities that meet its requirements. Any
such investments may include significant and highly concentrated direct investments, related derivative positions, or both, with respect to the
equity securities of public companies. In addition, any such investments will involve risks, and Holdings� balance sheet and results of operations
may fluctuate, depending on the extent of excess funds and the timing, magnitude and performance of the Company�s investments. Furthermore,
such investments would be subject to volatility due to market conditions and other conditions over which the Company may not have control,
which may affect both the recorded value of the investments as well as the Company�s periodic earnings. Accordingly, the poor performance by a
significant investment of the Company could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations and financial condition of the Company.

Specifically, at February 3, 2007, the Company had total return swaps outstanding with an aggregate notional amount of $375 million. See Part
II, Item 7. �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Investment of Available Capital.� These
investments are highly concentrated and involve substantial risks. A significant decline in the value of these investments could have a material
adverse effect on the Company�s quarterly and annual results of operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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Item 2. Properties
The following table summarizes the locations of the Company�s Kmart and Sears Domestic stores as of February 3, 2007:

Kmart Sears Domestic

State/Territory
Discount

Stores
Super

Centers
Full-line

Mall Stores

Sears
Essentials/

Grands
Specialty

Stores
Alabama 26 �  13 3 32
Alaska �  �  3 �  3
Arizona 18 2 14 1 12
Arkansas 6 �  7 �  31
California 104 1 81 10 132
Colorado 16 4 13 2 18
Connecticut 7 �  8 1 8
Delaware 6 �  4 �  5
Florida 98 �  55 10 24
Georgia 38 1 22 �  39
Hawaii 7 �  6 �  1
Idaho 8 �  6 �  7
Illinois 59 4 38 7 47
Indiana 37 5 21 2 33
Iowa 24 �  12 �  13
Kansas 11 �  9 2 20
Kentucky 30 �  11 1 22
Louisiana 11 �  13 �  18
Maine 6 �  6 �  10
Maryland 22 �  19 2 10
Massachusetts 18 �  21 1 8
Michigan 78 7 27 3 31
Minnesota 32 �  12 �  35
Mississippi 7 �  9 �  19
Missouri 25 �  13 4 41
Montana 10 �  3 �  7
Nebraska 8 �  5 �  10
Nevada 9 2 4 1 6
New Hampshire 6 �  6 3 8
New Jersey 37 �  20 5 17
New Mexico 15 �  7 �  8
New York 58 1 46 �  29
North Carolina 43 4 27 �  35
North Dakota 7 �  4 �  4
Ohio 71 11 42 2 49
Oklahoma 9 �  11 �  19
Oregon 14 �  9 �  20
Pennsylvania 99 2 45 2 34
Rhode Island 1 �  2 �  2
South Carolina 27 1 14 2 17
South Dakota 9 �  2 �  6
Tennessee 33 3 24 1 25
Texas 19 1 60 1 80
Utah 16 �  5 3 5
Vermont 3 �  2 �  8
Virginia 40 4 23 1 20
Washington 20 �  23 �  14
West Virginia 16 1 8 �  8
Wisconsin 33 �  15 4 34
Wyoming 9 �  2 �  6
Puerto Rico 22 1 9 �  5
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U.S. Virgin Islands 4 �  �  �  �  
Guam 1 �  �  �  �  

Totals 1,333 55 861 74 1,095
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Kmart Sears Domestic Sears Canada

Discount
Stores

Super
Centers

Full-line
Mall Stores

Sears
Essentials/

Grands
Specialty

Stores
Full-line
Stores

Specialty
Stores Total

Owned 139 34 518 20 55 17 2 785
Leased 1,194 21 343 54 224 106 90 2,032
Independently-owned and operated stores �  �  �  �  816 �  158 974

Stores as of February 3, 2007 1,333 55 861 74 1,095 123 250 3,791

In addition, as of February 3, 2007, the Company had 43 domestic supply chain distribution centers, of which 15 are owned and 28 are leased for
terms ranging from one to 15 years. Of the total, 15 primarily support Kmart locations and the remaining 28 primarily support Sears stores. In
addition, the Company had 614 domestic store warehouses, customer call centers and service facilities, most of which are leased for terms
ranging generally from one to 10 years or are part of other facilities included in the above table.

The Company�s principal executive offices are located on a 200-acre site owned by the Company at the Prairie Stone office park in Hoffman
Estates, Illinois. The complex consists of six interconnected office buildings totaling approximately two million gross square feet of office space.

In December 2005, the Company sold the former Kmart headquarters building in Troy, Michigan. The Company still owns an 86,000 square
foot office building in Troy, Michigan.

As of February 3, 2007, Sears Canada operated a total of 123 full-line stores, 250 specialty stores (48 furniture and appliance stores, 158 dealer
stores operated under independent local ownership, 5 appliances and mattresses stores, 28 Corbeil stores and 11 outlet stores), 50 floor covering
stores, approximately 1,900 catalog pick-up locations and 100 travel offices.

A description of the Company�s leasing arrangements appears in Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
See Part II, Item 8, �Financial Statements and Supplementary Data���Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�, Note 13��Bankruptcy Claims
Resolution and Settlements, and Note 20��Legal Proceedings�, for information regarding legal proceedings, which information is incorporated
herein by this reference.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table and information sets forth the names of the executive officers of the Company, their current positions and offices with the
Company, the date they first became executive officers of the Company, their current ages, and their principal employment during the past five
years.

Name Position

Date First
Became

an
Executive

Officer Age
Aylwin B. Lewis Chief Executive Officer and President 2005* 52
Karen A. Austin Executive Vice President, Chief Information Officer 2005* 45
William C. Crowley Executive Vice President, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 2005* 49
Mark C. Good Executive Vice President and General Manager, Home Services 2005* 50
William R. Harker Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary 2006 34
W. Bruce Johnson Executive Vice President, Supply Chain and Operations 2005* 55
Robert D. Luse Senior Vice President, Human Resources 2005* 44
Maureen A. McGuire Executive Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer 2005 55
William K. Phelan Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer 2005* 44
Allen R. Ravas Senior Vice President, Finance and Treasurer 2006 51
John C. Walden Executive Vice President, Chief Customer Officer 2007 47
Peter J. Whitsett Senior Vice President, Merchandising 2005 41
Corwin M. Yulinsky Executive Vice President, Strategy and Customer Insight 2005 52

* Became an executive officer of Holdings upon the completion of the Merger on March 24, 2005.
Mr. Lewis became Chief Executive Officer and President in September 2005, after serving as the Chief Executive Officer and President of
Kmart and Sears Retail as well as President of Holdings from March 2005 until September 2005. He was previously a director and the Chief
Executive Officer and President of Kmart from October 2004 to March 2005. Prior to joining Kmart in October 2004, Mr. Lewis was President,
Chief Multi-Branding and Operating Officer of YUM! Brands, Inc. (franchisor and licensor of quick-service restaurants) from 2000 until
October 2004.

Ms. Austin became Executive Vice President, Chief Information Officer in February 2006 and was Senior Vice President and Chief Information
Officer prior thereto. She was Senior Vice President, Chief Information Officer of Kmart from April 2002 to March 2005. She previously served
as its Vice President, IT Applications from 2001 to 2002.

Mr. Crowley has served as an Executive Vice President of the Company since March 2005, as its Chief Administrative Officer since September
2005 and as its Chief Financial Officer since January 2007. He also served as the Company�s Chief Financial Officer from March 2005 to
September 2006. Mr. Crowley has served as Chairman of the Board of Sears Canada since December 2006 and as a director of Sears Canada
since March 2005. Prior to the Merger, Mr. Crowley served as Senior Vice President, Finance of Kmart, and had served as an officer of Kmart
since 2003. Mr. Crowley is also the President and Chief Operating Officer of ESL Investments, Inc., a private investment firm, and has served in
that capacity since 1999.

Mr. Good was previously Executive Vice President and General Manager, Home Services (formerly Product Repair Services) of Sears from
August 1999 to March 2005, when he assumed the same role with Holdings.

Mr. Harker joined the Company as Vice President and Chief Counsel in September 2005. He became Vice President, Acting General Counsel
and Corporate Secretary in January 2006. In April 2006, Mr. Harker was elected Senior Vice President, Acting General Counsel and Corporate
Secretary, and in December 2006, Mr. Harker was elected Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary. Prior to joining
Holdings, he practiced corporate law with the law firm of Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen and Katz from September 2000 to August 2005.
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Mr. Johnson was previously Kmart�s Senior Vice President, Supply Chain and Operations. He joined Kmart in October 2003, after serving as
Director, Organization and Systems for Carrefour S.A. from March 1998 to October 2003.

Mr. Luse joined Sears as Vice President, HR Retail and Related Services in 2001.

Ms. McGuire joined the Company as Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer in October 2005. Prior to joining Holdings, she
spent over 30 years at International Business Machines Corporation, most recently as Vice President, Worldwide Strategy and Marketing, IBM
Systems and Technology Group from January 2005 to September 2005. Previously she served as IBM�s Vice President, Worldwide Marketing
and Strategy, IBM Global Services from August 2003 to January 2005 and Vice President, Worldwide Market Management and Integrated
Marketing Communications from 1995 to August 2003.

Mr. Phelan was elected Vice President and Controller of Holdings effective March 2005. From December 2000 to March 2005 he served as
Assistant Controller of Sears.

Mr. Ravas was elected Senior Vice President, Finance and Treasurer of Holdings in November 2005. Mr. Ravas served as Vice President,
Merchandise Controller of Holdings from March 2005 to October 2005. He previously served in a variety of positions at Kmart, including, Vice
President Treasury, Financial Planning and Analysis from October 2004 to March 2005, Vice President, Merchandise Controller from 2002 to
September 2004 and Divisional Vice President, Merchandise Finance from 1999 to 2002.

Mr. Walden joined the Company as Executive Vice President, Chief Customer Officer in January 2007. Prior to joining Holdings, Mr. Walden
served in a variety of positions at Best Buy Co., Inc., including Executive Vice President�Customer Business Group from December 2004 to
January 2007, Executive Vice President�Human Capital and Leadership from 2002 to 2004 and President of BestBuy.com, Inc. from 1999 to
2002.

Mr. Whitsett was elected Senior Vice President, Kmart Merchandising Officer in July 2005. He joined Kmart in 1999 as Director, Merchandise
Planning & Replenishment and has served in a variety of positions, including Divisional Vice President, Merchandise Planning from 2000 to
2003, Divisional Vice President, Merchandising Consumables in 2003, Vice President/General Merchandise Manager, Drug Store and Food
from 2003 to 2004, and Vice President/General Merchandise Manager from 2004 to 2005.

Mr. Yulinsky joined the Company as Executive Vice President, Strategy and Customer Insight in October 2005. Previously, he was a leader of
the Financial Institutions and Marketing/CRM practice at McKinsey and Co., a consulting firm, from August 1999 to October 2005.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Holdings common stock is quoted on The NASDAQ Stock Market under the ticker symbol SHLD. There were approximately 21,800
stockholders of record as of March 1, 2007.

The common stock of Holdings began trading on March 28, 2005, the first trading day after the consummation of the Merger. Prior to that date,
Kmart�s common stock was quoted on The NASDAQ Stock Market, under the ticker symbol KMRT. The quarterly high and low sales prices for
Holdings� common stock are set forth below.

2006
Sears Holdings

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Common stock price
High $ 147.74 $ 167.95 $ 182.38 $ 181.67
Low 115.95 134.56 135.04 164.31

2005
Sears Holdings

First
Quarter(1)

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Common stock price
High $ 149.50 $ 163.50 $ 155.90 $ 127.66
Low 125.90 133.24 113.30 111.64

(1) During the first quarter of 2005, Kmart�s common stock traded from January 27, 2005 until March 23, 2005, during which its high price
was $133.85 and its low price was $89.37.

Neither Holdings nor Kmart paid dividends on common stock in the last two fiscal years. Holdings does not expect to pay dividends in the
foreseeable future.

From April 1, 2006 through March 27, 2007, approximately 5,700 shares of the Company�s common stock were inadvertently allocated to the
plan accounts of a total of 28 participants in two of the Company�s defined contribution savings plans. These shares may not have been registered
under the Securities Act of 1933 for sale to these plan participants. During this period, the Company�s common share price ranged from a low of
$130.65 per share (on April 3, 2006) to a high of $189.97 per share (on February 22, 2007). The Company received no proceeds from any of
these transactions.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table reflects information about securities authorized for issuance under the Company�s equity compensation plans as of
February 3, 2007.

(a) (b) (c)

Plan Category

Number of securities
to be issued upon

exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price

of
outstanding

options,
warrants and

rights

Number of securities
remaining available for

future issuance under equity
compensation plans

(excluding securities reflected
in column (a))(1)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders(2) 350,000 $ 112.90 818,407

�  �  �  
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Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders
Total 350,000 $ 112.90 818,407
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(1) Represents shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant to the Company�s 2006 Stock Plan. Excludes shares covered by a plan
award that are not delivered on an unrestricted basis (for example, because the award is forfeited, canceled, settled in cash or used to
satisfy tax withholding obligations). Awards under the 2006 Stock Plan may be restricted stock awards, a grant of shares of the Company�s
common stock in connection with an award made under a long-term incentive plan, or certain other awards.

(2) Represents (1) a grant to Aylwin B. Lewis of options to purchase 150,000 shares of Holdings common stock and (2) a grant to Alan J.
Lacy, former Vice Chairman of Sears Holdings, of options to purchase 200,000 shares of Holdings common stock. On October 18, 2004,
Kmart granted Mr. Lewis options to purchase 150,000 shares of Kmart common stock, subject to approval by Kmart�s stockholders.
Kmart�s stockholders approved the option grant on March 24, 2005, and these options were converted into options to purchase an equal
number of shares of Holdings common stock upon effectiveness of the Merger. The grant to Mr. Lacy was approved by Kmart, the sole
stockholder of Holdings on November 16, 2004, in connection with the approval of Mr. Lacy�s employment agreement pursuant to which
the options were granted.

Stock Performance Graph

Comparison of Cumulative Stockholder Return�Value of $100 Invested March 28, 2005

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to stockholders on Holdings common stock from March 28, 2005, the first day of
trading of the Company�s common stock after the Merger, through February 2, 2007, the last trading day before the end of the Company�s 2006
fiscal year, with the return on the S&P 500 Stock Index, the S&P 500 Retailing Index and the S&P 500 Department Stores Index for the same
period. The graph assumes an initial investment of $100 on March 28, 2005 in each of the Company�s common stock, the S&P 500 Stock Index,
the S&P Retailing Index and the S&P 500 Department Stores Index.

The S&P 500 Retailing Index consists of companies included in the S&P 500 Stock Index in the broadly defined retail sector, which includes
competing retailers of softlines (apparel and domestics) and hardlines (appliances, electronics and home improvement products), as well as food
and drug retailers. The S&P 500 Department Stores Index consists primarily of department stores that compete with the Company�s full-line
stores.

March 28, 2005 January 27, 2006 February 2, 2007
Sears Holdings $ 100.00 $ 93.96 $ 135.10
S&P 500 Index $ 100.00 $ 110.99 $ 127.67
S&P 500 Retailing Index $ 100.00 $ 108.74 $ 125.17
S&P Department Stores Index $ 100.00 $ 105.71 $ 152.02
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Purchase of Equity Securities

The following table provides information about shares of common stock the Company acquired during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006,
including shares assigned to the Company as part of settlement agreements resolving claims arising from the Chapter 11 reorganization of the
Predecessor Company. During the 14 weeks ended February 3, 2007, the Company repurchased 0.1 million of its common shares at a total cost
of $14 million under a common share repurchase program. The program was initially announced in 2005 with a total authorization by the
Company�s Board of Directors of up to $1.0 billion. During fiscal 2006, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional
$1.0 billion of common stock for a total authorization of $2.0 billion. As of February 3, 2007, the Company had approximately $604 million of
remaining authorization under this program.

Total
Number of

Shares
Purchased(1)

Average
Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Announced
Program

Average Price
Paid per Share for

Publicly
Announced

Program

Approximate
Dollar Value of
Shares that May

Yet Be Purchased
Under the Program

October 29, 2006 to November 25, 2006 783 $ 174.20 �  $ �  
November 26, 2006 to December 30,
2006 312 167.79 �  �  
December 31, 2006 to February 3, 2007 97,343 165.95 82,463 164.91

Total 98,438 $ 166.03 82,463 $ 164.91 $ 604,000,000

(1) Includes 6,706 shares acquired from associates to meet withholding tax requirements from the vesting of restricted stock. In addition, the
Company recognized recoveries of $2 million in the quarter ended February 3, 2007 related to vendors who had received cash payments
for pre-petition obligations (critical vendor claims) or preference payments. In conjunction with these recoveries, the Company was
assigned 9,269 shares of common stock with a weighted average price of $168.39. These shares were acquired during the quarter as
follows:

October 29, 2006 to November 25, 2006 783
November 26, 2006 to December 30, 2006 312
December 31, 2006 to February 3, 2007 14,880
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The table below summarizes the Company�s recent financial information. The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with
�Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� in Item 7 and the Company�s consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto in Item 8.

Predecessor Company
Fiscal 39 Weeks

Ended
January 28,

2004

13 Weeks
Ended

April 30,
2003

Fiscal

2002dollars in millions, except per share data 2006 2005(1) 2004
Summary of Operations
Total revenues(2) $ 53,012 $ 49,124 $ 19,843 $ 17,190 $ 6,181 $ 29,352
Domestic comparable sales % (3.7)% (5.3)% (11.0)% (9.5)% (3.2)% (10.1)%
Income (loss) from continuing operations(3) 1,490 948 1,106 234 (852) (2,771)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle, net of tax(3) �  (90) �  �  �  �  
Discontinued operations �  �  �  �  (10) (448)
Net income (loss)(3) 1,490 858 1,106 234 (862) (3,219)
Per Common Share
Basic:
Continuing income (loss) $ 9.57 $ 6.22 $ 12.39 $ 2.61 $ (1.63) $ (5.47)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle $ �  $ (0.59) $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  
Discontinued operations $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ (0.02) $ (0.89)
Net income (loss) $ 9.57 $ 5.63 $ 12.39 $ 2.61 $ (1.65) $ (6.36)
Diluted:
Continuing income (loss) $ 9.57 $ 6.17 $ 11.00 $ 2.51 $ (1.63) $ (5.47)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle $ �  $ (0.58) $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  
Discontinued operations $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ (0.02) $ (0.89)
Net income (loss) $ 9.57 $ 5.59 $ 11.00 $ 2.51 $ (1.65) $ (6.36)

Predecessor
Company

Book value per common share $ 82.65 $ 72.67 $ 50.39 $ 24.64 $ 19.45 $ (0.58)
Financial Data
Total assets $ 30,066 $ 30,573 $ 8,651 $ 6,074 $ 6,660 $ 11,238
Long-term debt(4) 2,112 2,482 91 76 59 �  
Long-term capital lease obligations 737 786 275 374 415 623
Trust convertible preferred securities �  �  �  �  �  646
Capital expenditures (Predecessor Company
for the 13 weeks ended April 30, 2003) 513 546 230 108 4 252
Number of Stores 3,791 3,843 1,480 1,511 1,513 1,829

(1) Fiscal 2005 includes the results of Sears subsequent to the Merger date. As a result, fiscal 2005 results include approximately 44 weeks of
Sears� results and 52 weeks of Kmart�s results.

(2) The Company follows a retail-based financial reporting calendar. Accordingly, the Company�s fiscal 2006 results reflect the 53-week
period ended February 3, 2007 whereas fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2002 contained 52-weeks. Fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 ended on the
Saturday closest to January 31st. Fiscal 2002, the 39 weeks ended January 28, 2004, and fiscal 2004 ended on the last Wednesday in
January. The reported results for fiscal 2003 have been divided into two parts as a result of Kmart�s emergence from Chapter 11
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bankruptcy in fiscal 2003. As further discussed in Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, due to the application of
Fresh-Start Accounting (defined in Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) upon emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy,
the reported historical financial statements of the Predecessor Company for the periods prior to May 1, 2003 generally are not comparable
to those of the Successor Company. Thus, the results of operations of the Successor Company were not combined with those of the
Predecessor Company.

(3) The periods presented were impacted by certain significant items which affected the comparability of amounts reflected in the above
selected financial data. For fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, these significant items are discussed within Item 7, �Management�s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.� In addition, the 39 weeks ended January 28, 2004, included an $89 million net
gain on sales of assets; the 13 weeks ended April 30, 2003, included $769 million in expenses incurred by the Predecessor Company as a
result of its Chapter 11 reorganization, a $47 million charge for accelerated depreciation on unimpaired assets to be disposed of following
store closings, and a $10 million credit as a result of a change in the estimated expenses for 2002 cost reduction initiatives; Fiscal 2002,
included $1,019 million for inventory write-downs in conjunction with accelerated mark-downs due to store closings, $533 million for
asset impairments, $50 million for cost reduction initiatives, and $33 million for other items.

(4) For fiscal year 2002, long-term debt does not include liabilities classified as subject to compromise.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The Company has divided its �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� (�MD&A�) into the
following seven sections:

� Overview of Holdings

� Merger and Fiscal Year

� Fiscal 2006 Initiatives and Accomplishments

� Results of Operations:
Fiscal 2006 Summary

Holdings Consolidated Results

Business Segment Results

Pro Forma Reconciliation

� Analysis of Consolidated Financial Condition

� Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

� Application of Critical Accounting Policies
Overview of Holdings

Holdings, the parent company of Kmart and Sears, was formed in connection with the March 24, 2005 Merger of these two companies. The
Company is a broadline retailer and, at the end of fiscal 2006, had approximately 2,300 full-line and 1,100 specialty retail stores in the United
States operating through Kmart and Sears and approximately 370 full-line and specialty retail stores in Canada operating through Sears Canada,
a 70%-owned subsidiary.

The Company currently conducts its operations in three business segments: Kmart, Sears Domestic and Sears Canada. Prior to the Merger, the
Company operated a single business segment, Kmart. The nature of operations conducted within each of these segments is discussed within the
�Business Segments� section of Item 1 in this Form 10-K.

Merger

The Merger was accounted for as a purchase business combination, with Kmart acquiring Sears. Accordingly, the historical financial statements
of Kmart serve as the historical financial statements of Holdings. The consolidated statements of income and cash flows for fiscal 2005 include
the results of operations of Sears subsequent to the Merger date, or from March 25, 2005 forward. Therefore, Holdings� operating results for
fiscal 2005 include approximately 44 weeks of Sears� results and 52 weeks of Kmart�s results.

Kmart shareholders received one share of Holdings common stock for each Kmart share owned. In all, approximately 94.9 million shares of
Holdings common stock were issued in exchange for all outstanding common stock of Kmart. In aggregate, approximately 62.2 million shares of
Holdings common stock were issued to Sears shareholders at a value of approximately $6.5 billion (based on the average closing price of
$104.33 of Kmart�s common stock during the period from November 15, 2004 through November 19, 2004, two business days before and after
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the date the Merger was announced). In addition, approximately $5.4 billion in cash was paid in consideration for (i) all outstanding shares of
common stock of Sears, based upon the proration provisions of the agreement pursuant to which the Merger was effected, and (ii) all outstanding
stock options of Sears. Including transaction costs of approximately $18 million, the total consideration paid for the acquisition of Sears was
approximately $11.9 billion.
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Fiscal Year

Effective March 23, 2005, the Company changed its fiscal year end from the last Wednesday in January to the Saturday closest to January 31st.
In fiscal 2006, the Saturday nearest January 31st was February 3, 2007. Therefore, fiscal 2006 consisted of 53 weeks. Both fiscal 2005 and fiscal
2004 consisted of 52 weeks. Unless otherwise stated, references to years in this report relate to fiscal years rather than to calendar years. The
following fiscal periods are presented in this report.

Fiscal year Reporting Entity Ended Weeks
2006 Sears Holdings Corporation February 3, 2007 53
2005 Sears Holdings Corporation January 28, 2006 52
2004 Kmart Holding Corporation January 26, 2005 52

Sears Canada�s fiscal year end is the Saturday closest to December 31st. The results of operations for Sears Canada are reported to Holdings on a
one-month lag. Therefore, the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 include operating results for
Sears Canada from January 1, 2006 through December 30, 2006 and March 25, 2005 through December 31, 2005, respectively.

Fiscal 2006 Initiatives and Accomplishments

While Holdings was formed as a direct result of the 2005 merger between Kmart and Sears, the Company is an entirely new organization, with
both a vision and mission that extend well beyond merely combining these two entities. Management of this new organization has developed
vision and mission statements that describe the company Holdings aspires to become. Holdings� vision statement is:

Sears Holdings is committed to improving the lives of customers by providing quality services, products and solutions that earn their
trust and build lifetime relationships.

The Company�s mission is described by the following three simple, focused principles, against which every associate in the Company is
evaluated:

1. Build customer relationships

2. Make more money

3. Improve every day
In 2006 Holdings senior management expended significant effort to disseminate Holdings� vision and mission throughout the organization in
order to align all associates, from front-line store managers and store associates serving customers directly to those associates supporting stores
in corporate and administrative functions, on common goals and culture. The Company believes that the establishment of the proper culture, a
culture where the vision and mission are shared across the entire organization, is a necessary first step for Holdings to achieve prominence in the
retail industry and become a great company.

The retail industry is highly competitive and as such Holdings faces significant challenges to achieve prominence. One significant challenge is
the fact that the sales and profit productivity of many competitor stores exceeds that of Holdings� own stores. Therefore, the Company believes
the greatest near-term value, and its greatest immediate challenge, comes from better utilizing Holdings� existing base of over 3,000 stores to
deliver greater value to customers and ultimately Holdings shareholders. The Company will strive to better leverage the significant scale it
already has, as well as the Company�s brand strength and service offerings to improve Holdings� multi-channel (store, on-line and catalog)
shopability and continue to give customers reasons to shop Holdings more frequently.

While the Company�s mission principles (build customer relationships, make more money and improve every day) are simple in concept, they
can be difficult to execute within the context of a highly competitive retail
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environment. Therefore, the Company believes that it must improve its analytical capabilities and foster a discipline of continuous learning and
fact-based decision making in order to successfully execute these principles. Accordingly, in 2006 the Company committed resources to improve
the organization�s overall analytical capabilities and implement a structured �test, learn and deploy� process to evaluate new initiatives. The
Company believes that becoming a �test and learn� organization will allow it to better understand the needs of its existing (and potential future)
customers and develop solutions to profitably meet those needs.

Specific actions taken by the Company in 2006 to build long-term customer relationships and improve the profitability and/or daily operations
include:

� completed a national roll-out of Craftsman brand tools to Kmart locations nationwide, expanding the number of outlets carrying the
Craftsman brand by approximately 1,400 stores. With this nationwide rollout to Kmart stores, the Craftsman brand is now available
at more than 3,000 locations in the United States and on sears.com;

� enhanced product development and direct sourcing capabilities, accomplished through the major expansion of a Manhattan-based
apparel design center, the purpose of which is to improve the quality, exclusivity and profitability of Holdings� apparel products. This
effort is part of a larger initiative at Holdings to create a more vertical business model, in which Holdings assumes a greater role in
the development and design (not merely the procurement) of its apparel merchandise, improving the Company�s agility so that it can
respond to and deliver merchandise that meets the needs of customers at a lower cost to the Company. Holdings� increased utilization
of direct-sourced merchandise from manufacturers has increased apparel gross margin rates, particularly at Sears Domestic, which
had historically not utilized direct-sourcing to the extent of its use at Kmart;

� improved Holdings� on-line capabilities and expertise by assembling management talent and building a team with relevant experience
and knowledge to support the Company�s e-commerce initiatives. Further, the Company invested in new technologies and
functionality for its online commercial websites, and expanded online product and service offerings. Holdings also completed the
construction of a new e-commerce development center in Chicago, Illinois during 2006 (scheduled to open in early 2007), which will
house approximately 100 highly skilled developers, technical architects and project managers focused exclusively on e-commerce.
The development center is intended to act as the catalyst for Holdings� efforts to leverage web-based technology to better connect
with Holdings� customers and attract new customers to the Company�s offerings of products and services;

� focused on improving the overall customer in-store experience through concerted efforts within various areas of store operations,
including improving effectiveness of payroll spending by scheduling store associates to better match customer traffic patterns,
reducing lead times associated with merchandise resets and the execution of promotional events/sales, as well as focusing on
improving overall store appearance and cleanliness;

� intensified efforts on improving store profitability by enhancing store-level systems and operating procedures to achieve higher
levels of compliance with corporate-wide policies/standards in areas such as sales discounts, merchandise returns and inventory
handling and control;

� improved efficiencies and cost effectiveness of the supply chain, including transportation synergies, the consolidation of fashion
distribution centers and a greater emphasis on direct import merchandise procurement;

� expanded a test program initiated last year that created a Lands� End store-within-a-store concept at certain Sears full-line store
locations. Based on positive customer response, the test program was expanded in fiscal 2006, and currently approximately 100
Sears full-line stores now feature the Lands� End store-within-a-store concept. At such locations, Sears customers find increased
square footage dedicated to Lands� End, including enhanced visual merchandising and an expanded product assortment for women,
men, kids and home, all in one location. Additionally, the concept features a
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multi-channel service area where customers can choose from the entire Lands� End assortment�either online or by phone- shopping for
products that would otherwise not be available in the store; and

� remodeled approximately 70 Kmart stores to include Sears-brand products. The Company intends to continue its roll-out of home
appliances, including Sears Kenmore brand products, into both Sears Grand and Kmart locations over the next several years as a
means of expanding its points of distribution in response to competitor store growth. As of February 3, 2007, approximately 180
Kmart stores, including certain of the remodeled locations, offered broad assortments of home appliances.

Certain of these initiatives and actions benefited the Company�s fiscal 2006 operating results, and the impact of such items is reflected in the
Company�s 2006 operating results as presented in the below �Results of Operations� section. Other initiatives represent investments management
has made with the belief that they further Holdings� pursuit of its ultimate mission: profitably building long-term relationships and gaining
prominence in the retail industry.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In the results of operations section that follows, results for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 are set forth on both a reported and pro forma basis. This
presentation reflects the fact that the reported results for Holdings prior to the March 24, 2005 Merger reflect only Kmart�s results. Accordingly,
to facilitate an understanding of the Company�s trends and on-going performance, the Company has presented pro forma results below for fiscal
2005 and fiscal 2004 in addition to the reported results for these years. The pro forma results adjust the reported amounts for these two fiscal
years to give effect to the Merger as if it had occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2004. Thus, the pro forma results include both Kmart and Sears
results for the entire fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 periods. A reconciliation of pro forma amounts to reported amounts has been included under the
heading �Pro Forma Reconciliation.�

References to comparable store sales amounts within the following discussion include sales for all stores operating for a period of at least 12 full
months, including remodeled and expanded stores, but excluding store relocations and stores that have undergone format changes. Comparable
store sales results for fiscal 2006 were calculated based on the 52-week period ended January 27, 2007 as compared to the comparable 52-week
period in the prior year.

The discussion that follows should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Item 8.
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Holdings Reported Results

Holdings� consolidated results of operations for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, presented on both a reported and a pro forma basis are summarized
below.

Reported Pro Forma
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004

Merchandise sales and services $ 53,012 $ 48,911 $ 19,843 $ 53,962 $ 55,585
Credit and financial products revenues �  213 �  299 381

Total revenues 53,012 49,124 19,843 54,261 55,966

Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 37,820 35,505 14,942 39,177 40,895
Gross margin dollars 15,192 13,406 4,901 14,785 14,690
Gross margin rate 28.7% 27.4% 24.7% 27.4% 26.4%
Selling and administrative 11,581 10,808 3,999 12,149 12,547
Selling and administrative expense as a percentage of total
revenues 21.8% 22.0% 20.2% 22.4% 22.4%
Depreciation and amortization 1,142 932 27 1,108 1,196
Gain on sales of assets (82) (39) (946) (40) (356)
Gain on sale of business �  (317) �  (317) �  
Restructuring charges 28 111 �  111 41

Total costs and expenses 50,489 47,000 18,022 52,188 54,323

Operating income 2,523 2,124 1,821 2,073 1,643
Interest and investment income (254) (127) (41) (159) (153)
Interest expense 337 323 146 378 442
Other income (24) (37) (59) (37) (67)

Income before income taxes, minority interest and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle 2,464 1,965 1,775 1,891 1,421
Income taxes 930 716 669 705 491
Minority interest 44 301 �  307 46

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 1,490 948 1,106 879 884
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax(1) �  (90) �  (90) �  

NET INCOME $ 1,490 $ 858 $ 1,106 $ 789 $ 884

Diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle $ 9.57 $ 6.17 $ 11.00 $ 5.40 $ 5.40
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle(1) �  (0.58) �  (0.55) �  

Diluted earnings per share $ 9.57 $ 5.59 $ 11.00 $ 4.85 $ 5.40

(1) Effective January 27, 2005, Kmart changed its method of accounting for certain indirect buying, warehousing and distribution costs and,
accordingly, the Company recorded the cumulative effect of this change in accounting principle in fiscal 2005. Further information
regarding this change in accounting is set forth in Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fiscal 2006 Summary

The following discussion is designed to provide the reader with an overview of fiscal 2006 financial results, with particular emphasis on
significant events and transactions that had a disproportionate effect on the Company�s results for the fiscal years presented. Further discussion
regarding the Company�s operating performance follows this overview section.
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Net Income

For fiscal 2006, net income was $1.5 billion compared with net income of $858 million (reported) and $789 million (pro forma) in fiscal 2005.
Net income for fiscal 2005 included an after-tax charge of $90 million (reported and proforma) for the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting as described above. The increase in net income for the year reflects increased operating income at both Sears Domestic and Kmart,
driven primarily by improved margin rate performance, most notably within apparel during the second half of fiscal 2006, as well as improved
expense management across all segments. The favorable impact of these items more than offset the negative impact of sales declines in fiscal
2006 relative to pro forma sales levels for fiscal 2005.

Earnings per Diluted Share and Significant Items

The table below sets forth earnings per share results for the Company�s most recent three fiscal years, reflected on both a reported and pro forma
basis for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 as explained above. Net income and earnings per diluted share results for all three fiscal years were
impacted by certain significant items. The magnitude of such items may vary significantly from period to period and, thereby, have a
disproportionate effect on earnings for any given period, affecting the comparability of the Company�s financial performance. Accordingly,
management considers the aggregate impact of these items, along with reported results, in reviewing and evaluating the Company�s financial
performance.

The impact of these items on diluted earnings per share is shown in the following table:

Reported Pro Forma
2006 2005 2004 2005 2004

Earnings per diluted share $ 9.57 $ 5.59 $ 11.00 $ 4.85 $ 5.40
Less:
Total return swap income 0.29 �  �  �  �  
Income tax settlements 0.20 �  �  �  �  
Visa/MasterCard settlement 0.14 �  �  �  �  
Legal reserve�AIG Annuity Insurance Co., et al. v. Sears Roebuck (0.29) �  �  �  �  
Gain on sale of assets 0.32 0.16 5.78 0.15 1.35
Restructuring charges (0.09) (0.35) �  (0.33) (0.16)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting �  (0.58) �  (0.55) �  

Earnings per diluted share excluding the above items $ 9.00 $ 6.36 $ 5.22 $ 5.58 $ 4.21

For fiscal 2006, net income included the following significant items: 1) pre-tax gains of $74 million ($45 million after-tax or $0.29 per diluted
share) derived from the Company�s investment of a portion of its surplus cash (see the �Interest and Investment Income� section below for further
details); 2) a tax benefit of $31 million ($0.20 per diluted share) related to the resolution of certain income tax matters; 3) a $36 million pre-tax
gain ($22 million after-tax or $0.14 per diluted share) recorded by the Company for the aggregate amount received by Holdings in June 2006 as
part of the settlement of Visa/MasterCard antitrust litigation; and, 4) a pre-tax charge of $74 million ($45 million after-tax or $0.29 per diluted
share) related to an unfavorable verdict in connection with a pre-Merger legal matter concerning Sears� redemption of certain bonds in 2004. See
Note 20 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding this matter.

All three fiscal years were impacted by gains recorded on the sale of Company assets. These pre-tax gains amounted to $82 million ($50 million
after-tax or $0.32 per diluted share) in fiscal 2006, $39 million ($25 million after-tax or $0.16 per diluted share) in fiscal 2005, and $946 million
($586 million after-tax or $5.78 per diluted share) in fiscal 2004. The fiscal 2004 gain reflects Kmart�s completion of multiple sale and lease
assignment transactions, including significant transactions with The Home Depot, Inc. (�Home Depot�) and
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Sears. The pro forma gain on sale of assets impact for fiscal 2004, $1.35 per diluted share as shown above, excludes the impact of gains
recognized in fiscal 2004 for sales of properties to Sears. Further details pertaining to these transactions are set forth in Note 15 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Additionally, all three fiscal years were impacted by restructuring charges. These pre-tax charges were $28 million ($14 million after-tax or
$0.09 per diluted share) in fiscal 2006, $111 million ($54 million after-tax or $0.35 per diluted share- reported, $53 million after-tax or $0.33 per
diluted share- pro forma) in fiscal 2005, and pro forma $41 million (pro forma $26 million after-tax or $0.16 per diluted share- pro forma) in
fiscal 2004. The charges for both fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 were recorded in connection with the Merger and integration of Sears� and Kmart�s
headquarters support functions, as well as in connection with productivity initiatives at Sears Canada. The fiscal 2004 pro forma restructuring
charges were recorded by Sears in connection with certain productivity initiatives at that entity. Further details pertaining to these restructuring
charges are set forth in Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fiscal 2005 net income was negatively impacted by an after-tax charge of $90 million ($0.58 per diluted share- reported, $0.55 per diluted share-
pro forma) for the cumulative effect of a change in accounting for certain indirect overhead costs included in inventory. Further details
pertaining to this cumulative effect charge are set forth in Note 3 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Total Revenues and Comparable Store Sales

Fiscal 2006 domestic comparable store sales were down 3.7% in the aggregate, with Sears Domestic declining 6.1% and Kmart declining 0.6%.
These declines are less than fiscal 2005 domestic comparable store sales declines of 5.3% in the aggregate, and declines of 8.4% and 1.2% at
Sears Domestic and Kmart, respectively. As was the case in fiscal 2005, the current year declines primarily reflect the impact of increased
competition and lower transaction volumes across most merchandise categories and formats. In fiscal 2006, notably larger declines within Sears
Domestic�s lawn and garden and home fashions businesses (as further discussed below in the review of Sears Domestic�s results), were partially
offset by increased apparel and pharmacy sales at Kmart, and increased women�s apparel sales at Sears Domestic. The fiscal 2006 sales increase
within women�s apparel at Sears Domestic was driven by stronger performance during the second half of the year, reflecting what the Company
believes are improved assortments in this category relative to last year. In fiscal 2005, Sears Domestic modified its apparel assortment to a more
�fashion forward� offering, which was not successful and led to significant sales declines within Sears Domestic�s apparel business during the
second half of 2005.

For the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, which includes the holiday selling season, domestic comparable store sales declined 3.1% in the aggregate,
with Sears Domestic and Kmart recording comparable store sales declines of 4.9% and 0.9%, respectively. Fourth quarter comparable sales
results largely reflect the same factors as noted above; however, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company experienced a sales
decline in its home appliances business as a result of the slower U.S. housing market and increased competition.

While the Company believes that its efforts will make its products, brands and service offerings more responsive to the needs of customers and
thereby improve the trend in domestic comparable store sales results during fiscal 2007, the benefits derived from such efforts may be mitigated
by the impact of continued market share pressure as competitors open additional locations and engage in heavy promotional activity. The
Company expects these competitive trends to continue in the foreseeable future which may negatively affect both the Company�s sales
performance and results of operations.

Total revenues for fiscal 2006 were $53.0 billion, as compared to revenues of $49.1 billion (reported) and $54.3 billion (pro forma) for fiscal
2005. The increase in fiscal 2006 revenues as compared to reported revenues in fiscal 2005 was primarily due to the inclusion of Sears for the
entire year in fiscal 2006 and, to a lesser degree, the inclusion of an additional week of sales in fiscal 2006 (comprised of 53 weeks) as compared
to fiscal 2005
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(comprised of 52 weeks). The Company recorded a total of $711 million in revenues during the 53rd week of fiscal 2006. Fiscal 2006 revenues
declined $1.3 billion, or 2.3%, to $53.0 billion, as compared to fiscal 2005 pro forma revenues of $54.3 billion. The decline primarily reflects
lower comparable store sales and the impact of Kmart store closures, partially offset by the above-noted additional week of sales recorded in the
current year, and to a lesser degree, sales increases in Sears Domestic�s home services business.

The Company aims to pursue a course of disciplined revenue growth, whereby sales growth opportunities are analyzed to ensure that they
provide sufficient possibility of improving the Company�s profitability and are consistent with the Holdings� mission of building long-term
customer relationships. As noted above, in the near term, management believes the greatest overall benefit to Holdings� profitability will not
come from increasing the Company�s store base, but rather primarily from better utilizing existing assets to deliver more value to customers.

Gross Margin Rate

Gross margin as a percentage of merchandise sales and services revenue (�gross margin rate�) was 28.7% in fiscal 2006, as compared to 27.4%
(reported and pro forma) in fiscal 2005. The overall improvement in the Company�s gross margin rates during fiscal 2006 more than offset the
unfavorable profit impact of the above-noted revenue declines. The Company remained focused on the improvement of gross margins during
fiscal 2006, and gross margin rates improved across all business segments: Kmart, Sears Domestic and Sears Canada. The overall improved
gross margin rate primarily reflects improvements realized in the Company�s apparel businesses. Sears Domestic was the largest contributor to
the overall margin rate improvement, as gross margin rates at Sears Domestic improved across most full-line store merchandise categories, with
pronounced improvements in apparel. Kmart�s margins improved, but to a lesser degree than at Sears Domestic.

The Company believes the improved gross margin rate performance of its apparel business, and within women�s apparel at Sears Domestic in
particular, reflects the impact of having better product assortments in place relative to last year. This improvement in assortments lowered
apparel markdowns during the current year relative to prior year levels. Additional markdowns were taken in the latter half of 2005 to clear
fashion apparel given poor customer response to Sears Domestic full-line store apparel offerings last year. Additionally, apparel gross margins at
both Kmart and Sears Domestic benefited from fiscal 2006 efforts to procure products at a lower cost to the Company including increased
utilization of direct-sourced merchandise, particularly at Sears Domestic, which had historically not utilized direct-sourcing to the extent of its
use at Kmart. Also, Sears Domestic�s home services and Lands� End businesses contributed to the overall improved gross margins for Holdings
during fiscal 2006. As was the case within other apparel businesses during fiscal 2006, the improvement in Lands� End�s gross margin reflects
more extensive and effective use of direct-sourced merchandise, as well as the favorable impact of pricing initiatives and stronger in-season
sales results.

Selling and Administrative Expense Rate

Selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenues (�selling and administrative expense rate�) was 21.8% in fiscal 2006, as
compared to 22.0% (reported) and 22.4% (pro forma) for fiscal 2005. The Company remained focused on disciplined spending in fiscal 2006,
and the Company�s selling and administrative expense rate improved across all segments, with the most notable improvements made at Sears
Canada. The current year rate improvement primarily reflects improved expense management, particularly within payroll and benefits. Sears
Canada�s improvement was due in part to the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Products business in late fiscal 2005, as well as
improved expense management.

Interest and Investment Income

The Company recorded interest and investment income of $254 million in fiscal 2006, as compared with $127 million (reported) and $159
million (pro forma) in fiscal 2005. The increased interest and investment
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income in fiscal 2006 was primarily due to total return swap income recognized in the current year. During fiscal 2006, the Company entered
into total return swaps and recognized $74 million of investment income, consisting of realized gains of $84 million and unrealized losses of $2
million less $8 million of interest cost. These total return swaps are derivative contracts that synthetically replicate the economic return
characteristics of one or more underlying marketable equity securities. In exchange for receiving the return tied to the position underlying a total
return swap, the Company pays a floating rate of interest tied to LIBOR on the notional amount of the contract. Changes in fair value of the total
return swaps are recognized currently in earnings.

Reduction in Debt Assumed as Part of the Merger

Debt levels were reduced by $0.4 billion in fiscal 2006. This debt was primarily Sears debt included in Holdings� consolidated balance sheet
subsequent to the Merger.

Share Repurchases

The Company repurchased approximately 6 million of its common shares in fiscal 2006 at a total cost of approximately $0.8 billion under the
Company�s $2.0 billion common share repurchase program described under the �Financing� section below.

Holdings Consolidated Results

Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005

As discussed above, the reported consolidated statement of income for fiscal 2005 includes Sears� results of operations only for the period
subsequent to the Merger, or from March 25, 2005 forward. The Company believes that presenting fiscal 2005 results on a pro forma basis,
which includes Sears� results for the entire fiscal 2005 year, is important to an understanding and assessment of the Company�s results, trends and
on-going performance. Accordingly, the Company has provided an analysis of operating results for fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005
results presented on both a reported and a pro forma basis.

Fiscal 2006 revenues were $53.0 billion as compared to $49.1 billion (reported) and $54.3 billion (pro forma) in fiscal 2005. As discussed
above, the increase in fiscal 2006 revenues, as compared to reported revenues for fiscal 2005, was primarily due to the inclusion of Sears for the
entire year in fiscal 2006 and, to a lesser degree, the inclusion of an additional week of sales in fiscal 2006. Fiscal 2006 revenues declined
$1.3 billion, or 2.3%, to $53.0 billion, as compared to fiscal 2005 pro forma revenues of $54.3 billion, as lower comparable store sales (as
discussed above) and the impact of Kmart store closures were partially offset by the above-noted additional week of sales recorded in the current
year, and to a lesser degree, sales increases in Sears Domestic�s home services business.

The gross margin rate was 28.7% in fiscal 2006, as compared to 27.4% (reported and pro forma) in fiscal 2005. Gross margin rates improved
across all business segments: Kmart, Sears Domestic and Sears Canada, with the increase primarily reflecting the above-noted improvements
being realized in the Company�s apparel businesses.

The selling and administrative expense rate was 21.8% in fiscal 2006, as compared to 22.0% (reported) and 22.4% (pro forma) for fiscal 2005.
As noted above, the current year rate improvement primarily reflects improved expense management, with the most notable improvements made
at Sears Canada due in part to the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Products business in late fiscal 2005, as well as improved expense
management.

Depreciation and amortization was $1.1 billion for fiscal 2006, as compared to $0.9 billion (reported) and $1.1 billion (pro forma) for fiscal
2005. The increased expense for fiscal 2006, as compared to the reported expense for fiscal 2005, was primarily attributable to the inclusion of
Sears for the entire year in fiscal 2006.
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Gains on sales of assets were $82 million in fiscal 2006, as compared to $39 million (reported) and $40 million (pro forma) for fiscal 2005. The
increase in fiscal 2006 was primarily attributable to a $41 million pre-tax gain recognized in 2006 in connection with the 2005 sale of the
Company�s former Kmart headquarters in Troy, Michigan.

Fiscal 2005 included a $317 million gain on sale of business, which reflected a minority interest gain on the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and
Financial Services operations in November 2005. This gain had no impact on Holdings� net income as its entire impact was offset by increased
minority interest expense. See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further detail.

Restructuring charges were $28 million and $111 million (reported and proforma) for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively. These charges
included charges of $19 million and $57 million in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively, for employee-related termination costs associated
with Sears Canada restructuring initiatives implemented during fiscal 2005, including a workforce reduction of approximately 1,200 associates,
as well as $9 million and $54 million in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively, at Kmart for relocation assistance and employee
termination-related costs associated with Holdings� home office integration efforts. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
further detail.

For fiscal 2006, interest and investment income was $254 million, as compared with $127 million (reported) and $159 million (pro forma) in
fiscal 2005. As discussed above, the increased interest and investment income in fiscal 2006 was primarily due to total return swap income
recognized in the current year.

Other income is primarily comprised of bankruptcy-related recoveries. Bankruptcy-related recoveries decreased $26 million in fiscal 2006 and
represent amounts recovered from vendors who had received cash payment for pre-petition obligations. See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further detail. The impact of lower bankruptcy-related recoveries in fiscal 2006 as compared with fiscal 2005 was
partially offset by increased income recorded relative to foreign currency forward contracts for which hedge accounting was not applied. See
Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

The effective tax rate increased to 37.7% in fiscal 2006 from 36.4% in fiscal 2005, with the increase primarily attributable to the fact that the
effective rate in fiscal 2005 benefited from the November 2005 sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Services business being taxed at a
capital gains rate, lowering the effective tax rate for fiscal 2005.

Effective January 27, 2005, the Company determined that it would be preferable to conform one of the accounting practices utilized by Kmart to
that of Sears. The Company changed its method of accounting for certain indirect overhead costs from inventoriable costs to period expenses. In
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 20, �Accounting Changes,� a change in accounting policy to conform the acquirer�s
policy to that of the acquired entity is treated as a change in accounting principle. As a result of the accounting change, the Company recorded a
charge of $90 million, net of taxes, in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 for the cumulative effect of this change in accounting principle. The charge
represents the amount of indirect costs reflected within inventory at the beginning of fiscal 2005. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further detail.

Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004

The consolidated statement of income for fiscal 2005 is not comparable to that for fiscal 2004 because fiscal 2004 does not include the results of
Sears. Additionally, Holdings� consolidated statement of income for fiscal 2005 is not representative of the Company�s on-going operations as it
only includes Sears� results of operations for the period subsequent to the Merger, or from March 25, 2005 forward. For these reasons, the
Company believes that an understanding of its reported results, trends and on-going performance is not complete without presenting results on a
pro forma basis. Accordingly, the Company has provided an analysis of operating results for fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 on both a
reported and a pro forma basis.
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Total revenues were $49.1 billion (reported) and $54.3 billion (pro forma) for fiscal 2005, as compared to total revenues of $19.8 billion
(reported) and $56.0 billion (pro forma) for fiscal 2004. The increase in reported revenues was attributable to the addition of Sears revenues of
$30.0 billion in fiscal 2005, partially offset by a decline in Kmart�s revenues of $0.7 billion, or 3.8%, due to a reduction in the total number of
Kmart stores in operation and a comparable store sales decline of 1.2% as discussed below. The decline in pro forma revenues was primarily
attributable to total revenue declines of 3.9% and 3.8% at Sears Domestic and Kmart, respectively, partially offset by a 5.3% revenue increase at
Sears Canada, primarily due to the impact of favorable exchange rates. Total fiscal 2005 revenues also benefited from $153 million of sales
being recorded during the first quarter of fiscal 2005 as a result of three additional days being included in the fiscal 2005 period due to the
Company�s change from a Wednesday to a Saturday month end.

Domestic comparable store sales were down 5.3% in the aggregate for fiscal 2005, with Sears Domestic comparable store sales declining 8.4%
and Kmart comparable store sales declining 1.2%. Kmart�s fiscal 2005 comparable store sales decline was primarily due to lower transaction
volumes across most businesses. Apparel sales at Kmart increased in fiscal 2005 on a comparable store basis, but this improvement was more
than offset by sales declines in both home goods and the food and drug business. The sharper decline in Sears Domestic�s fiscal 2005 comparable
store sales relative to Kmart was due mainly to efforts initiated at Sears in 2005 to improve gross margins by reducing reliance on certain
promotional events. Disappointing performance within Sears� apparel business during 2005 was also a factor in the decline of Sears� comparable
store sales during fiscal 2005.

Gross margin was 27.4% (reported and pro forma) for fiscal 2005, as compared to 24.7% (reported) and 26.4% (pro forma) for fiscal 2004. The
increase in reported gross margin was primarily attributable to the addition of Sears, which had a higher overall gross margin rate than Kmart, in
fiscal 2005. The increase in pro forma margin in fiscal 2005, as compared to fiscal 2004, was primarily attributable to improvement in Sears
Domestic�s gross margin rate, mainly as a result of improved inventory management and the utilization of more targeted clearance and
promotional markdowns versus historical reliance on storewide events.

The selling and administrative expense rate was 22.0% (reported) and 22.4% (pro forma) for fiscal 2005, as compared to 20.2% (reported) and
22.4% (pro forma) for fiscal 2004. The increase in the reported selling and administrative expense rate was primarily attributable to the addition
of Sears, which had a higher cost structure than Kmart, in fiscal 2005. On a pro forma basis, selling and administrative expenses as a percentage
of total revenues remained unchanged between fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004. While selling and administrative expenses decreased by $398 million
in fiscal 2005, primarily as a function of reduced payroll expenditures and cost-saving initiatives, the selling and administrative expense rate was
unchanged compared to fiscal 2004, as the impact of these reductions was offset by lower expense leverage given lower overall sales, as well as
increases at Sears Canada in both associate stock-based compensation expense and marketing expense.

Depreciation and amortization was $932 million (reported) for fiscal 2005, as compared to $27 million (reported) for fiscal 2004. The increase
was primarily attributable to the addition of Sears, which accounted for $885 million of the reported combined expense in fiscal 2005.

The Company realized gains on sales of assets of $39 million (reported) and $40 million (pro forma) for fiscal 2005, as compared to
$946 million (reported) and $356 million (pro forma) for fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2004, the Company entered into multiple agreements with
Home Depot to sell four properties and assign 14 leased properties for an aggregate purchase price of $271 million, resulting in a total gain on
sale of $253 million. Also during fiscal 2004, Kmart sold four owned properties, assigned 45 leased properties and leased one owned store to
Sears for a total purchase price of approximately $576 million, resulting in a gain of $599 million. This gain on transactions with Sears was
excluded from the fiscal 2004 pro forma gain on sale of assets amount of $356 million. Additionally, the Company sold certain other real and
personal property, resulting in net gains of $39 million and $94 million in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. Included within the fiscal
2004 gains were $22 million related to the sale of owned, or assignment of leased, properties, $18 million related
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to the sale of the Company�s Trinidad subsidiary and its associated property, $12 million related to the sale of corporate airplanes and $42 million
from sales of other real and personal property.

Restructuring charges were $111 million (reported and pro forma) for fiscal 2005 as compared to $0 million (reported) and $41 million (pro
forma) for fiscal 2004. The fiscal 2005 charges included a $57 million charge for employee-related termination costs associated with the
above-noted Sears Canada restructuring initiatives implemented during fiscal 2005, as well as $54 million at Kmart for relocation assistance and
employee termination-related costs associated with Holdings� home office integration efforts. The $41 million charge recorded in fiscal 2004
reflected a charge recorded by Sears in fiscal 2004 as part of a productivity initiative at that entity.

Fiscal 2005 included a $317 million gain on sale of business, which reflected a minority interest gain on the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and
Financial Services operations in November 2005 as discussed above.

Interest and investment income was $127 million (reported) and $159 million (pro forma) in fiscal 2005, as compared to $41 million (reported)
and $153 million (pro forma) for fiscal 2004. The increase in reported interest and investment income was primarily attributable to the addition
of Sears, which accounted for $62 million of the combined interest and investment income in fiscal 2005.

Interest expense was $323 million (reported) and $378 million (pro forma) in fiscal 2005, as compared to $146 million (reported) and $442
million (pro forma) for fiscal 2004. The increase in reported interest expense was a result of the inclusion of Sears debt in fiscal 2005, which
accounted for $195 million of the combined interest expense in fiscal 2005, as well as additional interest expense incurred upon the conversion
of Kmart�s 9% subordinated convertible notes, as further described in the �Uses and Sources of Liquidity� section below. The decline in pro forma
interest expense was due primarily to lower average borrowings.

Other income is primarily comprised of bankruptcy-related recoveries. Bankruptcy-related recoveries decreased $19 million in fiscal 2005 and
represented amounts recognized from vendors who had received cash payment for pre-petition obligations. See Note 13 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further detail.

The reported effective tax rate decreased to 36.4% in fiscal 2005 from 37.7% in fiscal 2004, with the decrease primarily attributable to the
November 2005 sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Service business being taxed at a capital gains rate, lowering the effective tax rate
for fiscal 2005. The pro forma effective tax rate increased to 37.3% in fiscal 2005 from 34.6% in fiscal 2004, with the lower fiscal 2004 effective
rate attributable to the inclusion of Sears.

As noted above, effective January 27, 2005, the Company changed its method of accounting for certain indirect overhead costs from
inventoriable costs to period expenses and as a result recorded a charge of $90 million, net of taxes, in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 for the
cumulative effect of this change in accounting principle. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further detail.

Business Segment Results

Holdings has integrated many Kmart and Sears store-support functions to more efficiently serve both formats; however, for purposes of
reviewing operating performance and making asset-allocation decisions, senior management has continued to utilize principally the reporting
structures that existed independently for Sears and Kmart prior to the Merger. As a result, the following discussion of the Company�s business
segments is organized into three segments: Kmart, Sears Domestic and Sears Canada.
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Kmart

Kmart results and key statistics were as follows:

millions, except for number of stores 2006 2005 2004
Merchandise sales and services $ 18,647 $ 19,094 $ 19,843
Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 14,061 14,462 14,942
Gross margin dollars 4,586 4,632 4,901
Gross margin rate 24.6% 24.3% 24.7%
Selling and administrative 3,623 3,804 3,999
Selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenues 19.4% 19.9% 20.2%
Depreciation and amortization 77 47 27
Gain on sales of assets (71) (40) (946)
Restructuring charges 9 54 �  

Total costs and expenses 17,699 18,327 18,022

Operating income $ 948 $ 767 $ 1,821

Number of stores 1,388 1,416 1,480
Comparable store sales and total sales decreased 0.6% and 2.3%, respectively, during fiscal 2006. The 0.6% decline in Kmart comparable store
sales during fiscal 2006 compares to a 1.2% decline in comparable store sales recorded for fiscal 2005. Similar to the prior year, the current year
decline in comparable store sales reflects the continued impact of increased competition and lower transaction volumes recorded across most
businesses. Comparable store apparel sales increased for a second year during fiscal 2006, but as was the case in fiscal 2005, this improvement
was more than offset by comparable store sales declines across most other Kmart merchandise categories. Total sales in fiscal 2006 benefited
from $301 million in sales recorded during the 53rd week of the 53-week fiscal year, partially offset by the fact that $153 million of sales were
recorded during the first quarter of fiscal 2005 as a result of three additional days being included in fiscal 2005 due to the Company�s change
from a Wednesday to a Saturday month end last year. However, the net favorable impact on fiscal 2006 sales derived from these items
(approximately 0.8%) was more than offset by the negative impact of a reduction in the total number of Kmart stores in operation during fiscal
2006, as compared to fiscal 2005. Store closures and conversions accounted for an approximate 2.4% decline in total Kmart sales for fiscal 2006,
as fiscal 2005 total sales benefited from sales generated at stores subsequently closed in fiscal 2006, as well as partial-year sales recorded in
stores closed during fiscal 2005. A net total of 28 Kmart stores were closed during fiscal 2006, including 16 Kmart stores converted to a Sears
Essentials/Grand format. The remaining balance of the decline in total sales for fiscal 2006, as compared to fiscal 2005, was due to the
above-noted decline in comparable store sales.

The decline in total sales for fiscal 2005 as compared with fiscal 2004 was due to the above-noted fiscal 2005 decline in comparable store sales,
as well as the impact of Kmart store closures and conversions that occurred during 2005. A total of 60 Kmart stores were closed in fiscal 2005,
including 48 Kmart stores converted to a Sears Essentials/Grand format. Store closures and conversions accounted for a 2.2% decline in total
Kmart sales for fiscal 2005.

The gross margin rate was 24.6% in fiscal 2006, as compared to 24.3% for fiscal 2005. This improvement reflects better margin management
across a number of businesses, most notably within apparel, where an increased use of direct-sourced merchandise obtained at a lower cost to the
Company, as well as enhanced profitability of promotional activity improved gross margin. The gross margin rate was 24.3% in fiscal 2005, as
compared to 24.7% for fiscal 2004, with the decline primarily attributable to lower expense leverage relative to buying and occupancy costs
given lower sales levels in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004, as well as increased utilities and transportation expense stemming from higher
energy price levels prevalent during fiscal 2005.
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The selling and administrative expense rate was 19.4% for fiscal 2006, as compared to 19.9% for fiscal 2005. Fiscal 2006 selling and
administrative expenses included a $19 million gain, representing Kmart�s portion of the settlement in the Visa/MasterCard antitrust litigation.
This gain accounted for approximately 10 basis points of the improvement in the selling and administrative expense rate. The remaining 40 basis
point improvement reflects lower costs across a number of expense categories, most notably store payroll and benefit costs which were reduced
in fiscal 2006 as a result of store payroll efficiency initiatives. The selling and administrative expense rate was 19.9% for fiscal 2005, as
compared to 20.2% for fiscal 2004, and improved primarily as a function of lower payroll and benefit costs due largely to reduced
performance-based incentive expense.

Kmart recorded $71 million and $40 million in gains on sales of assets during fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively, with the increase for
fiscal 2006 primarily attributable to a $41 million pre-tax gain recognized in fiscal 2006 in connection with the Company�s 2005 sale of Kmart�s
former corporate headquarters in Troy, Michigan. Kmart recorded $946 million in gains on sales of assets during fiscal 2004 attributable to gains
on multiple agreements as discussed in the above review of consolidated results for fiscal 2004.

Kmart recorded restructuring charges of $9 million and $54 million during fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively. The charges were for
relocation assistance and employee termination-related costs incurred in connection with Holdings� home office integration efforts initiated in
fiscal 2005.

Operating income for fiscal 2006 increased compared to fiscal 2005, primarily as a function of improved expense management, as well as lower
restructuring charges, as noted above. The favorable impact on operating income derived from these factors, as well as the $19 million gain
recorded on the settlement of the Visa/MasterCard antitrust litigation and the increased gains on assets sales, was partially offset by a decline in
total gross margin dollars, as a result of lower overall sales levels, and, to a lesser degree, increased depreciation and amortization expense.
Operating income for fiscal 2005 decreased compared to fiscal 2004 primarily due to $906 million less in gains on the sale of assets realized in
fiscal 2005 and, to a lesser degree, a decline in sales and gross margin dollars, and restructuring charges of $54 million recorded in fiscal 2005,
offset by lower selling and administrative expense.

Sears Domestic

As noted above, the consolidated statement of income for Holdings includes Sears Domestic�s results only for the period subsequent to March 24,
2005 for fiscal 2005, and does not include Sears Domestic�s results for fiscal 2004. The Company believes that an understanding of its reported
results and its ongoing financial performance is not complete without presenting Sears Domestic�s results of operations on a pro forma basis for
fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004. Accordingly, in addition to providing the reported results for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, the presentation below also
provides the results of operations on a pro forma basis for both fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004.
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Sears Domestic results and key statistics were as follows:

Reported Pro Forma
millions, except for number of stores 2006 2005 2005 2004
Merchandise sales and services $ 29,179 $ 25,868 $ 30,038 $ 31,254
Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 20,120 18,221 21,239 22,682
Gross margin dollars 9,059 7,647 8,799 8,572
Gross margin rate 31.0% 29.6% 29.3% 27.4%
Selling and administrative 6,820 5,968 7,039 7,340
Selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenues 23.4% 23.1% 23.4% 23.5%
Depreciation and amortization 927 769 911 992
Loss (gain) on sales of assets (11) 1 �  (4)
Restructuring charges �  �  �  41

Total costs and expenses 27,856 24,959 29,189 31,051

Operating income $ 1,323 $ 909 $ 849 $ 203

Number of:
Full-line Stores(1) 935 924 873
Specialty Stores 1,095 1,128 1,153

Total Domestic Sears Stores 2,030 2,052 2,026

(1) Fiscal 2006 includes 861 full-line store and 74 Sears Essentials/Grand stores; Fiscal 2005 includes 866 full-line store and 58 Sears
Essentials/Grand stores; Fiscal 2004 includes 869 full-line stores and 4 Sears Grand stores

The discussion below pertains to pro forma information in the table above for purposes of reviewing results for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004.
These pro forma results have been prepared assuming the Merger occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2004.

Merchandise sales and services revenues declined $0.8 billion, or 2.9%, to $29.2 billion for fiscal 2006, as compared to total revenues of
$30.0 billion for fiscal 2005. The decline was due primarily to an aggregate 6.1% decrease in comparable store sales, partially offset by an
increase in the total number of full-line stores in operation, as a number of Kmart locations have been converted to the Sears Essentials/Grand
format during the past 18 months, increased sales within home services, and the fact that fiscal 2006 revenues benefited from $410 million in
sales recorded during the 53rd week of the 53-week fiscal year. The 6.1% decline in comparable store sales during fiscal 2006 was recorded
across most categories and formats, with more pronounced declines in both the lawn and garden and home fashions categories, partially offset
by sales increases within women�s apparel. The sales increase in women�s apparel reflects what the Company believes are improved assortments
in this business relative to last year, as noted in the above discussion of consolidated results. Sales within the lawn and garden category were
weaker throughout fiscal 2006, reflecting overall poor weather conditions prevalent during the majority of the summer selling season, the
unfavorable impact of certain economic conditions, such as higher energy costs, on consumer demand for higher-ticket discretionary purchases,
and the absence of catastrophic weather events in the United States in the fall of 2006, which drove sales of generators, chainsaws and other
related power equipment during the fall of 2005. In regards to home fashions, the Company believes sales declines in fiscal 2006 reflect the
impact of a poorly executed launch of new product lines within this category during the second quarter of fiscal 2006. While, the negative trend
in comparable store sales within home fashions decelerated somewhat during the fourth quarter, the Company believes the poor launch continues
to have a negative carryover impact on overall customer traffic within this category. Also of note, the rate of comparable store sales declines
within home appliances at Sears Domestic accelerated somewhat during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, reflecting what the Company believes
was the impact of both a slow housing market and increased competition.
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The 6.1% decline in Sears Domestic comparable store sales during fiscal 2006 compares to an 8.4% decline in comparable store sales recorded
for fiscal 2005. The decline in Sears Domestic comparable store sales during fiscal 2005 primarily reflected efforts initiated in fiscal 2005 to
improve gross margin rates by reducing reliance on certain promotional events and, to a lesser extent, the above-noted poor customer response to
full-line store fashion offerings.

Gross margin rates improved for a second year at Sears Domestic, reaching 31.0% for fiscal 2006, as compared to 29.3% and 27.4% for fiscal
2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. The 170 basis point improvement in gross margin rate realized during fiscal 2006 was due primarily to
improved apparel margins as described above in the discussion of consolidated results. Also, the home services and Lands� End businesses
contributed to the overall improved gross margins during fiscal 2006. As was the case within other apparel businesses during fiscal 2006, the
improvement in Lands� End�s gross margin reflects more extensive and effective use of direct-sourced merchandise, as well as the favorable
impact of pricing initiatives and stronger in-season sales results. The 190 basis point improvement in Sears Domestic�s gross margin rate
recorded during fiscal 2005, as compared to fiscal 2004, was primarily attributable to improved inventory management and the utilization of
more targeted clearance and promotional markdowns versus historical reliance on storewide events. The margin benefit derived in fiscal 2005
from better inventory management was partially offset by lower expense leverage relative to occupancy costs in that year due to lower sales
levels and higher utilities and energy costs.

The selling and administrative expense rate was 23.4% for fiscal 2006, as compared to 23.4% and 23.5% for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004,
respectively. As was the case in fiscal 2005, the expense rate for fiscal 2006 was largely unchanged from prior year, as expense reductions
across a number of categories were offset by lower expense leverage given lower sales levels. The expense reduction in fiscal 2006 included,
most notably, reductions in both marketing and payroll and benefits, which accounted for approximately 40 basis points and 10 basis points of
improvement in the overall rate, respectively; however, the benefit derived from these and other reductions was offset by lower expense
leverage. Sears Domestic�s selling and administrative expense for fiscal 2006 included the favorable impact of a $17 million gain recorded in
connection with settlement of Visa/MasterCard antitrust litigation this year, and also benefited from the fact that fiscal 2005 expenses included
$37 million of Merger-related costs; however, the favorable impact derived from these items was more than offset by the recognition of a $74
million accrual in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 in connection with a pre-Merger legal matter concerning Sears� redemption of certain bonds in
2004 as discussed above.

Depreciation and amortization expense was $927 million, $911 million and $992 million for fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004,
respectively. The higher level of depreciation and amortization expense for fiscal 2004 was due primarily to higher capital expenditure levels, as
compared with fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, and additional depreciation recognized during fiscal 2004 in connection with shortening the
estimated remaining useful lives of certain information technology assets that were sold to an outside IT service provider during that year.

Operating income for fiscal 2006 increased compared to fiscal 2005, primarily as a function of increased gross margin dollars, as well as lower
selling and administrative costs. Operating income for fiscal 2005 increased compared to fiscal 2004 for the same reasons, as well as a result of
lower depreciation and amortization expense, and due to the fact that fiscal 2004 was unfavorably impacted by a $41 million charge recorded as
part of a productivity initiative.

Sears Canada

Sears Canada, a consolidated, 70%-owned subsidiary of Sears, conducts retail and credit operations. In November 2005, Sears Canada
completed the sale of its Credit and Financial Services operations.

As noted above, the consolidated statement of income for Holdings includes Sears Canada�s results only for the period subsequent to the Merger,
or from March 24, 2005 through December 31, 2005 for fiscal 2005, and
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does not include Sears Canada�s results for fiscal 2004. The Company believes that an understanding of its reported results and its ongoing
financial performance is not complete without presenting Sears Canada�s results on a pro forma basis for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004.
Accordingly, in addition to providing the reported results for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, the presentation below also provides the results of
operations on a pro forma basis for both fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005. In addition, as noted above, the results of operations for Sears Canada are
reported to Holdings on a one-month lag.

Sears Canada results and key statistics were as follows:

Reported Pro Forma
millions, except for number of stores 2006 2005 2005 2004
Merchandise sales and services $ 5,186 $ 3,949 $ 4,830 $ 4,488
Credit and Financial Products revenues �  213 299 381

Total revenues 5,186 4,162 5,129 4,869

Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 3,639 2,822 3,476 3,271
Gross margin dollars 1,547 1,127 1,354 1,217
Gross margin rate 29.8% 28.5% 28.0% 27.1%
Selling and administrative 1,138 1,036 1,306 1,208
Selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenues 21.9% 24.9% 25.5% 24.8%
Depreciation and amortization 138 116 150 177
Gain on sales of assets �  �  �  (5)
Gain on sale of business �  (317) (317) �  
Restructuring charges 19 57 57 �  

Total costs and expenses 4,934 3,714 4,672 4,651

Operating income $ 252 $ 448 $ 457 $ 218

Number of:
Full-line Stores 123 123 121
Specialty Stores 250 252 219

Total Sears Canada Stores 373 375 340

The discussion below pertains to pro forma information in the table above, which compares Sears Canada�s results for fiscal 2006 with Sears
Canada�s results for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004. These pro forma results have been prepared assuming the Merger occurred at the beginning of
fiscal 2004.

Total revenues increased 1.1% to $5.2 billion in fiscal 2006, as compared to revenues of $5.1 billion in fiscal 2005. The increase was due
primarily to the impact of favorable exchange rates, as the Canadian dollar strengthened during fiscal 2006 relative to fiscal 2005. Excluding the
impact of exchange rates, total revenues declined 5% versus fiscal 2005, primarily reflecting the impact of the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and
Financial Services operations in November 2005. The revenue stream from Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Services operations was replaced
in part by performance payments received pursuant to the strategic alliance with JPMorgan Chase. The performance payments are classified
within merchandise sales and services and, along with the impact of favorable exchange rates, largely account for the increase in merchandise
sales and services revenues as compared to fiscal 2005. Sears Canada comparable store sales declined 1.1% during fiscal 2006, as increased
sales in major appliances and footwear were more than offset by declines across most other merchandise categories. Total fiscal 2005 revenues
increased 5.3% to $5.1 billion, as compared to revenues of $4.9 billion in fiscal 2004, primarily as a result of favorable exchange rates.
Excluding the impact of exchange rates, revenues in fiscal 2005 were flat versus fiscal 2004.
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The gross margin rate for fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 increased primarily due to the combined effect of improved inventory
management and less inventory shrinkage, as well as the favorable impact of a stronger Canadian dollar on the cost of imported merchandise.
These same factors primarily account for the improved gross margin rate recorded in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004.

The selling and administrative expense rate declined for fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 primarily due to the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit
and Financial Services operations, the positive impact of productivity initiatives initiated at Sears Canada in late fiscal 2005, and a reduction in
marketing costs. The selling and administrative expense rate for fiscal 2005 increased as compared to fiscal 2004 primarily due to increased
associate stock-based compensation and, to a lesser extent, increased marketing costs. The stock-based compensation increase accounted for
approximately 40 basis points of the total increase in the selling and administrative expense rate in fiscal 2005 and resulted mainly from an
increase in Sears Canada�s share price subsequent to its announcement of a definitive agreement to sell substantially all assets and liabilities of its
Credit and Financial Services operations, as well as changes in Sears Canada�s associate stock plan to provide for early vesting of unvested
options and allow associates to take cash payments in lieu of shares.

Restructuring charges of $19 million and $57 million were recognized during fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively, in connection with the
above-noted productivity initiatives.

Operating income was $252 million in fiscal 2006 as compared to $457 million in fiscal 2005. Fiscal 2005 operating income included a gain on
sale of business totaling $317 million recorded to reflect the above-noted minority interest gain on the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and
Financial Services business in November 2005. Excluding this gain, operating income increased $112 million in fiscal 2006, as the impact of a
decline in revenues resulting from the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Services operations was more than offset by increased gross
margin dollars and lower expenses, including $38 million less in restructuring expenses. Operating income increased $239 million in fiscal 2005
as compared to fiscal 2004 due to the above-noted $317 million gain on sale of business. Excluding this gain, operating income declined
$78 million in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 due primarily to $57 million in restructuring charges recorded in fiscal 2005 and higher
selling and administrative expenses, partially offset by increased gross margin.
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PRO FORMA RECONCILIATION

The following tables provide a reconciliation from the as reported results to the pro forma results presented above for Sears Holdings for the
years ended January 28, 2006 and January 26, 2005, respectively, as well as for Sears Domestic and Sears Canada for the years ended
January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively.

Sears Holdings

Year Ended January 28, 2006 Year Ended January 26, 2005

millions, except per share data
As

Reported

Pre-
merger

Activity(1)
Purchase
Acctng

Pro
Forma

As
Reported

Pre-
merger

Activity(1)
Purchase
Acctng

Pro
Forma

Merchandise sales and services $ 48,911 $ 5,051 $ �  $ 53,962 $ 19,843 $ 35,742 $ �  $ 55,585
Credit and financial products
revenues 213 86 �  299 �  381 �  381

Total revenues 49,124 5,137 �  54,261 19,843 36,123 �  55,966

Cost of sales, buying and
occupancy 35,505 3,672 �  39,177 14,942 25,945 8(2) 40,895
Gross margin dollars 13,406 1,379 �  14,785 4,901 9,797 (8) 14,690
Gross margin rate 27.4% 27.3% �  % 27.4% 24.7% 27.4% �  % 26.4%
Selling and administrative 10,808 1,330 11(3) 12,149 3,999 8,482 66(3) 12,547
Selling and administrative as % of
total revenues 22.0% 25.9% �  % 22.4% 20.2% 23.5% �  % 22.4%
Depreciation and amortization 932 147 29(4) 1,108 27 984 185(4) 1,196
Gain on sales of assets (39) (1) �  (40) (946) (9) 599(5) (356)
Gain on sale of business (317) �  �  (317) �  �  �  �  
Restructuring charges 111 �  �  111 �  41 �  41

Total costs and expenses 47,000 5,148 40 52,188 18,022 35,443 858 54,323

Operating income (loss) 2,124 (11) (40) 2,073 1,821 680 (858) 1,643
Interest and investment income (127) (32) �  (159) (41) (112) �  (153)
Interest expense 323 57 (2)(6) 378 146 319 (23)(6) 442
Other income (37) �  �  (37) (59) (8) �  (67)

Income before income taxes,
minority interest and cumulative
effect of change in accounting
principle 1,965 (36) (38) 1,891 1,775 481 (835) 1,421
Income tax expense (benefit) 716 4 (15)(7) 705 669 141 (319)(7) 491
Minority interest 301 6 �  307 �  46 �  46

Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle 948 (46) (23) 879 1,106 294 (516) 884
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of tax (90) �  �  (90) �  �  �  �  

NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 858 $ (46) $ (23) $ 789 $ 1,106 $ 294 $ (516) $ 884

Diluted earnings per share before
cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle $ 6.17 $ 5.40 $ 11.00 $ 5.40
Diluted earnings per share $ 5.59 $ 4.85 $ 11.00 $ 5.40
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(1) Represents the 2005 results of operations for the period January 30, 2005 through March 24, 2005 for Sears Domestic and the period
January 2, 2005 through March 24, 2005 for Sears Canada and the 2004 results of operations for the period February 1, 2004 through
January 29, 2005 for Sears Domestic and the period January 4, 2004 through January 1, 2005 for Sears Canada.

(2) Represents an increase to cost of sales, buying and occupancy expense resulting from the adjustment to Sears� inventory based on the
adjustment of such assets to fair value.

(3) Represents an increase to selling and administrative expense resulting from the adjustment to Sears� pension and postretirement plans based
on the adjustment of such liabilities to fair value.
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(4) Represents an increase in depreciation and amortization expense resulting from the adjustment to Sears� property and equipment and
identifiable intangible assets based on the adjustment of such assets to fair value.

(5) During fiscal 2004, Sears acquired ownership or leasehold interest in 50 Kmart stores for approximately $576 million, and Kmart
recognized a gain on the sale amounting to $599 million. This adjustment eliminates the gain on the sale recognized by Kmart.

(6) Represents a decrease to interest expense resulting from the adjustment to Sears debt based on the adjustments of such liabilities to fair
value.

(7) Represents the aggregate pro forma effective income tax effect of notes (2) through (6) above.
Sears Domestic

Year Ended January 28, 2006 Year Ended January 29, 2005

millions
As

Reported

Pre-
merger

Activity(1)
Purchase
Acctng

Pro
Forma

As
Reported

Pre-
merger

Activity(1)
Purchase
Acctng

Pro
Forma

Merchandise sales and services $ 25,868 $ 4,170 $ �  $ 30,038 $ �  $ 31,254 $ �  $ 31,254
Cost of sales, buying and
occupancy 18,221 3,018 �  21,239 �  22,680 2(2) 22,682
Gross margin dollars 7,647 1,152 �  8,799 �  8,574 �  8,572
Gross margin rate 29.6% 27.6% �  % 29.3% �  % 27.4% �  % 27.4%
Selling and administrative 5,968 1,060 11(3) 7,039 �  7,274 66(3) 7,340
Selling and administrative as % of
total revenues 23.1% 25.4% �  % 23.4% �  % 27.4% �  % 27.4%
Depreciation and amortization 769 116 26(4) 911 �  811 181(4) 992
Loss (Gain) on sales of assets 1 (1) �  �  �  (4) �  (4)
Restructuring charges �  �  �  �  �  41 �  41

Total costs and expenses 24,959 4,193 37 29,189 �  30,802 249 31,051

Operating income (loss) $ 909 $ (23) $ (37) $ 849 $ �  $ 452 $ (249) $ 203
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Sears Canada

Year Ended January 28, 2006 Year Ended January 29, 2005

millions
As

Reported

Pre-
merger

Activity(1)
Purchase
Acctng

Pro
Forma

As
Reported

Pre-
merger

Activity(1)
Purchase
Acctng

Pro
Forma

Merchandise sales and services $ 3,949 $ 881 $ �  $ 4,830 $ �  $ 4,488 $ �  $ 4,488
Credit and financial product revenues(5) 213 86 �  299 �  381 �  381
Total revenues 4,162 967 �  5,129 �  4,869 �  4,869
Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 2,822 654 �  3,476 �  3,265 6(2) 3,271
Gross margin dollars 1,127 227 �  1,354 �  1,223 (6) 1,217
Gross margin rate 28.5% 25.8% �  % 28.0% �  % 27.3% �  % 27.1%
Selling and administrative 1,036 270 �  1,306 �  1,208 �  1,208
Selling and administrative as % of
total revenues 24.9% 27.9% �  % 25.5% �  % 24.8% �  % 24.8%
Depreciation and amortization 116 31 3(4) 150 �  173 4(4) 177
Gain on sales of assets �  �  �  �  �  (5) �  (5)
Gain on sale of business (317) �  �  (317) �  �  �  �  
Restructuring charges 57 �  �  57 �  �  �  �  

Total costs and expenses 3,714 955 3 4,672 �  4,641 10 4,651

Operating income (loss) $ 448 $ 12 $ (3) $ 457 $ �  $ 228 $ (10) $ 218

(1) Represents the 2005 results of operations for the period January 30, 2005 through March 24, 2005 for Sears Domestic and the period
January 2, 2005 through March 24, 2005 for Sears Canada and the 2004 results of operations for the period February 1, 2004 through
January 29, 2005 for Sears Domestic and the period January 4, 2004 through January 1, 2005 for Sears Canada.

(2) Represents an increase to cost of sales, buying and occupancy expense resulting from the adjustment of Sears� inventory to fair value.
(3) Represents an increase to selling and administrative expense resulting from the adjustment to Sears� pension and postretirement

plans based on the adjustment of such liabilities to fair value.
(4) Represents an increase in depreciation and amortization expense resulting from the adjustment to Sears� property and equipment and

identifiable intangible assets based on the adjustment of such assets to fair value.
(5) On November 15, 2005, the Company completed the sale of substantially all assets and liabilities of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial

Services operations. Accordingly, the credit and financial product revenues of $299 million and $381 million for the pro forma fiscal years
ended 2005 and 2004, respectively, are not expected to re-occur.
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ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL CONDITION

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. The
Company�s cash and cash equivalents balances as of the fiscal years ended February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 are detailed in the following
table.

Millions 2006 2005
Domestic
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,484 $ 3,208
Cash posted as collateral 722 466
Credit card deposits in transit 117 102

Total domestic cash and cash equivalents 3,323 3,776
Sears Canada 645 664

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 3,968 $ 4,440

The Company had cash and cash equivalents of $4.0 billion at February 3, 2007 as compared to $4.4 billion at January 28, 2006. The decline in
cash and cash equivalents from January 28, 2006 is primarily attributable to share repurchases ($816 million), debt repayments, net of new
borrowings ($434 million), capital expenditures ($513 million) and cash used in the acquisition of additional interests in Sears Canada ($282
million), partially offset by cash flows from operating activities of $1.4 billion, which included pension contributions of $355 million, and an
increase in merchandise inventories as further discussed below.

The Company�s invested cash may include, from time to time, investments in, but not limited to, commercial paper, U.S. federal, state and
municipal government securities, floating-rate notes, repurchase agreements and money market funds. All invested cash amounts are readily
available to the Company and included $43 million and $634 million as of fiscal year end 2006 and fiscal year end 2005, respectively, invested
in support of the Company�s wholly-owned insurance subsidiary. Additionally, as explained below, the Company�s Board of Directors has
delegated authority to direct investment of the Company�s surplus cash to Edward S. Lampert, subject to various limitations that have been or
may be from time to time adopted by the Board of Directors and/or the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors.

The Company has posted cash collateral for certain outstanding letters of credit and self-insurance programs. Such cash collateral is classified
within cash and cash equivalents given its ready availability to the Company as the Company has the ability to substitute letters of credit at any
time for this cash collateral.

Credit card deposits in transit include deposits in-transit from banks for payments related to third-party credit card and debit card transactions.

The Company classifies outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit within other current liabilities and reduces cash and cash equivalents
when these checks clear the bank on which they were drawn. Outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit were $353 million and
$444 million for the fiscal year ended 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Investment of Available Capital

Since the Merger, the Company�s cash flows have exceeded its working capital, financing and capital investment needs, and management expects
that the Company�s cash flows will continue to exceed its annual operating cash needs for the foreseeable future. The Company regularly
evaluates how best to deploy capital to increase shareholder value. The Company has and will continue to invest in its businesses to improve the
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customer experience and provide the opportunity for attractive returns. Through February 3, 2007, the Company has repurchased $1.4 billion
worth of its common shares since the Merger and may continue to repurchase shares subject to market conditions and board authorization. In
addition, the Company may pursue investments in the form of acquisitions, joint ventures and partnerships where the Company believes
attractive returns can be obtained. Further, the Company may determine under certain market conditions that available capital is best utilized to
fund investments that it believes offer the Company attractive return opportunities, whether or not related to its ongoing business activities.

As previously disclosed, the Company�s Board of Directors has delegated authority to direct investment of the Company�s surplus cash to its
Chairman, Edward S. Lampert, subject to various limitations that have been or may be from time to time adopted by the Board of Directors
and/or Finance Committee of the Board of Directors. The Company, from time to time, invests its surplus cash in various securities and financial
instruments, including total return swaps, which are derivative instruments that synthetically replicate the economic return characteristics of one
or more underlying marketable equity securities. In exchange for receiving the return tied to the position underlying a total return swap, the
Company pays a floating rate of interest tied to LIBOR on the notional amount of the contract. Under the terms of the transactions with the
respective counterparties, the Company is required to post cash collateral of up to 25 percent of the notional amount of the underlying total
return swap position, plus the amount of any unrealized losses on the positions. As of February 3, 2007, the collateral balance held by the
Company�s counterparties based on the Company�s total return swaps� aggregate notional amount of $375 million was $80 million and was
recorded as a current receivable on the Company�s consolidated balance sheet.

These investments are highly concentrated and involve substantial risks. Accordingly, the Company�s financial position and quarterly and annual
results of operations may be positively or negatively materially affected based on the timing, magnitude and performance of these investments.
Based on the aggregate notional amount of such total return swaps as of February 3, 2007, $375 million, an immediate hypothetical increase (or
decrease) of 20% in the market value underlying the total return swaps outstanding would cause the Company�s pre-tax earnings to increase (or
decrease) concurrently by $76 million. The counterparties to these derivative instruments are large financial institutions. These estimates assume
that the total return swap portfolio remains constant.

Operating Activities and Cash Flows

Holdings generated approximately $1.4 billion in operating cash flows during fiscal 2006, as compared to $2.3 billion in fiscal 2005. As a
retailer, Holding�s primary source of operating cash flows is the sales of goods and services to customers, while the primary use of cash in
operations is to fund the purchase of merchandise inventories. The lower level of net operating cash flows generated during fiscal 2006 as
compared to fiscal 2005 primarily reflects the impact of increased merchandise inventories, as well as reduced operating liabilities, partially
offset by increased net income.

Merchandise inventories at February 3, 2007 were $9.9 billion, as compared to $9.1 billion as of January 28, 2006. The increase as compared to
prior year end reflects a number of factors, including timing of inventory receipts ($200 million) primarily due to earlier receipt of spring goods
and a higher level of in-transit import inventory, planned increases in certain basic fashion categories ($130 million), increased inventory in
hardline categories ($120 million) to place Sears products (Craftsman and appliances) in Kmart stores and pursue incremental Home
Décor/Furniture business, and approximately $140 million attributable to lower than expected sales levels. Additionally, at the end of fiscal
2005, the Company reduced inventory in Sears Domestic�s apparel and home fashion businesses as the Company worked to improve
merchandise assortments in these categories. The Company continues to review and assess its merchandise inventory levels in an ongoing effort
to continuously improve overall returns. Merchandise payables were $3.3 billion at February 3, 2007, as compared to $3.5 billion as of
January 28, 2006.
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Investing Activities and Cash Flows

Net cash flows used by investing activities totaled $0.7 billion in fiscal 2006, as compared to $0.6 billion provided in fiscal 2005. Investing cash
flows in both years were heavily impacted by a number of significant transactions.

Fiscal 2006 investing activity cash flows reflect cash paid in connection with the acquisition of additional interests in Sears Canada. The
Company paid a total of $282 million for additional common shares of Sears Canada, raising Holdings� ownership in Sears Canada to
approximately 70% as of February 3, 2007 from approximately 54% as of fiscal year-end 2005. This transaction is further described in Note 4 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Fiscal 2005 reflects the receipt of $2.0 billion in proceeds from the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and
Financial Services business in November 2005, partially offset by cash paid in connection with the Merger, a $1.0 billion net cash outflow.

In addition, during fiscal 2006 the Company spent $513 million on capital expenditures compared to $546 million during the prior year. The
prior year spending of $546 million excludes approximately $40 million of capital expenditures made by Sears during the period January 30,
2005 through March 24, 2005 (pre-Merger period). Significant capital projects during fiscal 2006 included opening 16 Sears Essentials/Grand
locations, as well as remodeling approximately 70 Kmart locations to include Sears brand products inside, most notably home appliances.

The Company anticipates fiscal 2007 capital expenditure levels to increase by approximately $150 million to $200 million as compared to fiscal
2006 levels, with planned increases partially driven by additional capital spending on innovation projects, distribution capability enhancements
and further expansion of home appliances into Kmart locations; however, it should be noted that in the normal course of business, the Company
considers opportunities to purchase leased operating properties, as well as offers to sell owned, or assign leased, operating and non-operating
properties. These transactions may, individually or in the aggregate, result in material proceeds or outlays of cash and cause the Company�s
capital expenditure levels to vary from period to period. In addition, the Company reviews leases that will expire in the short term in order to
determine the appropriate action to take with respect to them. During fiscal 2006, the Company purchased eight previously leased operating
properties for $26 million.

Financing Activities and Cash Flows

Net cash used in financing activities was $1.3 billion in fiscal 2006, reflecting $816 million in share repurchases and $434 million of debt
repayments, net of new borrowings. Of the total share repurchases, $806 million of the total was made pursuant to the Company�s common share
repurchase program. The common share repurchase program was initially announced in 2005 with a total authorization by the Company�s Board
of Directors of up to $1.0 billion. During fiscal 2006, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional $1.0 billion of
common stock, for a total authorization of $2.0 billion. At February 3, 2007, the Company had approximately $604 million of remaining
authorization under the program.

In December 2006, a subsidiary of Orchard Supply Hardware Stores Corporation (�OSH�) generated $198 million of debt proceeds, net of
approximately $2 million in issuance costs, in connection with its entering into a five year, $200 million Senior Secured Term Loan. The
proceeds of this borrowing were used by OSH to pay Holdings the remaining loan payable issued in connection with OSH�s recapitalization in
November 2005. The Senior Secured Term Loan is non-recourse to Holdings.

Net cash used in financing activities was $2.0 billion in fiscal 2005, primarily reflecting $815 million of debt repayments, net of new
borrowings, a dividend of $794 million paid by Sears Canada to minority shareholders of Sears Canada subsequent to the sale of Sears Canada�s
Credit and Financial Services business in November 2005, and $590 million in share repurchases.
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In November 2005, the Company received $59 million in cash from the investment by Ares Management LLC (�Ares�) for 19.9% of the voting
stock of OSH and receipt of a three-year option to purchase, for $127 million, additional shares of OSH that represented 30.2% of OSH�s
outstanding voting stock at the time of the option�s issuance. Prior to the Ares investment, OSH was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

In addition, Holdings generated $169 million of debt proceeds, net of $7 million in issuance costs, in fiscal 2005 as a result of financing obtained
by OSH subsidiaries concurrent with the Ares investment in 19.9% of the voting stock of OSH. At the time of the Ares investment, OSH
subsidiaries entered into a series of arrangements for $250 million in financing, consisting of a $130 million senior secured revolving credit
facility and a $120 million commercial mortgage-backed loan. Approximately $56 million of the revolving credit facility was drawn down at
closing. A portion of the proceeds was used by OSH to fund a dividend to Holdings that included $225 million in cash, which was available to
be used for Holdings� general corporate purposes.

Uses and Sources of Liquidity

The Company�s primary need for liquidity is to fund seasonal working capital requirements of its retail businesses, capital expenditures and for
general corporate purposes. The Company believes that these needs will be adequately funded by the Company�s operating cash flows, credit
terms from vendors, current balances in cash and cash equivalents and, to the extent necessary, borrowings under the Company�s $4.0 billion,
five-year credit agreement (the �Credit Agreement�) (described below). At February 3, 2007, $3.8 billion was available under this facility. While
the Company expects to use the Credit Agreement as its primary funding source, it may also access the public debt markets on an opportunistic
basis. Additionally, the Company may from time to time consider selective strategic transactions to create value and improve performance,
which may include acquisitions, dispositions, restructurings, joint ventures and partnerships. Transactions of these types may result in material
proceeds or cash outlays.

The Company�s year-end fiscal 2006 and 2005 outstanding borrowings were as follows:

millions
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
Short-term borrowings:
Unsecured commercial paper $ 94 $ 178
Long-term debt, including current portion:
Notes and debentures outstanding 2,662 2,974
Capital lease obligations 800 864

Total borrowings $ 3,556 $ 4,016

In fiscal 2005, the Finance Committee of the Company�s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase, subject to market conditions and other
factors, of up to $500 million of the outstanding indebtedness of the Company and its subsidiaries in open market or privately negotiated
transactions. The source of funds for the purchases is expected to be the Company�s cash from operations or borrowings under the Credit
Agreement. The Company�s wholly-owned finance subsidiary, Sears Roebuck Acceptance Corp. (�SRAC�), has repurchased $158 million of its
outstanding notes, including $2 million repurchased during fiscal 2006, thereby reducing the unused balance of this authorization to
$342 million.

On January 31, 2005, Kmart entered into an agreement with Holdings and certain affiliates of ESL Investments, Inc. (�ESL�). Pursuant to this
agreement, ESL affiliates converted, in accordance with their terms, all of the outstanding 9% convertible subordinated notes of Kmart and six
months of accrued interest into an aggregate of 6.3 million shares of Kmart common stock. In consideration of ESL�s conversion of the notes
prior to maturity, ESL received a $3 million payment from Kmart. The cash payment was equivalent to the approximate discounted after-tax
cost of the future interest payments that would have otherwise been paid by Kmart to ESL and its affiliates in the absence of the early
conversion. In conjunction with the conversion, the Company recognized the remaining related unamortized debt discount of $17 million as
interest expense.
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During fiscal 2005, the Company terminated interest rate swaps with a notional value of approximately $1.0 billion that had converted certain of
the Company�s fixed-rate debt to floating-rate debt. The Company received $60 million in cash proceeds from the swap terminations,
representing the aggregate fair value of these swaps as of the termination date. As the hedges related to these swaps qualified for hedge
accounting, an offsetting adjustment was recorded to the carrying amount of the designated hedged debt, which remains outstanding, and this
adjustment will be amortized into interest expense over the remaining term of the debt. The Company had no interest-rate swaps outstanding at
February 3, 2007.

Debt Ratings

The ratings of the Company�s domestic debt securities as of February 3, 2007 appear in the table below:

Moody�s
Investors
Service

Standard &
Poor�s

Ratings
Services

Fitch
Ratings

Unsecured long-term debt Ba2 BB+ BB
Unsecured commercial paper NP B-1 B

Credit Agreement

The Credit Agreement, which expires March 2010, is available for general corporate purposes and includes a $1.5 billion letter of credit
sublimit. The Credit Agreement is a revolving credit facility under which SRAC and Kmart Corporation are the borrowers. The Credit
Agreement is guaranteed by Holdings and certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries and is secured by a first lien on domestic inventory, credit
card accounts receivable and the proceeds thereof. Availability under the Credit Agreement is determined pursuant to a borrowing base formula,
based on domestic inventory, subject to certain limitations. As of February 3, 2007, the Company had $196 million of letters of credit
outstanding under the Credit Agreement with $3.8 billion of availability remaining under the Credit Agreement. There were no direct
borrowings under the facility during fiscal 2006. The Credit Agreement does not contain provisions that would restrict borrowings or letter of
credit issuances based on material adverse changes or credit ratings.

Letter of Credit Agreement

The Company has a letter of credit agreement (the �LC Agreement�) with a commitment amount of up to $1.0 billion. The LC Agreement, which
is renewable annually upon agreement of the parties, is scheduled for renewal in August 2007. As of February 3, 2007, there were $686 million
of letters of credit outstanding under the LC Agreement.

Cash Collateral

Under the terms of the LC Agreement, the Company has the ability to post cash, inventory or other letters of credit, including letters of credit
issued under the Credit Agreement, as collateral. However, the Credit Agreement prohibits the Company from using inventory as collateral
under the LC Agreement. The cash collateral account is subject to a pledge and security agreement pursuant to which if the Company elects to
post cash collateral, it must maintain cash in an amount equal to 100.5% of the face value of letters of credit outstanding. The Company had
$690 million posted as collateral under the LC Agreement as of February 3, 2007. The Company continues to classify the cash collateral posted
under the terms of the LC Agreement as cash and cash equivalents due to the Company�s ability to substitute these letters of credit with letters of
credit under the Credit Agreement, which does not require cash collateral, and its ability to provide letters of credit under the Credit Agreement
as collateral. There are no provisions in the LC Agreement that would restrict issuances based on credit ratings, but issuances could be restricted
under certain circumstances based on a material adverse change.
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The Company also posts cash collateral for certain self-insurance programs. The Company continues to classify the cash collateral posted for
self-insurance programs as cash and cash equivalents due to the Company�s ability to substitute letters of credit for the cash at any time at its
discretion. As of February 3, 2007, $32 million of cash was posted as collateral for self-insurance programs.

Orchard Supply Hardware LLC (�LLC�) Credit Agreement

In November 2005, LLC entered into a five-year, $130 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the �LLC Facility�), which includes a
$25 million letter of credit sublimit. The LLC Facility is available for LLC�s general corporate purposes and is secured by a first lien on
substantially all of LLC�s non-real estate assets. Availability under the LLC Facility is determined pursuant to a borrowing base formula based on
inventory and accounts and credit card accounts receivable, subject to certain limitations. As of February 3, 2007, $36 million was outstanding
under this facility consisting of $34 million in borrowings and $2 million in outstanding letters of credit.

Wholly-owned Insurance Subsidiary and Inter-company Notes

As noted in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company has numerous types of insurable risks, including workers�
compensation, product and general liability, automobile, warranty, and asbestos and environmental claims. Also, as discussed in Note 1, the
Company sells extended service contracts to its customers. The associated risks are managed through a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary of
the Company. In accordance with applicable insurance regulations, the insurance subsidiary holds investment grade securities to support the
insurance coverage it provides.

The Company has transferred certain domestic real estate and intellectual property (i.e. trademarks) into separate wholly-owned, bankruptcy
remote subsidiaries. These bankruptcy remote subsidiaries lease the real estate property to Sears and license the use of the trademarks to Sears
and Kmart. Further, the bankruptcy remote subsidiaries have issued asset-backed notes that are collateralized by the aforementioned real estate
rental streams and intellectual property licensing fee streams. Cash flows received from rental streams and licensing fees streams paid by Sears,
Kmart and, potentially in the future, other affiliates or third parties will be used for the payment of fees, interest and principal on the
asset-backed notes issued. Since the inception of these subsidiaries, the debt securities have been entirely held by wholly-owned consolidated
subsidiaries of the Company in support of the Company�s insurance activities. The net book value of the securitized real estate assets was
approximately $1.0 billion and $1.1 billion at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively. The net book value of the securitized
intellectual property assets was approximately $1.0 billion and $0.0 billion at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.
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Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

Information concerning the Company�s obligations and commitments to make future payments under contracts such as debt and lease
agreements, and under contingent commitments, is aggregated in the following tables.

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total
Within
1 Year

1-3
Years

4-5
Years

After 5
Years

millions
Operating leases $ 7,023 $ 820 $ 1,390 $ 1,038 $ 3,775
Short-term debt 95 95 �  �  �  
Capital lease obligations 1,444 148 274 252 770
Royalty license fees(1) 273 187 66 13 7
Pension funding obligations 828 192 379 257 �  
Long-term debt 3,662 705 809 1,091 1,057

Total contractual obligations $ 13,325 $ 2,147 $ 2,918 $ 2,651 $ 5,609

(1) The Company pays royalties under various merchandise license agreements, which are generally based on sales of products covered under
these agreements. The Company currently has license agreements for which it pays royalties, including those to use the Jaclyn Smith, Joe
Boxer, and Martha Stewart Everyday trademarks. Royalty license fees represent the minimum Holdings is obligated to pay, regardless of
sales, as guaranteed royalties under these license agreements.

Other Commercial Commitments

millions
Bank
Issued

SRAC
Issued Other Total

Standby letters of credit $ 888 $ 119 $ �  $ 1,007
Commercial letters of credit 71 178 �  249
Secondary lease obligations and performance guarantee �  �  90 90
Application of Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing the financial statements, certain accounting policies require considerable judgment to select the appropriate assumptions to calculate
financial estimates. These estimates are complex and subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. The Company bases its estimates on historical
experience, terms of existing contracts, evaluation of trends and other assumptions that the Company believes to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Company continually evaluates the information used to make these estimates as its business and the economic environment
change. Although the use of estimates is pervasive throughout the financial statements, the Company considers an accounting estimate to be
critical if:

� it requires assumptions to be made about matters that were highly uncertain at the time the estimate was made, and

� changes in the estimate that are reasonably likely to occur from period to period or different estimates that could have been
selected would have a material effect on the Company�s financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.

Management believes the current assumptions and other considerations used to estimate amounts reflected in the financial statements are
appropriate. However, if actual experience differs from the assumptions and the
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considerations used in estimating amounts, the resulting changes could have a material adverse effect on the Company�s consolidated results of
operations, and in certain situations, could have a material adverse effect on its financial condition.

Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of its Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosure presented below relating to the selection of these estimates.

The following is a summary of the Company�s most critical estimates.

Valuation of Inventory

The Company�s inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market determined primarily using the retail inventory method (�RIM�). RIM is an
averaging method that is widely used in the retail industry. To determine inventory cost under RIM, inventory at its retail selling value is
segregated into groupings of merchandise having similar characteristics, which are then converted to a cost basis by applying specific average
cost factors for each grouping of merchandise. Cost factors represent the average cost-to-retail ratio for each merchandise group based upon the
fiscal year purchasing activity for each store location. Accordingly, a significant assumption under the retail method is that inventory in each
group is similar in terms of its cost-to-retail relationship and has similar turnover rates. Management monitors the content of merchandise in
these groupings to prevent distortions that would have a material effect on inventory valuation.

RIM inherently requires management judgment and certain estimates that may significantly affect the ending inventory valuation as well as
gross margin. Among others, two significant estimates used in inventory valuation are the level and timing of permanent markdowns (clearance
markdowns used to clear unproductive or slow-moving inventory) and shrinkage. Amounts are charged to cost of sales, buying and occupancy at
the time the retail value of inventory is reduced through the use of permanent markdowns.

Factors considered in the determination of permanent markdowns include current and anticipated demand, customer preferences, age of the
merchandise, fashion trends and weather conditions. In addition, inventory is also evaluated against corporate pre-determined historical
markdown cadences. When a decision is made to permanently markdown merchandise, the resulting gross margin reduction is recognized in the
period the markdown is recorded. The timing of the decision, particularly surrounding the balance sheet date, can have a significant effect on the
results of operations.

Shrinkage is estimated as a percentage of sales for the period from the date of the last physical inventory to the end of the fiscal year. Physical
inventories are taken at least annually for all stores on a staggered basis throughout the year and inventory records are adjusted accordingly. The
shrinkage rate from the most recent physical inventory, in combination with historical experience, is used as the standard for the shrinkage
accrual following the physical inventory.

Self Insurance Reserves

The Company uses a combination of third-party insurance and/or self-insurance for a number of risks including workers� compensation, asbestos
and environmental, automobile, warranty, product and general liability claims. General liability costs relate primarily to litigation that arises
from store operations. Self-insurance reserves include actuarial estimates of both claims filed carried at their expected ultimate settlement value
and claims incurred but not yet reported. The Company�s estimated claim amounts are discounted using a rate with a duration that approximates
the duration of the Company�s self-insurance reserve portfolio. The Company�s liability reflected on the consolidated balance sheets represents an
estimate of the ultimate cost of claims incurred as of the balance sheet date. In estimating this liability, the Company utilizes loss development
factors based on Company-specific data to project the future development of incurred losses. Loss estimates are
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adjusted based upon actual claims settlements and reported claims. These projections are subject to a high degree of variability based upon
future inflation rates, litigation trends, legal interpretations, benefit level changes and claim settlement patterns. Although the Company does not
expect the amounts ultimately paid to differ significantly from its estimates, self-insurance reserves could be affected if future claim experience
differs significantly from the historical trends and the actuarial assumptions.

Defined Benefit Retirement Plans

The fundamental components of accounting for defined benefit retirement plans consist of the compensation cost of the benefits earned, the
interest cost from deferring payment of those benefits into the future and the results of investing any assets set aside to fund the obligation. Such
retirement benefits were earned by associates ratably over their service careers. Therefore, the amounts reported in the income statement for
these retirement plans have historically followed the same pattern. Accordingly, changes in the obligations or the value of assets to fund them
have been recognized systematically and gradually over the associate�s estimated period of service. The largest drivers of experience losses in
recent years have been the discount rate used to determine the present value of the obligation and the actual return on pension assets. The
Company recognizes the changes by amortizing experience gains/losses in excess of the 10% corridor into expense over the associate service
period and by recognizing the difference between actual and expected asset returns over a five-year period. The Sears domestic pension plans
had no unrecognized experience gain or loss as of the date of the Merger.

Effective January 31, 1996, Kmart�s pension plans were frozen, and associates no longer earn additional benefits under the plans. Therefore,
there are no assumptions related to future compensation costs relating to the Kmart pension plans. During the first quarter of 2005, Holdings
announced that the Sears domestic pension plan would be frozen effective January 1, 2006. Accordingly, domestic associates have earned no
additional benefits subsequent to December 31, 2005. Benefits earned through December 31, 2005 will be paid out to eligible participants
following retirement.

Holdings� actuarial valuations utilize key assumptions including discount rates and expected returns on plan assets. The Company is required to
consider current market conditions, including changes in interest rates and plan asset investment returns, in determining these assumptions.
Actuarial assumptions may differ materially from actual results due to changing market and economic conditions, changes in investment
strategies and higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spans of participants.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes� which requires that deferred tax assets
and liabilities be recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of
recorded assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 109 also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than
not that some portion of or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company recognized a reversal of approximately $1.1 billion of its pre-Merger deferred income tax
valuation allowance as a result of the Merger and the combined tax attributes resulting from it. SFAS No. 109 requires that this reversal be
included in the Company�s purchase accounting adjustments as a reduction to goodwill attributable to the Merger. Given the Company�s current
and forecasted levels of profitability, as well as its ability to realize the deferred tax assets through tax strategies if necessary, management
believes that a significant portion of the deferred tax assets will more likely than not be realized.

The remaining consolidated valuation allowance as of February 3, 2007 is $332 million and relates to the uncertainty around the realization of
certain state deferred tax assets all of which are attributable to Sears. The Company will continue to assess the likelihood of realization of these
state deferred tax assets and will reduce the valuation allowance on such assets in the future if it becomes more likely than not that the net
deferred tax assets will be utilized.
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The tax balances and income tax expense recognized by the Company are based on management�s interpretation of the tax laws of multiple
jurisdictions. Income tax expense also reflects the Company�s best estimates and assumptions regarding, among other things, the level of future
taxable income, interpretation of the tax laws, and tax planning. Future changes in tax laws, changes in projected levels of taxable income, tax
planning, and adoption and implementation of FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an Interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109� (�FIN 48�) could affect the effective tax rate and tax balances recorded by the Company.

Domestic and foreign tax authorities periodically audit the Company�s income tax returns. These audits include questions regarding its tax filing
positions, including the timing and amount of deductions and the allocation of income among various tax jurisdictions. In evaluating, the
exposures associated with its various tax filing positions, the Company records reserves for probable losses. A number of years may elapse
before a particular matter, for which the Company has established a reserve, is audited and fully resolved. Management�s estimates as of the date
of the financial statements reflect its best judgment giving consideration to all currently available facts and circumstances. As such, these
estimates may require adjustment in the future, as additional facts become known or as circumstances change, or upon adoption of FIN 48 in the
first quarter of fiscal 2007.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) ratified the consensus reached on Emerging Issues Task Force (�EITF�) Issue
No. 06-03, �How Sales Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement
(That is, Gross Versus Net Presentation).� The EITF reached a consensus that the presentation of taxes on either a gross or a net basis is an
accounting policy decision that requires disclosure. EITF 06-3 is effective for the first interim or annual reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2006. The adoption of EITF 06-3 will not have any effect on the Company�s financial position or results of operations. The
Company�s revenues are reported net of sales taxes.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. This Interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process for recording within the
financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. In addition, FIN 48 provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest, penalties, accounting in interim periods and disclosure related to uncertain tax positions. The provisions of FIN 48 are
effective as of the beginning of the Company�s 2007 fiscal year. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of FIN 48,
during the first quarter of 2007, on its financial statements and operating results. The Company currently estimates that the adoption of FIN 48
will not have any material impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operations. The Company�s evaluation of the impact of FIN 48
is continuing, however, and is subject to revision when the Company completes its analysis.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (�SAB�) No. 108, �Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,� which provides interpretive guidance on the consideration of the effects of
prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. SAB No. 108 is effective for
annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The Company adopted SAB No. 108 for its financial statements for
the fiscal year ending February 3, 2007. Implementation of SAB No. 108 did not have a material impact on either the Company�s results of
operations or stockholders� equity.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements.� SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies
under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those
accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this Statement does not require any new fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. The Company plans to adopt SFAS No. 157
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on
its financial statements.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, �Employers� Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.� See
Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding the impact of adopting this standard.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.� SFAS No. 159
expands the scope of specific types of assets and liabilities that an entity may carry at fair value on its statement of financial position, and offers
an irrevocable option to record the vast majority of financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in earnings.
SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, SFAS
No. 159 will have on its financial statements.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in other public announcements by the Company contain forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties that may cause the Company�s actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include information
concerning the Company�s future financial performance, business strategy, plans, goals and objectives. Statements preceded or followed by, or
that otherwise include, the words �believes�, �expects�, �anticipates�, �intends�, �estimates�, �plans�, �forecasts�, �is likely to�, �projected� and similar expressions
or future or conditional verbs such as �will�, �should�, �would�, �may� and �could� are generally forward-looking in nature and not historical facts. Such
statements include, but are not limited to, statements about the expected performance of various business initiatives and future financial and
operating results. Such statements are based upon the current beliefs and expectations of Holdings� management and are subject to significant
risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements.

The following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ from those set forth in the forward-looking statements:

� the ability to attract, motivate and retain key executives and other associates;

� competitive conditions in the retail and related services industries;

� changes in consumer confidence, tastes, preferences and spending, including the impact of fuel costs on spending patterns, and the
availability and level of consumer debt;

� marketplace demand for the Company�s proprietary brand products and the products of the Company�s key brand licensors;

� operational or financial difficulties at any of the Company�s key vendors;

� the successful execution of, and customer response to, strategic initiatives, including the full-line store and off-mall strategies, and
the cross�merchandising of products and services, including Craftsman and Kenmore brand products, between the Kmart and Sears
formats;

� the impact of seasonal buying patterns, including seasonal fluctuations due to weather conditions, which are difficult to forecast with
certainty;

� the Company�s ability to successfully invest available capital;

� the pace of growth in store locations, which may be higher or lower than anticipated;
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� the ability to successfully implement initiatives to improve inventory management and other capabilities;

� the possibility that new business and strategic options for one or more business segments will be identified, potentially including
selective acquisitions, dispositions, restructurings, joint ventures and partnerships;
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� trade restrictions, tariffs, and other factors potentially affecting the ability to do business with qualified vendors and access products
in an efficient manner;

� unanticipated increases in paper, postage, printing or fuel costs;

� anticipated cash flow and the ability of the Company to maintain sufficient operating cash flow and liquidity;

� changes in interest rates;

� the outcome of pending and/or future legal proceedings and bankruptcy claims;

� social and political conditions such as war, political unrest and terrorism or natural disasters;

� the possibility of negative investment returns in pension plans;

� volatility in financial markets;

� changes in debt ratings, credit spreads and cost of funds;

� the terms and availability of debt financing and unexpected difficulties accessing the public debt markets; and

� general economic conditions and normal business uncertainty.
While the Company believes that its forecasts and assumptions are reasonable, it cautions that actual results may differ materially. The Company
intends the forward-looking statements to speak only as of the time made and does not undertake to update or revise them as more information
becomes available.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
The Company faces market risk exposure in the form of interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk. These market risks arise
from the Company�s derivative financial instruments and debt obligations.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company manages interest rate risk through the use of fixed and variable-rate funding and interest rate derivatives. As of February 3, 2007,
the Company had interest rate derivatives with a notional amount of $120 million, nominal fair value and a weighted average remaining life of
0.8 years. All debt securities and interest-rate derivative instruments are considered non-trading. As of February 3, 2007, 13% of the Company�s
debt portfolio was variable rate. Based on the size of this variable rate debt portfolio at February 3, 2007, which totaled approximately $448
million, an immediate 100 basis point change in interest rates would have affected annual pretax funding costs by $4.5 million. These estimates
do not take into account the effect on income resulting from invested cash or the returns on assets being funded. These estimates also assume
that the variable rate funding portfolio remains constant for an annual period and that the interest rate change occurs at the beginning of the
period.

Foreign Currency Risk

As of February 3, 2007, the Company had a series of foreign currency forward contracts outstanding, totaling $400 million Canadian notional
value and with a weighted average remaining life of 0.4 years, designed to hedge the Company�s net investment in Sears Canada against adverse
changes in exchange rates. The aggregate fair value of the forward contracts as of February 3, 2007 was $26 million. A hypothetical 10%
adverse movement in the level of the Canadian exchange rate relative to the U.S. dollar as of February 3, 2007, with all other variables held
constant, would have resulted in a loss in the fair value of the Company�s foreign currency forward contracts of approximately $38 million as of
February 3, 2007.

Equity Price Risk

The Company, from time to time, invests its surplus cash in various securities and financial instruments, including total return swaps, which are
derivative contracts that synthetically replicate the economic return characteristics of one or more underlying marketable equity securities. In
exchange for receiving the return tied to the position underlying a total return swap, the Company pays a floating rate of interest tied to LIBOR
on the notional amount of the contract. The fair value of a total return swap is based on the quoted market price of the underlying position and
changes in fair value of the total return swaps are recognized currently in earnings. During fiscal 2006, the Company entered into total return
swaps and recognized $74 million of investment income, consisting of realized gains of $84 million and unrealized losses of $2 million less $8
million of interest cost. As of February 3, 2007, the total return swaps had an aggregate notional amount of $375 million and a fair value of $5
million.

These investments are highly concentrated and involve substantial risks. Accordingly, the Company�s financial position and quarterly and annual
results of operations may be positively or negatively materially affected based on the timing, magnitude and performance of these investments.
Based on the aggregate notional amount of such total return swaps as of February 3, 2007, $375 million, an immediate hypothetical increase (or
decrease) of 20% in the market value underlying the total return swaps outstanding would cause the Company�s pre-tax earnings to increase (or
decrease) concurrently by $76 million. These estimates assume that the total return swap portfolio remains constant.

Counterparties

The Company actively manages the risk of nonpayment by its derivative counterparties by limiting its exposure to individual counterparties
based on credit ratings, value at risk and maturities. The counterparties to these instruments are major financial institutions with credit ratings of
single-A or better. In certain cases, counterparty risk is also managed through the use of collateral in the form of cash or U.S. government
securities.
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SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Income

millions, except per share data 2006 2005 2004
REVENUES
Merchandise sales and services $ 53,012 $ 48,911 $ 19,843
Credit and financial products revenues �  213 �  

Total revenues 53,012 49,124 19,843

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 37,820 35,505 14,942
Selling and administrative 11,581 10,808 3,999
Depreciation and amortization 1,142 932 27
Gain on sales of assets (82) (39) (946)
Gain on sale of business �  (317) �  
Restructuring charges 28 111 �  

Total costs and expenses 50,489 47,000 18,022

Operating income 2,523 2,124 1,821
Interest and investment income (254) (127) (41)
Interest expense 337 323 146
Other income (24) (37) (59)

Income before income taxes, minority interest and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 2,464 1,965 1,775
Income taxes 930 716 669
Minority interest 44 301 �  

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 1,490 948 1,106
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (net of income tax benefit of $58) �  (90) �  

NET INCOME $ 1,490 $ 858 $ 1,106

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
BASIC
Earnings per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 9.57 $ 6.22 $ 12.39
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle �  (0.59) �  

Earnings per share $ 9.57 $ 5.63 $ 12.39

DILUTED
Earnings per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 9.57 $ 6.17 $ 11.00
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle �  (0.58) �  

Earnings per share $ 9.57 $ 5.59 $ 11.00

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 155.6 152.5 89.3
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 155.7 153.6 101.4

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheets

millions, except per share data
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,968 $ 4,440
Accounts receivable 847 811
Merchandise inventories 9,907 9,068
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 372 372
Deferred income taxes 312 516

Total current assets 15,406 15,207
Property and equipment
Land 2,105 2,146
Buildings and improvements 5,981 5,920
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,408 2,268
Capital leases 352 367

Gross property and equipment 10,846 10,701
Less accumulated depreciation (1,714) (878)

Total property and equipment, net 9,132 9,823
Goodwill 1,692 1,684
Tradenames and other intangible assets 3,437 3,448
Other assets 399 411

TOTAL ASSETS $ 30,066 $ 30,573

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings $ 94 $ 178
Current portion of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations 613 570
Merchandise payables 3,312 3,458
Income taxes payable 359 449
Other current liabilities 3,965 3,917
Unearned revenues 1,073 1,047
Other taxes 636 731

Total current liabilities 10,052 10,350
Long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations 2,849 3,268
Pension and postretirement benefits 1,648 2,421
Minority interest and other liabilities 2,803 2,923

Total Liabilities 17,352 18,962

SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Preferred stock, 20 shares authorized; no shares outstanding �  �  
Common stock $0.01 par value; 500 shares authorized; 154 and 160 shares outstanding, respectively 2 2
Capital in excess of par value 10,393 10,258
Retained earnings 3,688 2,198
Treasury stock�at cost (1,437) (642)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 68 (205)
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Total Shareholders� Equity 12,714 11,611

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY $ 30,066 $ 30,573

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

millions 2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 1,490 $ 858 $ 1,106
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,142 932 27
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax �  90 �  
Provision for uncollectible credit card accounts �  49 �  
Gain on total return swaps, net (74) �  �  
Gain on sales of assets (82) (39) (946)
Gain on sale of investments (18) (38) �  
Change in operating assets and liabilities (net of acquisitions and dispositions):
Deferred income taxes 258 58 597
Credit card receivables �  (380) �  
Merchandise inventories (841) 208 (43)
Merchandise payables (145) (71) 251
Income and other taxes (173) (53) 66
Other operating assets 193 318 100
Other operating liabilities (306) 366 (90)

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,444 2,298 1,068

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (283) (1,020) �  
Proceeds from sale of business �  2,044 �  
Proceeds from sales of property and investments 143 157 562
Purchases of property and equipment (513) (546) (230)
Change in collateral on total return swaps, net (80) �  �  
Cash settlements on total return swaps, net 70 �  �  

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (663) 635 332

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from debt issuances 524 176 �  
Repayments of long-term debt (875) (577) (53)
Decrease in short-term borrowings, primarily 90 days or less (83) (414) �  
Proceeds from termination of interest rate swaps �  60 �  
Sears Canada dividend paid to minority shareholders �  (794) �  
Issuance of subsidiary stock �  59 �  
Purchase of treasury stock (816) (590) �  
Debt issue costs (2) (27) �  
Income tax benefit on exercise of nonqualified stock options �  53 �  
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options �  102 �  

Net cash used in financing activities (1,252) (1,952) (53)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (1) 24 �  
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (472) 1,005 1,347
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,440 3,435 2,088

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 3,968 $ 4,440 $ 3,435
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SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE ABOUT NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Bankruptcy related settlements resulting in the receipt of treasury stock $ 3 $ 25 $ 88
Sale of owned and assignment of leased properties �  �  403
Conversion of 9% convertible note �  63 �  
Capital lease obligation incurred 61 65 49
Supplemental Cash Flow Data:
Income taxes paid 574 114 6
Cash interest paid 282 255 52

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders� Equity

dollars and shares in millions
Number of

Shares
Common

Stock
Treasury

Stock

Capital
in

Excess
of Par
Value

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income
(Loss) Total

Balance, beginning of January 28, 2004 90 $ 1 $ (1) $ 1,974 $ 234 $ 1 $ 2,209
Comprehensive income
Net income �  �  �  �  1,106 �  1,106
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax �  �  �  �  �  (77) (77)
Market value adjustment for investments �  �  �  �  �  (1) (1)

Total Comprehensive Income 1,028
Unearned compensation �  �  4 2 �  �  6
Pre-petition tax settlement/valuation reserve
adjustments �  �  �  1,297 �  �  1,297
Bankruptcy related settlement agreements (1) �  (88) 18 �  �  (70)
Other �  �  (1) �  �  �  (1)

Balance at January 26, 2005 89 1 (86) 3,291 1,340 (77) 4,469

Acquisition of Sears 63 1 62 6,423 �  �  6,486
Conversion of Subordinated note 6 �  24 39 �  �  63
Comprehensive income
Net income �  �  �  �  858 �  858
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax �  �  �  �  �  (110) (110)
Cumulative translation adjustment �  �  �  �  �  (18) (18)

Total Comprehensive Income 730
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 7 �  �  102 �  �  102
Income tax benefit on non-qualified stock options �  �  �  53 �  �  53
Pre-petition tax settlements/valuation reserve
adjustments �  �  �  292 �  �  292
Bankruptcy related settlement agreements �  �  (38) 13 �  �  (25)
Shares repurchased (5) �  (590) �  �  �  (590)
Other �  �  (14) 45 �  �  31

Balance at January 28, 2006 160 2 (642) 10,258 2,198 (205) 11,611

Comprehensive income
Net income �  �  �  �  1,490 �  1,490
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax �  �  �  �  �  174 174
Deferred gain on derivatives �  �  �  �  �  4 4
Cumulative translation adjustment �  �  �  �  �  20 20

Total Comprehensive Income 1,688
Adjustment to initially apply FAS 158, net of tax �  �  �  �  �  75 75
Pre-petition tax settlements/valuation reserve
adjustments �  �  �  130 �  �  130
Bankruptcy related settlement agreements �  �  �  4 �  �  4
Shares repurchased (6) �  (816) �  �  �  (816)
Other �  �  21 1 �  �  22
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Balance at February 3, 2007 154 $ 2 $ (1,437) $ 10,393 $ 3,688 $ 68 $ 12,714

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

58

Edgar Filing: SEARS HOLDINGS CORP - Form 10-K

69



SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1�SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations, Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

Sears Holdings Corporation (�Holdings� or the �Company�) is the parent company of Kmart Holding Corporation (�Kmart�) and Sears, Roebuck and
Co. (�Sears�). Holdings was formed as a Delaware corporation in 2004 in connection with the merger of Kmart and Sears (the �Merger�), which was
completed on March 24, 2005. The Company is a broadline retailer with approximately 2,300 full-line and 1,100 specialty retail stores in the
United States operating through Kmart and Sears and approximately 370 full-line and specialty retail stores in Canada operating through Sears
Canada Inc. (�Sears Canada�), a 70%-owned subsidiary. The Company has three reportable segments, Kmart, Sears Domestic and Sears Canada.

For accounting purposes, the Merger was treated as a purchase business combination, with Kmart acquiring Sears. Accordingly, the historical
financial statements of Kmart serve as the historical financial statements of Holdings, the registrant. The results of Sears are included in the
consolidated financial statements subsequent to the Merger date. As a result, Holdings� operating results for fiscal 2005 include approximately 44
weeks of Sears� results and 52 weeks of Kmart�s results. See Note 2 for summary unaudited pro forma information and details on the purchase
accounting applied to the Merger.

The consolidated financial statements include all majority-owned subsidiaries in which Holdings exercises control. Investments in companies in
which Holdings exercises significant influence, but which the Company does not control (generally 20% to 50% ownership interest), are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Investments in companies in which the Company has less than a 20% ownership interest
and does not exercise significant influence are accounted for at cost. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Fiscal Year

Effective March 23, 2005, the Company changed its fiscal year end from the last Wednesday in January to the Saturday closest to January 31st.
In fiscal 2006, the Saturday nearest January 31st was February 3, 2007. Therefore, fiscal 2006 consisted of 53 weeks, with the additional week
occurring in the fourth quarter. Both fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 consisted of 52 weeks. Unless otherwise stated, references to years in this report
relate to fiscal years rather than to calendar years. The following fiscal periods are presented in this report.

Fiscal year Reporting Entity Ended Weeks
2006 Sears Holdings Corporation February 3, 2007 53
2005 Sears Holdings Corporation January 28, 2006 52
2004 Kmart Holding Corporation January 26, 2005 52

Sears Canada�s fiscal year end is the Saturday closest to December 31st. The results of operations for Sears Canada are reported to Holdings on a
one-month lag. Therefore, the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 include operating results for
Sears Canada from January 1, 2006 through December 30, 2006 and March 25, 2005 through December 31, 2005, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions about future events. The estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the
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SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

reporting period. The Company evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors that
management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Adjustments to estimates and assumptions are made when facts and
circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be determined with absolute certainty, actual results may differ from the
estimates used in preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Significant estimates and assumptions are required as part of
determining inventory valuation, estimating depreciation, amortization and recoverability of long-lived assets, establishing self-insurance,
warranty, legal and other reserves, establishing valuation allowances on deferred income tax assets and reserves for tax examination exposures,
and calculating retirement benefits.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. The Company also
includes within cash equivalents deposits in-transit from banks for payments related to third-party credit card and debit card transactions.

The Company classifies outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit within other current liabilities and reduces cash and cash equivalents
when these checks clear the bank on which they were drawn. Outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit included in other current
liabilities were $353 million and $444 million at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical experience and on a specific identification basis. Allowances for
doubtful accounts on accounts receivable balances were $29 million and $35 million as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.
The Company�s accounts receivable balance is comprised of various vendor-related and customer-related accounts receivable, including
receivables related to the Company�s pharmacy operations.

Merchandise Inventories

Merchandise inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. For Kmart and Sears Domestic, cost is primarily determined using the retail
inventory method (�RIM�). Kmart merchandise inventories are valued under the RIM using primarily a first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost flow
assumption. Sears Domestic merchandise inventories are valued under the RIM using primarily a last-in, first-out (LIFO) cost flow assumption.
For Sears Canada, cost is determined using the average cost method, based on individual items.

Inherent in the RIM calculation are certain significant management judgments and estimates including, among others, merchandise markons,
markups, markdowns and shrinkage, which significantly impact the ending inventory valuation at cost as well as resulting gross margins. The
methodologies utilized by the Company in its application of the RIM are consistent for all periods presented. Such methodologies include the
development of the cost-to-retail ratios, the groupings of homogenous classes of merchandise, the development of shrinkage and obsolescence
reserves, the accounting for price changes and the computations inherent in the LIFO adjustment (where applicable). Management believes that
the Company�s RIM provides an inventory valuation that reasonably approximates cost and results in carrying inventory at the lower of cost or
market.
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SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Approximately 55% of consolidated merchandise inventories are valued using LIFO. To estimate the effects of inflation on inventories, the
Company utilizes external price indices determined by an outside source, the Bureau of Labor Statistics. If the FIFO method of inventory
valuation had been used instead of the LIFO method, merchandise inventories would have been $29 million higher at February 3, 2007 and $4
million higher at January 28, 2006.

Effective January 27, 2005, the Company changed its method of accounting for certain indirect buying, warehousing and distribution costs. See
Note 3 for further discussion of this change in accounting principle.

Vendor Rebates and Allowances

The Company receives rebates and allowances from certain vendors through a variety of programs and arrangements intended to offset the
Company�s costs of promoting and selling certain vendor products. These vendor payments are recorded as a reduction to the cost of merchandise
inventories when earned and, thereafter, as a reduction of cost of sales, buying and occupancy as the merchandise is sold. Up-front consideration
received from vendors linked to purchases or other commitments is initially deferred and amortized ratably to cost of sales, buying and
occupancy over the life of the contract or as performance of the activities specified by the vendor to earn the fee is completed.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Additions and substantial betterments are capitalized and include
expenditures that materially extend the useful lives of existing facilities and equipment. Maintenance and repairs that do not materially improve
or extend the lives of the respective assets are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation expense, which includes depreciation on assets under capital leases, is recorded over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets using the straight-line method for financial statement purposes, and accelerated methods for tax purposes. The range of lives are generally
20 to 50 years for buildings, 3 to 10 years for furniture, fixtures and equipment, and 3 to 5 years for computer systems and computer equipment.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the associated lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Costs Associated with Exit Activities

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 144, �Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived
Assets,� the carrying value of long-lived assets, including property and equipment, is evaluated whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that a potential impairment has occurred relative to a given asset or assets. Factors that could result in an impairment review include, but
are not limited to, a current period cash flow loss combined with a history of cash flow losses or a projection that demonstrates continuing losses
associated with the use of a long-lived asset, significant changes in the manner of use of the assets or significant changes in business strategies.
An impairment loss is recognized when the estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset plus net proceeds
expected from disposition of the asset (if any) are less than the carrying value of the asset. When an impairment loss is recognized, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its estimated fair value as determined based on quoted market prices or through the use of other valuation
techniques.

A liability is recognized for costs associated with location closings, primarily future lease costs (net of estimated sublease income), and is
charged to income when the Company ceases to use the location.
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SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Goodwill, Tradenames and Other Intangible Assets

Tradenames acquired as part of the Merger account for the majority of the Company�s intangible assets recognized in the consolidated balance
sheet. The majority of these tradename assets, such as Kenmore, Craftsman and Lands� End, are expected to generate cash flows indefinitely, do
not have estimable or finite useful lives and, therefore, are accounted for as indefinite-lived assets not subject to amortization. Certain intangible
assets, including favorable lease rights, contractual arrangements and customer lists, have estimable, finite useful lives, which are used as the
basis for their amortization. The estimated useful lives of such assets are determined using a number of factors, including the demand for the
asset, competition and the level of expenditure required to maintain the cash flows associated with the asset.

The following summarizes the Company�s intangible assets as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively, the amortization expenses
recorded for the fiscal years then ended, as well as the Company�s estimated amortization expense for the next five fiscal years.

February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006

millions

Weighted
Average

Life

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Amortized intangible assets
Favorable lease rights 21 $ 492 $ 97 $ 481 $ 53
Contractual arrangements and customer lists 8 240 58 225 27
Tradenames 9 62 13 57 6

794 168 763 86
Unamortized intangible assets
Tradenames 2,811 �  2,771 �  

Total $ 3,605 $ 168 $ 3,534 $ 86

Aggregate Amortization Expense
Fiscal 2006 $ 87
Fiscal 2005 99

Estimated Amortization
Fiscal 2007 $ 89
Fiscal 2008 78
Fiscal 2009 70
Fiscal 2010 64
Fiscal 2011 59

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in business combinations accounted for under the
purchase method. The Company recorded $1.7 billion in goodwill in connection with the Merger. Additionally, the Company recorded $167
million in connection with its acquisition of an additional 16% interest in Sears Canada.
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Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment during fiscal 2006 are as follows:

millions
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Total
Balance, January 29, 2006 $ 1,585 $ 99 $ 1,684
Finalization of purchase accounting(1) 37 �  37
Acquisition of additional interest in Sears Canada �  167 167
Tax settlements affecting Merger-related goodwill (188) (8) (196)

Balance, February 3, 2007 $ 1,434 $ 258 $ 1,692

(1) The Company completed the purchase price allocation for the Merger during the first quarter of fiscal 2006. As a result, goodwill
attributable to the Merger increased by approximately $37 million, primarily based on the receipt of additional information regarding the
fair values of certain properties and certain pre-Merger legal contingencies.

As the result of reaching various tax audit settlements during fiscal 2006 pertaining to pre-Merger periods, the Company reduced approximately
$196 million of tax liabilities with an offsetting credit recorded to goodwill. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes,�
resolution of these matters results in a direct credit to Merger-related goodwill.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,� goodwill is not amortized but requires testing for potential
impairment, at a minimum on an annual basis, or when indications of potential impairment exist. The impairment test for goodwill utilizes a fair
value approach. The impairment test for identifiable intangible assets not subject to amortization is also performed annually or when impairment
indications exist, and consists of a comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying amount. Identifiable intangible assets that
are subject to amortization are evaluated for impairment using a process similar to that used to evaluate other long-lived assets.

Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

From time to time, the Company uses derivative financial instruments, including interest rate swaps and caps to manage its exposure to
movements in interest rates, and foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency exposure of its net investment in Sears Canada
against adverse changes in exchange rates. In addition, the Company has entered into a certain number of total return swaps as a means for
investing a portion of the Company�s surplus cash. The Company recognizes all derivative instruments at fair value within either other assets or
other liabilities on its consolidated balance sheet.

When applying hedge accounting treatment to its derivative transactions, the Company formally documents its hedge relationships, including
identification of the hedging instruments and the hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking the
hedge transaction. The Company also formally assesses, both at inception and at least quarterly thereafter, whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in either the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item. If it is determined that
a derivative ceases to be a highly effective hedge, the Company discontinues hedge accounting.

For interest rate swaps and caps that have been designated and qualify as hedges, both the effective and ineffective portions of the changes in the
fair value of the derivative, along with the offsetting gain or loss on the designated hedged item that is attributable to the hedged risk, are
recognized in the consolidated statements of
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income in the same account as the hedged item, as a component of interest expense. Changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps and caps that
do not qualify as hedges are recognized currently as a component of interest expense. The foreign currency forward contracts are recorded on the
consolidated balance sheet at fair value and, to the extent they have been designated and qualify for hedge accounting treatment, an offsetting
amount is recorded as a component of other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of those forward contracts for which hedge
accounting is not applied are recorded in the consolidated statement of income as a component of other income.

The Company has total return swaps as a means for investing a portion of the Company�s surplus cash. Changes in the fair value of the total
return swaps are recognized as a component of interest and investment income in the Company�s consolidated statements of income as they
occur.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, merchandise payables, credit facility borrowings and accrued liabilities are reflected in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost, which approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The fair value of the
Company�s debt and derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 7 and Note 8, respectively.

Financial instruments that potentially subject Holdings to concentration of credit risk consist principally of temporary cash investments, accounts
receivable and derivative financial instruments. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents in investment-grade, short-term instruments
with high quality financial institutions and, by policy, limits the amount of credit exposure in any one financial instrument. The Company uses
high credit quality counterparties to transact its derivative transactions.

Self-insurance Reserves

The Company is self-insured for certain costs related to health, workers� compensation, asbestos and environmental, automobile, warranty,
product and general liability claims. The Company obtains third-party insurance coverage to limit its exposure to certain of these self-insured
risks. A portion of these self-insured risks is managed through a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary. The Company�s liability reflected on the
consolidated balance sheet, classified within other liabilities (current and long-term), represents an estimate of the ultimate cost of claims
incurred as of the balance sheet date. In estimating this liability, the Company utilizes loss development factors based on Company-specific data
to project the future development of incurred losses. Loss estimates are adjusted based upon actual claims settlements and reported claims. The
liabilities for self-insured risks are discounted to their net present values.

Loss Contingencies

The Company accounts for contingent losses in accordance with SFAS No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies.� Under SFAS No. 5, loss
contingency provisions are recorded for probable losses at management�s best estimate of a loss, or when a best estimate cannot be made, a
minimum loss contingency amount is recorded. These estimates are often initially developed substantially earlier than the ultimate loss is
known, and the estimates are refined each accounting period, as additional information is known.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues include sales of merchandise, services and extended service contracts, net commissions earned from leased departments in retail
stores, delivery and handling revenues related to merchandise sold, and fees
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earned from co-branded credit card programs. The Company recognizes revenues from retail operations at the later of the point of sale or the
delivery of goods to the customer. Direct to customer revenues are recognized when the merchandise is delivered to the customer. Revenues
from product installation and repair services are recognized at the time the services are provided. Revenues from the sale of service contracts are
deferred and amortized over the lives of the associated contracts, while the associated service costs are expensed as incurred.

The Company earns revenues through arrangements with third-party financial institutions that manage and directly extend credit relative to the
Company�s co-branded credit card programs. The third-party financial institutions pay the Company for generating new accounts and sales
activity on co-branded cards, as well as for selling other financial products to cardholders. The Company recognizes these revenues in the period
earned, which is when all related Company performance obligations have been met. The Company sells gift cards to customers at its retails
stores and through its direct to customer operations. The gift cards generally do not have expiration dates. Revenues from gift cards are
recognized when (i) the gift card is redeemed by the customer, or (ii) the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by the customer is remote
(gift card breakage) and the Company determines that it does not have legal obligation to remit the value of the unredeemed gift cards to the
relevant jurisdictions.

Revenues from merchandise sales and services are reported net of estimated returns and allowances and exclude sales taxes. The reserve for
returns and allowances is calculated as a percentage of sales based on historical return percentages. Estimated returns are recorded as a reduction
of sales and cost of sales. The Company defers the recognition of layaway sales and profit until the period in which the merchandise is delivered
to the customer.

Cost of Sales, Buying and Occupancy Costs

Cost of sales, buying and occupancy are comprised principally of the costs of merchandise, buying, warehousing and distribution (including
receiving and store delivery costs), retail store occupancy costs, product repair and home service and installation costs, customer shipping and
handling costs, vendor allowances, markdowns and physical inventory losses.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses are comprised principally of payroll and benefits costs for retail and corporate employees, occupancy costs
of corporate facilities, advertising, pre-opening costs and other administrative expenses.

Pre-Opening Costs

Pre-opening and start-up activity costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, generally the first time the advertising occurs, and amounted to $2.2 billion, $2.0 billion, and $446
million for fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004, respectively. These costs are included within selling and administrative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109. Accordingly, the Company provides deferred income tax assets and
liabilities based on the estimated future tax effects of differences
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between the financial and tax bases of assets and liabilities based on currently enacted tax laws. The tax balances and income tax expense
recognized by the Company are based on management�s interpretation of the tax laws of multiple jurisdictions. Income tax expense also reflects
the Company�s best estimates and assumptions regarding, among other things, the level of future taxable income, interpretation of the tax laws,
and tax planning. Future changes in tax laws, changes in projected levels of taxable income, tax planning, and the adoption/implementation of
FIN 48 in fiscal 2007 (discussed below), could affect the effective tax rate and tax balances recorded by the Company.

Stock-based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation arrangements in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), �Share-Based Payments.� SFAS 123
(R) requires the Company to recognize as expense the fair value of all stock-based compensation awards including stock options, an accounting
method that the Company adopted voluntarily in fiscal 2003, and classification of excess tax benefits associated with share-based compensation
deductions as cash from financing activities rather than cash from operating activities. The Company recognizes compensation expense as
awards vest on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for each period. Diluted earnings per common share also includes the dilutive effect of potential common shares:
exercise of stock options, the conversion of convertible debt and the effect of restricted stock when dilutive.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) ratified the consensus reached on Emerging Issues Task Force (�EITF�) Issue
No. 06-03, �How Sales Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement
(That is, Gross Versus Net Presentation).� The EITF reached a consensus that the presentation of taxes on either a gross or a net basis is an
accounting policy decision that requires disclosure. EITF 06-3 is effective for the first interim or annual reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2006. The adoption of EITF 06-3 will not have any effect on the Company�s financial position or results of operations. The
Company�s revenues are reported net of sales taxes.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109� (�FIN 48�). This Interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process for recording within the financial statements
uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. In addition, FIN 48 provides guidance on derecognition, classification,
interest, penalties, accounting in interim periods and disclosure related to uncertain tax positions. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective as of the
beginning of the Company�s 2007 fiscal year. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of FIN 48, during the first quarter
of 2007, on its financial statements and operating results. The Company currently estimates that the adoption of FIN 48 will not have any
material impact on the Company�s financial position or results of operations. The Company�s evaluation of the impact of FIN 48 is continuing,
however, and is subject to revision when the Company completes its analysis.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (�SAB�) No. 108, �Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,� which provides interpretive guidance on the consideration of the effects of
prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. SAB No. 108 is effective for
annual
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financial statements for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The Company adopted SAB No. 108 for its financial statements for the
fiscal year ending February 3, 2007. Implementation of SAB No. 108 did not have a material impact on either the Company�s results of
operations or stockholder�s equity.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements.� SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies
under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those
accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this Statement does not require any new fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. The Company plans to adopt SFAS No. 157
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on
its financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, �Employers� Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.�
See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information regarding the impact of adopting this standard.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.� SFAS No. 159
expands the scope of specific types of assets and liabilities that an entity may carry at fair value on its statement of financial position, and offers
an irrevocable option to record the vast majority of financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in earnings.
SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, SFAS
No. 159 will have on its financial statements.

NOTE 2�THE MERGER

On March 24, 2005, Kmart and Sears completed the Merger pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 16, 2004 (the
�Merger Agreement�). Upon consummation of the Merger, Kmart and Sears became wholly-owned subsidiaries of Holdings.

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, Kmart shareholders received one share of Holdings common stock for each Kmart share owned.
Approximately 94.9 million shares of Holdings common stock were issued in exchange for all outstanding common stock of Kmart based on the
one-for-one ratio. Sears shareholders had the right to elect to receive $50 in cash or 0.5 of a share of Holdings common stock for each Sears
share owned. Sears shareholder elections were prorated to ensure that, in the aggregate, 55 percent of Sears shares were converted into Holdings
shares and 45 percent of Sears shares were converted to cash. Shares of Sears restricted common stock were converted into Holdings common
stock on a 0.5 for 1 basis. In aggregate, 62.2 million shares of Holdings common stock were issued to Sears shareholders at a value of
approximately $6.5 billion (based on the average closing price of $104.33 of Kmart�s common stock during the period from November 15, 2004
through November 19, 2004, two business days before and after the date the Merger was announced). In addition, approximately $5.4 billion in
cash was paid in consideration for (i) all outstanding shares of common stock of Sears, based upon the proration provisions of the Merger
Agreement, and (ii) all outstanding stock options of Sears. Including transaction costs of approximately $18 million, the total consideration paid
was approximately $11.9 billion.

In accordance with SFAS No. 141, �Business Combinations,� the Merger was treated as a purchase business combination for accounting purposes,
with Kmart designated as the acquirer. In identifying Kmart as the acquiring entity, the companies took into account the relative share ownership
of the Company after the Merger,
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the composition of the governing body of the combined entity and the designation of certain senior management positions. Accordingly, the
historical financial statements of Kmart serve as the historical financial statements of Holdings. The Company completed the purchase price
allocation for the Merger during the first quarter of fiscal 2006. As a result, goodwill attributable to the Merger increased by approximately $37
million, primarily based on the receipt of additional information regarding the fair values of certain properties and certain pre-acquisition legal
contingencies. The following summarizes the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the March 24, 2005 Merger date, based on the final
purchase price allocation.

millions
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,351
Merchandise inventories 6,134
Other current assets 1,977
Land 2,023
Buildings and leasehold improvements 5,958
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,750
Goodwill 1,721
Tradenames and other intangible assets 3,914
Other assets 475

Total assets acquired 28,303
Merchandise payables and other current liabilities 6,784
Unearned revenues (including non-current portion) 1,896
Total debt and capitalized lease obligations 4,421
Deferred income taxes 658
Pension and postretirement benefits 1,647
Minority interest and other liabilities 1,035

Total liabilities assumed 16,441

Net assets acquired $ 11,862

The Company allocated approximately $3.9 billion to identifiable intangible assets, of which approximately $2.8 billion related to the
indefinite-lived tradenames of Sears, Kenmore, Craftsman, Lands� End and DieHard. These indefinite-lived tradenames are not subject to
amortization as management expects these tradenames to generate cash flows indefinitely. The remaining intangible assets of $1.1 billion
recorded at the time of the Merger included finite-lived tradenames, favorable leases, contractual arrangements and customer lists, and will be
amortized over their estimated useful lives. Approximately $0.4 billion of contractual-arrangement-related intangibles were eliminated
subsequent to the Merger in connection with the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Services Operations in November 2005.
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Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information

The unaudited pro forma financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of operations of Kmart and Sears for fiscal
2005 as though the Merger had occurred as of the beginning of fiscal 2005. The unaudited pro forma financial information is presented for
informational purposes only and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the Merger had taken place at the
beginning of the period presented, or that may result in the future. In addition, Holdings is realizing operating synergies as a result of the Merger.
The following unaudited pro forma financial information has not been adjusted to reflect any operating efficiencies realized as a result of the
Merger.

millions, except earnings per share 2005
Revenues $ 54,261
Operating income 2,073
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 879
Net income 789
Diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 5.40
Diluted earnings per share $ 4.85

NOTE 3�CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

Accounting For Certain Indirect Buying, Warehousing and Distribution Costs

Effective January 27, 2005, the Company changed its method of accounting for certain indirect buying, warehousing and distribution costs. Prior
to this change, the Company had included indirect buying, warehousing and distribution costs as inventoriable costs. Beginning in fiscal 2005,
such costs have been expensed as incurred, which is the method of accounting previously followed by Sears. The Company believes that this
change provides a better measurement of operating results in light of changes to the Company�s supply chain to realize cost savings from the
Merger, the closure of certain facilities and the combined capacity of the existing distribution and headquarters facilities. In accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion (�APB�) No. 20, �Accounting Changes,� changes in accounting policy to conform the acquirer�s policy to that
of the acquired entity are treated as a change in accounting principle. The indirect buying, warehousing and distribution costs that were
capitalized to inventory as of January 26, 2005 have been reflected in the fiscal 2005 consolidated statement of income as a cumulative effect of
a change in accounting principle in the amount of $90 million, net of income taxes of $58 million.
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Accounting for Pension and Postretirement Benefits

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, �Employers� Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.�
SFAS No. 158 became effective for the Company as of February 3, 2007, and requires recognition of an asset or liability in the statement of
financial position reflecting the funded status of pension and other postretirement benefit plans, with current-year changes in the funded status
recognized in shareholders� equity. SFAS No. 158 did not change the existing criteria for measurement of periodic benefit costs, plan assets or
benefit obligations. The following table summarizes the incremental effects of the initial adoption of SFAS No. 158 on the consolidated balance
sheet at February 3, 2007.

In millions

Before
Application
of SFAS 158

SFAS 158
Adjustments

After
Application
of SFAS 158

Other assets $ 449 $ (50) $ 399
Total assets 30,116 (50) 30,066
Other current liabilities 3,922 43 3,965
Pension and postretirement benefits 1,621 27 1,648
Minority interest and other liabilities 2,998 (195) 2,803
Total liabilities 17,477 (125) 17,352
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (7) 75 68
Total shareholder�s equity 12,639 75 12,714

In fiscal 2005, the Company changed the actuarial valuation measurement date for certain pension and postretirement plans from the last
Wednesday in January to December 31st to facilitate the year-end reporting process. The effect of this change did not have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 4�ACQUISITION OF MINORITY INTEREST IN SEARS CANADA

During fiscal 2006, the Company increased its majority interest in Sears Canada from 54% to 70% by acquiring 17.8 million common shares of
Sears Canada pursuant to its take-over bid for Sears Canada, first announced in December 2005. The Company paid a total of $282 million for
the additional 17.8 million common shares acquired and has accounted for the acquisition of additional interests in Sears Canada as a purchase
business combination for accounting purposes. The total amount paid for shares acquired has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the respective acquisition dates. Total consideration for the additional interest acquired
exceeded the associated proportionate pre-acquisition carrying value for Sears Canada by approximately $188 million. The Company allocated
the excess to real property ($5 million), trademarks and other identifiable intangible assets ($55 million), goodwill ($167 million) and other
assets and liabilities (-$39 million). This purchase price allocation is preliminary and further refinements may be necessary. The acquisition of
the additional interest in Sears Canada was not material to the Company�s consolidated results of operations or financial position.

On August 8, 2006, the Ontario Securities Commission (�OSC�) issued an order in respect of Holdings� offer for the outstanding shares of Sears
Canada that required Holdings to, among other things, exclude the votes of approximately 30% of the shares held by shareholders of Sears
Canada other than Holdings at the commencement of the offer from the calculation of the majority of the minority approval requirement for the
contemplated second step subsequent acquisition transaction (the �OSC Order�). Holdings appealed that decision to the Ontario Superior Court
(Divisional Court), and on September 19, 2006, the Divisional Court dismissed the appeal. On November 14, 2006, the Court of Appeal for
Ontario denied Holdings� motion for leave to appeal from the decision of the Divisional Court, which resulted in the exhaustion of Holdings�
appeal rights. At a
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Special Meeting of Sears Canada shareholders held on November 14, 2006, 58.3% of the Sears Canada shares voted by minority shareholders
were voted in favor of the proposed acquisition transaction. Notwithstanding that the transaction received favorable votes from holders of a
majority of the Sears Canada minority shares, as a result of the OSC Order, the transaction is considered not to have received the majority of the
minority approval required for the transaction to proceed.

The takeover bid expired on November 27, 2006.

NOTE 5�SALE OF SEARS CANADA CREDIT AND FINANCIAL SERVICES OPERATIONS

On November 15, 2005, Sears Canada completed the sale of substantially all of the assets (principally net credit card receivables of $1.3 billion
and customer relationship intangibles of $0.4 billion) and liabilities of its Credit and Financial Services operations to JPMorgan Chase & Co.
(�JPMorgan Chase�) for approximately $2.0 billion in cash proceeds, net of securitized receivables and other related costs and taxes.

The Company�s fiscal 2005 operating income reflects a pretax gain of $317 million from the sale of this business. The sale, however, had no
impact on Holdings net income. In applying purchase accounting for the Merger, the Company, as 54% beneficial owner of Sears Canada at the
time of the Merger, adjusted Sears Canada�s assets and liabilities to fair value only to the extent of its proportionate share of ownership in these
assets and liabilities. The remaining portion of each asset and liability, representing the minority interest�s proportionate ownership, was recorded
at historical book value. Therefore, the excess of sales proceeds over the recorded values for Sears Canada�s assets sold and liabilities transferred
was attributable solely to the minority shareholder interests, as the portion of proceeds allocable to the Company�s proportionate interest was
equal to the Merger assigned fair value for such assets and liabilities. Accordingly, the gain, solely allocable to the minority interest, was
properly eliminated via an increase in minority interest expense, resulting in no net gain to Holdings.

Sears Canada used a portion of the cash proceeds it generated from the sale to fund an extraordinary cash dividend and a tax-free return of stated
capital to shareholders of record on December 16, 2005. Holdings, as beneficial owner of approximately 54% of the outstanding common stock
of Sears Canada at the time of the distribution, received an after-tax distribution of approximately $877 million.

The following summarizes the assets and liabilities of the sold operations as of November 15, 2005.

millions
Credit card receivables, net of securitized amounts $ 1,347
Other assets, primarily credit card intangibles 425

Assets sold 1,772

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7

Net assets sold $ 1,765

Prior to the sale of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Services operations, Sears Canada had securitized certain of its credit card receivables
through trusts. Sears Canada sold undivided co-ownership interests in its portfolio of current and deferred charge accounts receivable to two
separate trusts and retained the right to receive the income generated by the undivided co-ownership interests sold to the trusts in excess of the
trusts� stipulated share of service charge revenues. The securitization trusts were transferred to JPMorgan Chase in connection with the sale of
this business. During fiscal 2005, the amounts recognized as income from the sale of the credit card receivables to the trusts were not material.
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The Company�s consolidated financial statements include the results of Sears Canada�s Credit and Financial Services operations from March 25,
2005 up to November 14, 2005.

NOTE 6�RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES

In fiscal 2005, the Company initiated a number of restructuring activities including actions to integrate the home office functions of Kmart and
Sears Domestic and align its workforce accordingly. Approximately 1,435 Kmart associates were notified that their positions had been relocated,
were under review, or had been eliminated, and approximately 780 former Sears employees were notified of the decision to eliminate their
positions in connection with the home office integration efforts. Also during fiscal 2005, Sears Canada implemented a series of productivity
improvement initiatives, which included a workforce reduction of approximately 1,200 associates. These initiatives resulted in the recognition of
$28 million and $111 million of restructuring costs for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively.

As of February 3, 2007, all actions related to these activities have been substantially completed. The remaining reserve balance of $8 million at
February 3, 2007 represents payments to be made in fiscal 2007 in accordance with the Company�s severance and relocation plans.

Following is a summary of the fiscal 2006 activity in the reserves established for these integration and productivity initiatives:

millions

Estimated
Total

Cumulative
Costs to

be
Incurred

Cumulative
Costs

recognized
through

February 3,
2007

Ending
Reserve
Balance

January 28,
2006

Fiscal
2006

Additions

Fiscal
2006
Cash

Payments

Ending
Reserve
Balance

February 3,
2007

Kmart $ 63 $ 63 $ 21 $ 9 $ 26 $ 4
Sears Domestic 59 59 2 �  2 �  
Sears Canada 76 76 13 19 28 4

Total $ 198 $ 198 $ 36 $ 28 $ 56 $ 8

NOTE 7�BORROWINGS

Total borrowings outstanding as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 were $3.6 billion and $4.0 billion, respectively. Short-term
borrowings consist of unsecured commercial paper of $94 million and $178 million at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively. The
weighted-average annual interest rate paid on short-term debt was 5.2% in fiscal 2006 and 2.7% in fiscal 2005.
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Long-term debt is as follows:

ISSUE
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
millions
SEARS ROEBUCK ACCEPTANCE CORP.
6.25% to 7.50% Notes, due 2007 to 2043 $ 1,398 $ 1,526
5.20% to 7.50% Medium-Term Notes, due 2007 to 2013 414 588
SEARS DC CORP.
9.07% to 9.20% Medium-Term Notes, due 2012 26 27
ORCHARD SUPPLY HARDWARE STORES CORPORATION
Commercial Mortgage-Backed Loan, variable interest rate above LIBOR, due 2007(1) 120 120
Senior Secured Revolving Line of Credit, variable interest rate above LIBOR 34 56
Senior Secured Term Loan, variable rate of interest above LIBOR, due 2013(2) 200 �  
SEARS CANADA INC.
6.55% to 7.45% Debentures and Medium-Term Notes, due 2007 to 2010 380 551
CAPITALIZED LEASE OBLIGATIONS 800 864
OTHER NOTES AND MORTGAGES 90 106

Total long-term borrowings 3,462 3,838
Current maturities (613) (570)

Long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations $ 2,849 $ 3,268

Weighted-average annual interest rate on long-term debt 6.8% 5.9%

(1) The Commercial Mortgage-Backed Loan is collateralized by certain real properties of an Orchard Supply Hardware Stores Corporation
(�OSH�) wholly-owned subsidiary with a total carrying value of approximately $185 million as of February 3, 2007. The term of the loan
may be extended for up to three additional years. As management of OSH has both the ability and intent to extend the term for an
additional year period in fiscal 2007, the Company has classified the carrying value of this loan within long-term debt and capitalized lease
obligations on its consolidated balance sheet as of February 3, 2007, and has included the principal amount due under the loan within fiscal
2008 maturities for purposes of the below schedule of long-term debt maturities.

(2) In December 2006, a subsidiary of OSH generated $198 million of debt proceeds, net of approximately $2 million in issuance costs, in
connection with its entering into a five year, $200 million Senior Secured Term Loan. The proceeds of this borrowing were used by OSH
to pay Holdings the remaining loan payable issued in connection with OSH�s recapitalization in November 2005. The Senior Secured Term
Loan is non-recourse to Holdings. The Senior Secured Term Loan is collateralized by a priority interest in all non-real estate assets of OSH
and a second lien on OSH�s inventory, and requires quarterly repayments equal to 0.25% of the then outstanding principal balance.

The fair value of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations was $2.8 billion and $3.2 billion at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006,
respectively. The fair value of the Company�s debt was estimated based on quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on current rates
offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities.
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As of February 3, 2007, long-term debt maturities for the next five years and thereafter were as follows:

millions
2007 $ 613
2008 356
2009 376
2010 566
2011 and thereafter 1,551

$ 3,462

Interest

millions 2006 2005 2004
COMPONENTS OF INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest expense $ 283 $ 236 $ 53
Accretion of obligations at net present value 45 62 50
Amortization of debt issuance costs 9 8 34
Accretion of debt discount on 9% convertible note �  17 9

Interest expense $ 337 $ 323 $ 146

Debt Repurchase Authorization

In fiscal 2005, the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company authorized the repurchase, subject to market conditions and
other factors, of up to $500 million of the outstanding indebtedness of the Company and its subsidiaries in open market or privately negotiated
transactions. The Company�s wholly-owned finance subsidiary, Sears Roebuck Acceptance Corp. (�SRAC�), has repurchased $158 million of its
outstanding notes, including $2 million repurchased during fiscal 2006, thereby reducing the unused balance of this authorization to $342
million.

Credit Agreement

The Company�s $4.0 billion, five-year credit agreement (the �Credit Agreement�) has an expiration date of March 2010 and is available for general
corporate purposes and includes a $1.5 billion letter of credit sublimit. The Credit Agreement is a revolving credit facility under which SRAC
and Kmart Corporation are the borrowers. The Credit Agreement is guaranteed by Holdings and certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries and
is secured by a first lien on domestic inventory, credit card accounts receivable and the proceeds thereof. Availability under the Credit
Agreement is determined pursuant to a borrowing base formula, based on domestic inventory, subject to certain limitations. As of February 3,
2007 and January 28, 2006, the Company had $196 million and $428 million of letters of credit outstanding under the Credit Agreement,
respectively, with $3.8 billion and $3.6 billion, respectively, of availability remaining under the Credit Agreement. There were no direct
borrowings under the facility during either fiscal 2006 or fiscal 2005. The Credit Agreement does not contain provisions that would restrict
borrowings or letter of credit issuances based on material adverse changes or credit ratings.

The Company�s previous credit agreement (the �Credit Facility�) was an $800 million revolving credit facility with an equivalent letter of credit
sub-limit. In fiscal 2004, the Company reduced the size of the Credit Facility, and effective January 3, 2005, the Company voluntarily terminated
the Credit Facility. In conjunction with these actions, the Company accelerated the amortization of $23 million in associated debt issuance costs.
From its inception, the Credit Facility was used only to support outstanding letters of credit.
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Letter of Credit Agreement

The Company has a letter of credit agreement (the �LC Agreement�) with a commitment amount of up to $1.0 billion. The LC Agreement, which
is renewable annually upon agreement of the parties, is scheduled for renewal in August 2007. As of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006,
there were $686 million and $366 million of letters of credit outstanding, respectively, under the LC Agreement.

Cash Collateral

Under the terms of the LC Agreement, the Company has the ability to post cash, inventory or other letters of credit, including letters of credit
issued under the Credit Agreement, as collateral. However, the Credit Agreement prohibits the Company from using inventory as collateral
under the LC Agreement. The cash collateral account is subject to a pledge and security agreement pursuant to which if the Company elects to
post cash collateral, it must maintain cash in an amount equal to 100.5% of the face value of letters of credit outstanding. The Company had
$690 million and $368 million posted as collateral under the LC Agreement as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively. The
Company continues to classify the cash collateral posted under the terms of the LC Agreement as cash and cash equivalents due to the
Company�s ability to substitute these letters of credit with letters of credit under the Credit Agreement, which does not require cash collateral,
and its ability to provide letters of credit under the Credit Agreement as collateral. There are no provisions in the LC Agreement that would
restrict issuances based on credit ratings, but issuances could be restricted under certain circumstances based on a material adverse change.

The Company also posts cash collateral for certain self-insurance programs. The Company continues to classify the cash collateral posted for
self-insurance programs as cash and cash equivalents due to the Company�s ability to substitute letters of credit for the cash at any time at its
discretion. As of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, $32 million and $98 million of cash, respectively, was posted as collateral for
self-insurance programs.

Orchard Supply Hardware LLC (�LLC�) Credit Agreement

In November 2005, LLC entered into a five-year, $130 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the �LLC Facility�), which includes a
$25 million letter of credit sublimit. The LLC Facility is available for LLC�s general corporate purposes and is secured by a first lien on
substantially all of LLC�s non-real estate assets. Availability under the LLC Facility is determined pursuant to a borrowing base formula based on
inventory and accounts and credit card accounts receivable, subject to certain limitations. As of February 3, 2007, $36 million was outstanding
under the LLC Facility consisting of $34 million in borrowings and $2 million in outstanding letters of credit. As of January 28, 2006,
$61 million was outstanding under the LLC Facility consisting of $56 million in borrowings and $5 million in outstanding letters of credit.

Convertible Notes

At the time of Kmart�s emergence from bankruptcy, ESL Investments, Inc. (�ESL�), through its affiliates, was issued $60 million principal of 9%
convertible notes (the �Notes�) which were convertible to equity at a price equal to $10 per share at the option of the holder at any time prior to
May 2006. On January 31, 2005, ESL affiliates converted, in accordance with their terms, the outstanding Notes and six months of accrued
interest into an aggregate of 6.3 million shares of Kmart common stock. In consideration of the conversion of these Notes prior to maturity, ESL
and its affiliates received a $3 million payment from Kmart. The cash payment was equivalent to the approximate discounted after-tax cost of
the future interest payments that would have otherwise been paid by Kmart to ESL affiliates in the absence of the early conversion. In
conjunction with the conversion, the Company recognized the remaining related unamortized debt discount of $17 million as interest expense.
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Wholly-owned Insurance Subsidiary and Inter-company Notes

As noted in Note 1, the Company has numerous types of insurable risks, including workers� compensation, product and general liability,
automobile, warranty, and asbestos and environmental claims. Also, as discussed in Note 1, the Company sells extended service contracts to its
customers. The associated risks are managed through a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary of the Company. In accordance with applicable
insurance regulations, the insurance subsidiary holds investment grade securities to support the insurance coverage it provides.

The Company has transferred certain domestic real estate and intellectual property (i.e. trademarks) into separate wholly-owned, bankruptcy
remote subsidiaries. These bankruptcy remote subsidiaries lease the real estate property to Sears and license the use of the trademarks to Sears
and Kmart. Further, the bankruptcy remote subsidiaries have issued asset-backed notes that are collateralized by the aforementioned real estate
rental streams and intellectual property licensing fee streams. Cash flows received from rental streams and licensing fees streams paid by Sears,
Kmart and, potentially in the future, other affiliates or third parties will be used for the payment of fees, interest and principal on the
asset-backed notes issued. Since the inception of these subsidiaries, the debt securities have been entirely held by wholly-owned consolidated
subsidiaries of the Company in support of the Company�s insurance activities. The net book value of the securitized intellectual property assets
was approximately $1.0 billion and $0.0 billion at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively. The net book value of the securitized
real estate assets was approximately $1.0 billion and $1.1 billion at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.

NOTE 8�DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

Foreign Currency Forwards

As of February 3, 2007, the Company had a series of foreign currency forward contracts outstanding with a total Canadian notional value of
$400 million and with a weighted-average remaining life of 0.4 years. These contracts have been designated and qualify as hedges of the foreign
currency exposure of the Company�s net investment in Sears Canada. The aggregate fair value of the forward contracts as of February 3, 2007,
$26 million, has been recorded as an asset on the Company�s consolidated balance sheet, with an offsetting amount recorded as a component of
other comprehensive income.

As of January 28, 2006, the Company had a series of foreign currency forward contracts outstanding with a total Canadian notional value of
$800 million and with a weighted-average remaining life of 0.1 years. A total of $361 million in Canadian notional value of these contracts was
designated and qualified as hedges of the foreign currency exposure of the Company�s net investment in Sears Canada, and the remaining $439
million in Canadian notional value were for contracts for which hedge accounting was not applied subsequent to December 16, 2005. The
aggregate fair value of these forward contracts as of January 28, 2006, negative $45 million, was recorded as a liability on the Company�s
consolidated balance sheet. An offsetting amount of $42 million was recorded as a component of other comprehensive income for those
contracts for which hedge accounting was applied, and a loss of $3 million recorded in the Company�s consolidated income statement as a
component of other income for those contracts for which hedge accounting was not applied.

The Company settled certain foreign currency forward contracts during both fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2006, the Company paid
a net amount of $42 million relative to such settlements. For those contracts for which hedge accounting had been applied, the Company
recorded an offsetting amount of $48 million as a component of other comprehensive income. The Company recorded a gain of $6 million
during fiscal 2006 for the remaining contracts that were settled, for which hedge accounting was not applied. This gain has been classified as
part of other income within the consolidated statement of income for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007. During fiscal 2005, the Company
paid a net amount of $9 million relative to contract
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settlements and, as hedge accounting was applied to such contracts, an offsetting amount was recorded as a component of other comprehensive
income.

In addition, during fiscal 2006, Sears Canada entered into cross-currency interest rate swaps designated as a hedge of certain U.S.
dollar-denominated floating-rate debt issued by Sears Canada. These swaps were settled during the third quarter of fiscal 2006 concurrent with
the repayment of the hedged debt and, as a result, the Company recorded the cost of settling these swaps, $8 million, as a component of interest
expense in the Company�s consolidated statements of income for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007.

Total Return Swaps

The Company, from time to time, invests its surplus cash in various securities and financial instruments, including total return swaps, which are
derivative contracts that synthetically replicate the economic return characteristics of one or more underlying marketable equity securities. In
exchange for receiving the return tied to the position underlying a total return swap, the Company pays a floating rate of interest tied to LIBOR
on the notional amount of the contract. The fair value of a total return swap is based on the quoted market price of the underlying position and
changes in fair value of the total return swaps are recognized currently in earnings. During fiscal 2006, the Company entered into total return
swaps and recognized $74 million of investment income, consisting of realized gains of $84 million and unrealized losses of $2 million less $8
million of interest cost. As of February 3, 2007, the total return swaps had an aggregate notional amount of $375 million and a fair value of $5
million. The aggregate fair value of the total return swaps has been recorded as a current receivable on the consolidated balance sheet as of
February 3, 2007. These investments are highly concentrated and involve substantial risks. Accordingly, the Company�s financial position and
quarterly and annual results of operations may be positively or negatively materially affected based on the timing, magnitude and performance
of these investments.

Under the terms of the transactions with the respective counterparties, the Company is required to post cash collateral of up to 25 percent of the
notional amount of the underlying total return swap position, plus the amount of any unrealized losses on the positions. As of February 3, 2007,
the collateral balance held by the Company�s counterparties based on the Company�s total return swaps� aggregate notional amount of $375
million was $80 million and was recorded as a current receivable on the Company�s consolidated balance sheet.

Financial Guarantees

The Company issues various types of guarantees in the normal course of business. The Company had the following guarantees outstanding as of
February 3, 2007:

millions
Bank
Issued

SRAC
Issued Other Total

Standby letters of credit $ 888 $ 119 $ �  $ 1,007
Commercial letters of credit 71 178 �  249
Secondary lease obligations and performance guarantee �  �  90 90
The secondary lease obligations relate to certain store leases of previously divested Sears businesses. The Company remains secondarily liable if
the primary obligor defaults. As of February 3, 2007, the Company had a $17 million liability recorded in other liabilities, which represents the
Company�s current estimate of potential obligations related to these leases. The performance guarantee relates to certain municipal bonds issued
in connection with the Company�s headquarters building. Payments under this guarantee were $18 million in fiscal 2006. This guarantee expires
in 2007.
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In addition, in November 2005, Holdings issued a call option to the private equity fund of Ares Management LLC (�Ares�) in connection with
Ares� 19.9% investment in the voting stock of OSH. Ares paid the Company $59 million in cash for the 19.9% equity interest and the call option,
a three-year option to purchase, for $127 million, additional shares in OSH that represented 30.2% of OSH�s outstanding voting stock at the time
of the option�s issuance. The Company has recorded the fair value of this option as a liability on its consolidated balance sheet, and changes in
the fair value of the option have been recorded as a component of other income in the Company�s consolidated statement of income.

NOTE 9�INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME

The following table sets forth the components of interest and investment income as reported in the Company�s consolidated statements of
income. The Company has reclassified previously reported amounts for interest income and other investment income to conform to
current-period presentation.

millions 2006 2005 2004
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents $ 151 $ 85 $ 38
Total return swap income 74 �  �  
Other investment income 29 42 3

Total $ 254 $ 127 $ 41

Interest Income on Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company recorded interest income of $151 million, $85 million and $38 million for fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively,
primarily related to interest earned on cash and cash equivalents. These cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. The Company�s invested cash may include, from time to time, investments in,
but not limited to, commercial paper, U.S. federal, state and municipal government securities, floating-rate notes, repurchase agreements and
money market funds. All invested cash amounts are readily available to the Company.

Total Return Swap Income

As discussed above in Note 8, the Company, from time to time, invests its surplus cash in various securities and financial instruments, including
total return swaps. During fiscal 2006, the Company entered into total return swaps and recognized $74 million of investment income consisting
of realized gains of $84 million and unrealized losses of $2 million less $8 million of interest cost.

Other Investment Income

Other investment income primarily includes income generated by (and sales of investments in) certain real estate joint ventures and other equity
investments in which the Company does not have a controlling interest.
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NOTE 10�BENEFIT PLANS

The Company sponsors a number of pension and postretirement benefit plans. Expenses for retirement and savings-related benefit plans were as
follows:

millions 2006 2005 2004
Retirement/401(k) Savings Plans $ 96 $ 83 $ 19
Pension plans (4) 73 16
Postretirement benefits 46 33 �  

Total $ 138 $ 189 $ 35

Retirement Savings Plans

The Company sponsors Sears and Kmart 401(k) retirement savings plans for employees meeting certain minimum age and service requirements.
The Company matches a portion of employee contributions made to the plans. Total expense related to the Retirement Savings Plans was $96
million, $83 million and $19 million in fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively.

Kmart�s Benefit Plans

Prior to 1996, the Predecessor Company (defined in Note 13) had a tax-qualified and a non-qualified defined benefit pension plan, which
covered eligible associates who met certain requirements of age, length of service, and hours worked per year. Effective January 31, 1996, the
pension plans were frozen, and associates no longer earn additional benefits under the plans.

The non-qualified, defined benefit plan is for certain current and former Kmart associates, and is funded as benefits are paid. The benefit
obligation was $2 million at February 3, 2007 and $2 million at January 28, 2006, and is included in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet. The projected benefit obligation is equal to the accumulated benefit obligation for all periods presented.

Full-time Kmart associates who have worked 10 years and who have retired after age 55 have the option of participation in Kmart�s medical plan
until age 65. The plan is contributory, with retiree contributions adjusted annually. The accounting for the plan anticipates future cost-sharing
changes that are consistent with the Company�s expressed intent to increase the retiree contribution rate annually. The accrued post-retirement
benefit costs were $0 million and $1 million as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.

Sears� Benefit Plans

Expense associated with the Sears benefit plans is included in the consolidated financial statements subsequent to the effective date of the
Merger. Certain domestic full-time and part-time employees of Sears are eligible to participate in noncontributory defined benefit plans after
meeting age and service requirements. Substantially all full-time Canadian employees as well as some part-time employees are eligible to
participate in contributory defined benefit plans. Pension benefits are based on length of service, compensation and, in certain plans, social
security or other benefits. Funding for the various plans is determined using various actuarial cost methods.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Sears domestic pension plan was frozen and domestic associates no longer earn additional benefits under the plan.
Benefits earned through December 31, 2005 will be paid out to eligible
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participants following retirement. The effect of this plan change, which was to reduce the projected benefit obligation of the Sears domestic
pension plan by approximately $80 million, has been recorded as a component of purchase accounting.

In addition to providing pension benefits, Sears provides domestic and Canadian employees and retirees certain medical benefits. Certain
domestic Sears retirees are also provided life insurance benefits. The Company shares the cost of the retiree medical benefits with retirees based
on years of service. Generally, the Company�s share of these benefit costs will be capped at Sears� contribution calculated during the year of
retirement. Sears� postretirement benefit plans are not funded. The Company has the right to modify or terminate these plans.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company eliminated its subsidization of retiree medical costs under the Sears domestic retiree medical plan for
those Sears retirees who were under age 65 as of December 31, 2005. The effect of this plan change, which was to reduce the projected benefit
obligation associated with the plan by approximately $174 million, has been recorded as a component of purchase accounting.

Changes in Accounting for Pensions and Postretirement Plans

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158 which became effective for the Company as of February 3, 2007, and requires recognition
of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position reflecting the funded status of pension and other postretirement benefit plans, with
current-year changes in the funded status recognized in stockholders� equity. SFAS No. 158 did not change the existing criteria for measurement
of periodic benefit costs, plan assets or benefit obligations. See Note 3 for the incremental effects of the initial adoption of SFAS No. 158 on the
Company�s consolidated financial position at February 3, 2007.

In fiscal 2005, the Company changed the measurement date of its benefit programs from the last Wednesday in January to December 31. The
Company believes the one-month change of the measurement date is a preferable change as it allows more time for management to plan and
execute its review of the completeness and accuracy of its benefit programs results. The change did not have a material effect on retained
earnings as of January 27, 2005, and income from continuing operations, net income, and related per share amounts for fiscal 2005.
Accordingly, all amounts reported in the following tables for balances as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 are based on a measurement
date of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively. Amounts reported in the following tables for balances as of January 26, 2005
are based on a measurement date of January 26, 2005.
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Pension Plans

2006 2005

millions Kmart
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Total Kmart
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Total
Change in projected benefit obligation
Beginning balance $ 2,780 $ 3,354 $ 1,272 $ 7,406 $ 2,743 $ 3,309 $ 1,082 $ 7,134
Benefits earned during the period �  �  34 34 �  54 22 76
Interest cost 150 172 63 385 151 152 50 353
Actuarial (gain)/loss (108) (233) (11) (352) 6 123 135 264
Benefits paid (133) (351) (94) (578) (120) (271) (64) (455)
Foreign currency exchange impact �  �  (3) (3) �  �  36 36
Other �  �  17 17 �  (13) 11 (2)

Balance as of the measurement date $ 2,689 $ 2,942 $ 1,278 $ 6,909 $ 2,780 $ 3,354 $ 1,272 $ 7,406

Change in assets at fair value:
Beginning balance $ 1,949 $ 2,340 $ 1,216 $ 5,505 $ 1,739 $ 2,452 $ 1,126 $ 5,317
Actual return on plan assets 207 228 167 602 90 151 104 345
Company contributions 241 77 37 355 240 21 1 262
Benefits paid (133) (351) (94) (578) (120) (271) (64) (455)
Foreign currency exchange impact �  �  (1) (1) �  �  38 38
Other �  �  13 13 �  (13) 11 (2)

Balance as of the measurement date $ 2,264 $ 2,294 $ 1,338 $ 5,896 $ 1,949 $ 2,340 $ 1,216 $ 5,505

Funded status $ (425) $ (648) $ 60 $ (1,013) $ (831) $ (1,013) $ (56) $ (1,900)
Unrecognized net loss �  �  �  �  111 76 169 356

Net amount recognized $ (425) $ (648) $ 60 $ (1,013) $ (720) $ (937) $ 113 $ (1,544)

The Finance Committee of the Company�s Board of Directors has appointed a non-affiliated third party professional to advise the Committee
with respect to the domestic pension plan assets. The plan�s overall investment objective is to provide a long-term return that, along with
Company contributions, is expected to meet future benefit payment requirements. A long-term horizon has been adopted in establishing
investment policy such that the likelihood and duration of investment losses are carefully weighed against the long-term potential for
appreciation of assets. The plan�s investment policy requires investments to be diversified across individual securities, industries, market
capitalization and valuation characteristics. In addition, various techniques are utilized to monitor, measure and manage risk.

Plan assets were invested in the following classes of securities (none of which were securities of the Company):

Plan Assets as of
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
Equity securities 43% 43%
Fixed income and other debt securities 50 49
Other 7 8

Edgar Filing: SEARS HOLDINGS CORP - Form 10-K

93



Total 100% 100%

81

Edgar Filing: SEARS HOLDINGS CORP - Form 10-K

94



SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

The plan�s target allocation is determined taking into consideration the amounts and timing of projected liabilities, the Company�s funding
policies and expected returns on various asset classes. At December 31, 2006, the plan�s target asset allocation was 43% equity, 50% fixed
income, and 7% other, which is comprised of alternative investments that incorporate absolute return investment strategies. To develop the
expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Company considered the historical returns and the future expectations for returns for
each asset class, as well as the target asset allocation of the pension portfolio.

Postretirement Obligations

2006 2005

millions
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Total
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Total
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Beginning balance $ 409 $ 349 $ 758 $ 457 $ 267 $ 724
Benefits earned during the period �  7 7 �  4 4
Interest cost 21 17 38 20 13 33
Plan participants� contributions 16 �  16 75 �  75
Actuarial (gain)/loss (8) (10) (18) 1 66 67
Benefits paid (71) (14) (85) (144) (10) (154)
Other �  (1) (1) �  9 9

Balance as of the measurement date $ 367 $ 348 $ 715 $ 409 $ 349 $ 758

Change in plan assets at fair value:
Beginning of year balance $ �  $ 87 $ 87 $ �  $ 73 $ 73
Actual return on plan assets �  12 12 �  7 7
Company contributions 55 15 70 69 15 84
Plan participants� contributions 16 �  16 75 �  75
Benefits paid (71) (14) (85) (144) (10) (154)
Other �  (1) (1) �  2 2

Balance as of the measurement date $ �  $ 99 $ 99 $ �  $ 87 $ 87

Funded status $ (367) $ (249) $ (616) $ (409) $ (262) $ (671)
Employer contributions after measurement date and on or before fiscal
year-end 3 �  3 15 �  15
Unrecognized net loss �  �  �  1 108 109

Net amount recognized $ (364) $ (249) $ (613) $ (393) $ (154) $ (547)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine plan obligations are as follows:

2006 2005

Kmart
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Kmart
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada 2004
Pension benefits:
Discount Rate 5.90% 5.90% 5.25% 5.50% 5.50% 5.00% 5.75%
Rate of compensation increases N/A N/A 4.00% N/A N/A 4.00% N/A
Postretirement benefits:
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net cost for years ended are as follows:

2006 2005

Kmart
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Kmart
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada 2004
Pension benefits:
Discount Rate 5.50% 5.50% 5.00% 5.75% 5.75% 6.00% 6.00%
Return of plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 7.00% 8.00% 8.00% 7.00% 8.00%
Rate of compensation increases N/A N/A 4.00% N/A 4.25% 4.25% N/A
Postretirement benefits:
Discount Rate N/A 5.50% 5.00% N/A 5.75% 6.25% N/A
Return of plan assets N/A N/A 7.00% N/A N/A 7.00% N/A
Rate of compensation increases N/A N/A 4.00% N/A N/A 4.25% N/A
The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

2006 2005

millions Kmart
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Total Kmart
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Total 2004
Pension benefits:
Benefits earned during the period $ �  $ �  $ 34 $ 34 $ �  $ 54 $ 22 $ 76 $ �  
Interest cost 150 172 63 385 151 152 50 353 154
Expected return on plan assets (156) (179) (84) (419) (140) (156) (60) (356) (138)
Recognized net loss (gain) �  �  5 5 �  �  �  �  �  
Other �  (13) 4 (9) �  �  �  �  �  

Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) $ (6) $ (20) $ 22 $ (4) $ 11 $ 50 $ 12 $ 73 $ 16

Postretirement benefits:
Benefits earned during the period $ �  $ �  $ 7 $ 7 $ �  $ �  $ 4 $ 4
Interest cost �  21 17 38 �  20 13 33
Expected return on assets �  �  (6) (6) �  �  (4) (4)
Recognized net loss (gain) �  �  7 7 �  �  �  �  

Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) $ �  $ 21 $ 25 $ 46 $ �  $ 20 $ 13 $ 33

For 2007 and beyond, the domestic weighted-average health care cost trend rates used in measuring the postretirement benefit expense are a
9.3% trend rate in 2007 to an ultimate trend rate of 8.0% in 2011. A one�percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would
have the following effects on the postretirement liability:

millions
1 percentage-point

Increase
1 percentage-point

Decrease
Effect on total service and interest cost components $ 3 $ (2)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $ 37 $ (32)

83

Edgar Filing: SEARS HOLDINGS CORP - Form 10-K

97



SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Unrecognized net gains in accumulated other comprehensive income are not expected to be amortized as a component of net periodic benefit
cost during fiscal 2007.

Information regarding expected future cash flows for the Company�s benefit plans is as follows:

millions Kmart
Sears

Domestic
Sears

Canada Total
Pension benefits:
Employer contributions:
Fiscal 2007 (expected) $ 47 $ 146 $ �  $ 193
Expected benefit payments:
Fiscal 2007 $ 145 $ 220 $ 67 $ 432
Fiscal 2008 148 205 68 421
Fiscal 2009 153 195 69 417
Fiscal 2010 157 199 70 426
Fiscal 2011 162 204 71 437
Fiscal 2012-2016 893 1,050 379 2,322
Postretirement benefits:
Employer contributions:
Fiscal 2007 (expected) $ �  $ 43 $ 15 $ 58
Expected benefit payments:
Fiscal 2007 $ �  $ 43 $ 15 $ 58
Fiscal 2008 �  42 16 58
Fiscal 2009 �  40 17 57
Fiscal 2010 �  38 18 56
Fiscal 2011 �  36 18 54
Fiscal 2012-2016 �  153 96 249
NOTE 11�EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following tables set forth the components used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share.

millions 2006 2005 2004
Basic weighted average shares 155.6 152.5 89.3
Dilutive effect of stock options 0.1 1.1 6.1
9% convertible Notes �  �  6.0

Diluted weighted average shares 155.7 153.6 101.4

A reconciliation of net income available to common shareholders to net income available to common shareholders with assumed conversions is
as follows:

millions 2006 2005 2004
Net income available to common shareholders $ 1,490 $ 858 $ 1,106
Interest and accretion of debt discount on 9% convertible notes, net of tax �  �  9
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Income available to common shareholders with assumed conversions $ 1,490 $ 858 $ 1,115

Earnings per share
Basic $ 9.57 $ 5.63 $ 12.39
Diluted $ 9.57 $ 5.59 $ 11.00
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The 9% convertible Notes and accrued interest were converted into 6.3 million shares of Kmart common stock on January 31, 2005.

Kmart�s outstanding treasury shares were retired and cancelled in connection with the Merger.

For purposes of the fiscal 2004 diluted earnings per share calculation, approximately 150,000 stock options and 51,000 shares of restricted
Kmart stock were excluded, as they were anti-dilutive.

NOTE 12�SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY

Stock-based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation using the fair value method in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R). The Company recorded
$21 million, $26 million, and $6 million in total compensation expense relative to stock-based compensation arrangements during fiscal 2006,
fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004, respectively. As of February 3, 2007, the Company had $29 million in total compensation cost related to nonvested
awards which is expected to be recognized over the next approximately 3 years.

The Company does not currently have an employee stock option plan. As of February 3, 2007, all outstanding options relate to grants made
either prior to, or in connection with, the Merger. Changes in employee stock options for fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004 were as
follows:

2006 2005 2004

(Shares in thousands) Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price
Beginning of year balance 350 $ 112.90 1,318 $ 21.90 1,557 $ 13.33
Granted �  �  200 131.11 150 88.62
Exercised �  �  (1,168) 13.33 �  �  
Cancelled/Forfeited �  �  �  �  (389) 13.33

End of year balance 350 $ 112.90 350 $ 112.90 1,318 $ 21.90

Exercisable(1) 275 $ 119.52 38 $ 88.62 1,168 $ 13.33
Fair value of options granted during the year $ �  $ 131.11 $ 88.62

(1) Of the total shares exercisable as of fiscal year end 2006, 275 shares are vested or are expected to vest, with an aggregate intrinsic value of
$16 million and weighted-average remaining contractual life of approximately four years at February 3, 2007.

The fair value of each stock option is estimated as of the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with the following
assumptions being utilized for each of the periods presented during which shares were granted:

2005 2004
Dividend yield 0% 0%
Expected volatility 40% 46%
Risk-free interest rate 4.22% 3.18%
Expected life of options 5 years 5 years
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Given the Company�s limited history, the expected volatility factors were determined based on average volatilities calculated in relation to
similar entities, including historical Kmart and Sears.

millions 2005 2004
Aggregate fair value of options granted based on weighted average fair value at date of grant 11 6
Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised 145 N/A

The Company has granted restricted stock awards to certain associates. These restricted stock awards typically vest in full three years from the
date of grant, provided the grantee remains employed by the Company as of the vesting date. The fair value of these awards is equal to the
market price of the Company�s common stock on the date of grant. The Company does not currently have a program that provides for restricted
stock awards on an annual basis. Changes in restricted stock awards for fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004 were as follows:

2006 2005 2004

(Shares in thousands) Shares

Weighted-
Average

Fair Value
on Date
of Grant Shares

Weighted-
Average

Fair Value
on Date
of Grant Shares

Weighted-
Average

Fair Value
on Date
of Grant

Beginning of year balance 242 $ 112.48 147 $ 48.66 111 $ 26.90
Converted from Sears to Sears Holdings �  �  250 124.83 �  �  
Granted 209 149.11 83 124.83 83 66.39
Vested (132) 119.05 (141) 90.84 (47) 28.31
Forfeited (46) 136.37 (97) 94.93 �  �  

End of year balance 273 $ 133.79 242 $ 112.48 147 $ 48.66

millions 2006 2005 2004
Aggregate fair value of shares converted to Sears Holdings from Sears based on weighted average fair
value at date of Merger $ �  $ 32 $ �  
Aggregate fair value of shares granted based on weighted average fair value at date of grant 31 11 6
Aggregate fair value of shares vesting during period 20 18 1
Aggregate fair value of shares forfeited during period 7 13 �  

Common Share Repurchase Program

During fiscal 2006, the Company repurchased approximately 6 million of its common shares pursuant to its common share repurchase program
at a total cost of approximately $806 million, or an average price of $132.94 per share. As of February 3, 2007, the Company had approximately
$604 million of remaining authorization under this program. The program has no stated expiration date.

Other Transactions

As discussed in Note 7, on January 31, 2005, ESL affiliates converted outstanding Notes and six month accrued interest into an aggregate of
6.3 million shares of Kmart common stock. During fiscal 2005, ESL affiliates and other investors exercised options to purchase approximately
6.7 million shares of Holdings common stock for approximately $86 million.
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Comprehensive Income and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table shows the computation of comprehensive income:

millions
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
January 26,

2005
Net income $ 1,490 $ 858 $ 1,106
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Minimum pension liability 174 (110) (77)
Market value adjustment for investments �  �  (1)
Unrealized gain/(loss) on foreign currency forwards 4 (18) �  
Foreign currency translation adjustments 20 �  �  

Other comprehensive income/(loss) 198 (128) (78)

Total comprehensive income $ 1,688 $ 730 $ 1,028

The following table displays the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

millions
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
January 26,

2005
Minimum pension liability, net of tax $ �  $ (187) $ (77)
Pension and postretirement adjustments, net of tax 62 �  �  
Cumulative unrealized derivative gain 4 �  �  
Currency translation adjustments 2 (18) �  

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ 68 $ (205) $ (77)

NOTE 13�BANKRUPTCY CLAIMS RESOLUTION AND SETTLEMENTS

Background

On May 6, 2003, Kmart Corporation (the �Predecessor Company�), a predecessor operating company of Kmart, emerged from reorganization
proceedings under Chapter 11 of the federal bankruptcy laws pursuant to the terms of a plan of reorganization (the �Plan of Reorganization�). The
Predecessor Company is a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Kmart and an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Holdings. Upon emergence,
all of the then outstanding equity securities of the Predecessor Company, as well as substantially all of its pre-petition liabilities were cancelled.
On the day of emergence, 89.7 million shares of Kmart common stock and 8.2 million options to purchase shares of Kmart common stock were
issued pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization, of which 31.9 million shares of the Kmart common stock issued were allocated to satisfy the
pre-petition claims of unsecured Class 5 creditors.

In connection with the emergence from Chapter 11, Kmart reflected the terms of the Plan of Reorganization in its consolidated financial
statements, applying the terms of SOP 90-7 with respect to financial reporting upon emergence from Chapter 11 (�Fresh-Start Accounting�). Upon
applying Fresh-Start Accounting, a new reporting entity was deemed to have been created and the recorded amounts of assets and liabilities were
adjusted to reflect their estimated fair values.

Claims Resolution
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Predecessor Company�s liabilities subject to compromise pursuant to the
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Plan of Reorganization. Differences between claim amounts filed and the Company�s estimates are being investigated and resolved through the
claims resolution process. Since June 30, 2003, the first distribution date established in the Plan of Reorganization, approximately 28.1 million
shares of the 31.9 million shares set aside for distribution have been distributed to holders of Class 5 claims, and approximately $4 million in
cash has been distributed separately to the holders of Class 6 and to the holders of Class 7 claims. Further, the Company pro-rated approximately
$5 million from the settlement that the Creditor Trust received to holders of class 4, 5, 6, 8, 10 and 11 claims. As the Company was unable to
determine the ultimate amount of allowed claims until the claims resolution process was largely completed, a distribution reserve for Class 5
claim settlements was established. The Company�s current distribution reserve for Class 5 claim settlements is 5 percent of the total shares
expected to be distributed. Based on the Class 5 claims resolved to date, the Company believes that the ultimate amount of allowed Class 5
claims will be less than the $4.3 billion provided for in the Plan of Reorganization. As such, the Company currently expects that Class 5
distribution reserve of 5 percent will be distributed to the allowed Class 5 creditors on or about April 30, 2007, and any remaining shares left
over after all Class 5 claims are settled will be distributed to the Class 5 creditors in proportion to their allowed claims.

Bankruptcy-Related Settlements

In fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004, the Company recognized recoveries of $14 million, $40 million, and $59 million, respectively, from
vendors who had received cash payments for pre-petition obligations (critical vendor claims) or preference payments. In conjunction with these
recoveries, the Company was assigned 22,105 shares of common stock (weighted average price of $148.37 per share) with an approximate value
of $3 million for fiscal 2006. See Note 20 for a more detailed discussion of the critical vendor claims lawsuit.

NOTE 14�INCOME TAXES

millions 2006 2005 2004
Income before income taxes
U.S. $ 2,125 $ 1,467 $ 1,744
Foreign 339 498 31

Total $ 2,464 $ 1,965 $ 1,775

Income tax expense
Current:
Federal $ 426 $ 251 $ 49
State and local 75 81 16
Foreign 77 214 7

Total 578 546 72

Deferred:
Federal 258 227 531
State and local 44 19 66
Foreign 50 (76) �  

352 170 597

Total $ 930 $ 716 $ 669
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2006 2005 2004
Effective tax rate reconciliation
Federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local taxes net of federal tax benefit 3.1 3.3 3.0
Tax credits (0.3) (0.3) (0.2)
Equity in net income of affiliated companies �  (0.2) (0.1)
Basis difference in domestic subsidiary 0.4 �  �  
Canada capital gain exemption �  (3.0) �  
Other (0.5) 1.6 �  

37.7% 36.4% 37.7%

millions
February 3,

2007
January 28,

2006
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets:
Federal benefit for state and foreign taxes $ 88 $ 92
Accruals and other liabilities 348 290
Capital leases 150 205
NOL carryforwards 609 636
OPEB 258 249
Pension/Minimum pension 355 623
Deferred revenue 665 626
Other 213 457

Total deferred tax assets 2,686 3,178
Valuation allowance (332) (330)

Net deferred tax assets 2,354 2,848

Deferred tax liabilities:
Tradenames/Intangibles 1,203 1,334
Property and equipment 197 479
Deferred acquisition costs 439 394
Inventory 325 245
Investments 90 162
Other 98 80

Total deferred tax liabilities 2,352 2,694

Net deferred tax asset $ 2 $ 154

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109 which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized
using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of recorded assets and liabilities.
SFAS No. 109 also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion of or all of
the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The Predecessor Company recorded a full valuation allowance against its pre-petition deferred tax assets in accordance with SFAS No. 109, as
realization of such assets in future years was uncertain. During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, the Company recognized reversals of $1,249 million
and $1,155 million, respectively, based on the utilization (or projected utilization) of such deferred tax assets. As of February 3, 2007,
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continues to believe that all of the Company�s pre-petition net deferred tax assets will more likely than not be realized, due to the Merger and the
actual and forecasted levels of profitability, and as such the related valuation allowance has been reduced to zero at January 28, 2006. In
accordance with SFAS No. 109, the portion of the reversal of the valuation allowance attributable to the Merger ($1,073 million) has been
recorded as an adjustment to goodwill attributable to the Merger. In accordance with SOP 90-7, the remaining portion of the reversal of the
valuation allowance is recorded as a direct credit to capital in excess of par.

In connection with the Merger, deferred tax assets of $350 million were recorded related to state net operating losses (�NOLs�) of Sears. A
valuation allowance of $330 million was recorded with respect to this deferred tax asset. As a result, the Company recognized a net deferred tax
asset of $20 million in conjunction with the initial purchase price allocation related to the Merger. During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded an
additional net $2 million valuation allowance with respect to this deferred tax asset, resulting in a total valuation allowance of $332 million as of
the end of fiscal 2006. In addition, during fiscal 2006, the deferred tax asset for the Sears NOL decreased by $3 million to $347 million. The
Company will continue to assess the likelihood of realization of these state deferred tax assets and will reduce the valuation allowance on such
assets in the future if it becomes more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets will be utilized. To the extent that these valuation
allowances are reversed in the future, such effects would be recorded as a decrease to goodwill.

During fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004, the Company reduced its reserves for Predecessor Company income tax liabilities by $3.5
million, $1 million, and $56 million, respectively, primarily due to favorable claims settlements. In fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, the
Company also received a tax benefit of $4 million, $91 million and $67 million, respectively, relating to certain Class 5 and 6 pre-petition claims
paid with equity. Additionally, in fiscal 2006, the Company increased its deferred tax assets by $126.5 million for income tax settlements. In
accordance with SOP 90-7, subsequent to emergence from Chapter 11, any benefit realized from an adjustment to pre-confirmation income tax
liabilities is recorded as an addition to Capital in excess of par value.

As a result of reaching various income tax audit settlements during fiscal 2006 pertaining to pre-Merger periods, the Company reduced
approximately $196 million of tax liabilities with an offsetting credit recorded to goodwill. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, resolution of
these matters result in a direct credit to Merger-related goodwill.

In connection with the reorganization, Kmart Corporation realized income from the cancellation of certain indebtedness. Although this income
was not taxable, as it resulted from reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code, the Company was required to reduce certain of its tax attributes
(NOL carryforwards by $3,743 million, general business credit carryforwards by $45 million, AMT credit carryforwards by $111 million and
basis of certain assets by $902 million) in an amount equal to the cancellation of indebtedness. The reorganization of Kmart Corporation on the
Effective Date resulted in an ownership change under section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code and accordingly, the use of any of the
Company�s NOL carryforwards and tax credits generated prior to the ownership change, as well as certain subsequently recognized �built-in�
losses, if any, existing as of the date of the ownership change that are not reduced pursuant to the provisions discussed above, will be subject to
an overall annual limitation of $96 million.

At February 3, 2007, the Company had federal and Canadian NOL carryforwards of approximately $408 million and $163 million, generating
deferred tax assets of approximately $143 million and $56 million, respectively. The federal NOL carryforwards will expire in 2021, 2022 and
2023. The Canadian NOL carryforwards will expire in 2015. The Company also has NOL carryforwards attributable to various states generating
deferred tax assets of $74 million which will predominantly expire between 2017 and 2026. The Company also has credit carryforwards of
$42 million which will expire by 2015.
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As of fiscal year end 2006, the Internal Revenue Service had completed its examination of Kmart�s and Sears� federal income tax returns through
fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE 15�REAL ESTATE TRANSACTIONS

Gain on Sale of Assets

The Company recognized $82 million, $39 million, and $946 million in gains on sales of assets during fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004,
respectively. These gains were primarily a function of several large real estate transactions. During fiscal 2006, the gain on sale of assets
included a $41 million pre-tax gain on the sale of the Company�s former Kmart corporate headquarters.

During fiscal 2004, the Company entered into multiple agreements with Home Depot U.S.A., Inc. (a subsidiary of The Home Depot, Inc.) to sell
four properties and assign 14 leased properties for an aggregate purchase price of $271 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $253 million. Also
during fiscal 2004, Kmart agreed to sell four owned properties, assign 45 leased properties and lease one owned store to Sears for a total
purchase price of approximately $576 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $599 million.

Property held for sale at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 was $0 million and $17 million, respectively, and is included in other current
assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Property Acquisitions

During fiscal 2006, fiscal 2005, and fiscal 2004, the Company purchased 8, 19 and 31 previously leased operating properties for $26 million,
$98 million, and $124 million, respectively. In the normal course of business, the Company considers opportunities to purchase leased operating
properties, as well as offers to sell owned, or assign leased, operating and non-operating properties. These transactions may, individually or in
the aggregate, result in material proceeds or outlays of cash. In addition, the Company reviews leases that will expire in the short-term in order
to determine the appropriate action to take with respect to them.

NOTE 16�LEASES

The Company leases certain stores, office facilities, warehouses, computers and transportation equipment.

Operating and capital lease obligations are based upon contractual minimum rents and, for certain stores, amounts in excess of these minimum
rents are payable based upon specified percentages of sales. Contingent rent is accrued over the lease term, provided that the achievement of the
specified sales level that triggers the contingent rental is probable. Certain leases include renewal or purchase options.

Rental Expense for operating leases was as follows:

millions 2006 2005 2004
Minimum rentals $ 898 $ 895 $ 526
Percentage rentals 42 43 10
Less�Sublease rentals (53) (52) (146)

Total $ 887 $ 886 $ 390
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Minimum lease obligations, excluding taxes, insurance and other expenses payable directly by the Company, for leases in effect as of
February 3, 2007, were as follows:

Minimum
Lease

Commitments
millions Capital Operating
As of February 3, 2007
2007 $ 148 $ 820
2008 141 743
2009 133 647
2010 128 561
2011 124 477
Later years 770 3,775

Total minimum lease payments(1) 1,444 7,023
Less�minimum sublease income (325)

Net minimum lease payments $ 6,698

Less:
Estimated executory costs (189)
Interest at a weighted average rate of 7.7% (455)

Capital lease obligations 800
Less current portion of capital lease obligations (63)

Long-term capital lease obligations $ 737

(1) Sears Canada: Total operating minimum lease payments of $532 million.
NOTE 17�RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

The Company�s Board of Directors has delegated authority to direct investment of the Company�s surplus cash to Edward S. Lampert, subject to
various limitations that have been or may be from time to time adopted by the Board of Directors and/or the Finance Committee of the Board of
Directors. Mr. Lampert is Chairman of the Company�s Board of Directors and Finance Committee and is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of ESL. Neither Mr. Lampert nor ESL will receive compensation for any such investment activities undertaken on behalf of the
Company. ESL beneficially owned 42.5% of the Company�s outstanding common stock as of February 3, 2007.

Further, to clarify the expectations that the Board of Directors has with respect to the investment of the Company�s surplus cash, the Board has
renounced, in accordance with Delaware law, any interest or expectancy of the Company associated with any investment opportunities in
securities that may come to the attention of Mr. Lampert or any employee, officer, director or advisor to ESL and its affiliated investment
entities who also serves as an officer or director of the Company (each, a �Covered Party�) other than (a) investment opportunities that come to
such Covered Party�s attention directly and exclusively in such Covered Party�s capacity as a director, officer or employee of the Company,
(b) control investments in companies in the mass merchandising, retailing, commercial appliance distribution, product protection agreements,
residential and commercial product installation and repair services and automotive repair and maintenance industries and (c) investment
opportunities in companies or assets with a significant role in the Company�s retailing business, including investment in real estate currently
leased by the Company or in suppliers for which the Company is a substantial customer representing over 10% of such companies� revenues, but
excluding investments of ESL as of May 23, 2005.
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Holdings employs certain employees of ESL. William C. Crowley is a director and the Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer
and interim Chief Financial Officer of the Company while continuing his role as President and Chief Operating Officer of ESL. The Senior Vice
President of Real Estate for the Company is also employed by ESL.

On January 18, 2007, Sears made a payment to plaintiffs in the case of In re: Sears, Roebuck and Co. Securities Litigation of approximately
$215 million pursuant to the terms of a settlement dated September 14, 2006. See Note 20. Certain affiliates of ESL owned shares of common
stock of Sears before, during and after the class period and were included in the class certified by the Court. Accordingly, these affiliates of ESL
are expected to receive their proportionate share of the net settlement proceeds (approximately $10.7 million) in connection with the settlement.

As discussed in Note 7, on January 31, 2005, ESL affiliates converted, in accordance with their terms, the outstanding Notes and six months of
accrued interest into an aggregate of 6.3 million shares of Kmart common stock. In consideration of the conversion of these Notes prior to
maturity, ESL affiliates received a $3 million payment from Kmart. The cash payment was equivalent to the approximate discounted, after-tax
cost of the future interest payments that would have otherwise been paid by Kmart to the ESL affiliates in the absence of the early conversion.

As further detailed in Note 15, Kmart sold certain properties and assigned certain leased properties to Sears in fiscal 2004. The Company
recorded a $599 million gain in fiscal 2004 in connection with these transactions.

NOTE 18�SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Other current liabilities as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 consisted of the following:

February 3,
2007

January 28,
2006

Payroll and benefits payable $ 535 $ 449
Outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit 353 444
Current portion of self-insurance reserves 370 334
Accrued expenses 1,256 1,307
Other 1,451 1,383

Total $ 3,965 $ 3,917

Minority interest and other liabilities as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 consisted of the following:

February 3,
2007

January 28,
2006

Unearned revenues $ 928 $ 887
Self-insurance reserves 772 753
Minority interest 169 318
Other 934 965

Total $ 2,803 $ 2,923
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NOTE 19�SUMMARY OF SEGMENT DATA

The Company currently has three reportable segments: Kmart, Sears Domestic and Sears Canada, compared to one segment in fiscal 2004. The
accompanying summary of segment data for the year ended January 28, 2006 includes the results of operations of Sears subsequent to March 24,
2005, the date of the Merger. Sears Canada�s results are reported to Holdings on a one-month lag. Therefore, the results of operations for the
years ended February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006 include operating results for Sears Canada for the period from January 1, 2006 to
December 30, 2006 and March 25, 2005 to December 31, 2005, respectively. As the Company had only one reportable segment, Kmart, for
fiscal 2004, segment data for this period would be the same as provided in the consolidated financial statements, and is therefore not duplicated
here.

2006
Kmart Sears Total

millions Domestic Canada
Merchandise sales and services $ 18,647 $ 29,179 $ 5,186 $ 53,012

Cost and expenses
Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 14,061 20,120 3,639 37,820
Selling and administrative 3,623 6,820 1,138 11,581
Depreciation and amortization 77 927 138 1,142
Gain on sales of assets (71) (11) �  (82)
Restructuring charges 9 �  19 28

Total costs and expenses 17,699 27,856 4,934 50,489

Operating income $ 948 $ 1,323 $ 252 $ 2,523

Total assets $ 7,750 $ 19,209 $ 3,107 $ 30,066

2005
Kmart Sears Total

millions Domestic Canada
Merchandise sales and services $ 19,094 $ 25,868 $ 3,949 $ 48,911
Credit and financial products revenues �  �  213 213

Total revenues 19,094 25,868 4,162 49,124

Cost and expenses
Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 14,462 18,221 2,822 35,505
Selling and administrative 3,804 5,968 1,036 10,808
Depreciation and amortization 47 769 116 932
Loss (gain) on sales of assets (40) 1 �  (39)
Gain on sales of business �  �  (317) (317)
Restructuring charges 54 �  57 111

Total costs and expenses 18,327 24,959 3,714 47,000

Operating income $ 767 $ 909 $ 448 $ 2,124

Total assets $ 7,325 $ 20,262 $ 2,986 $ 30,573
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NOTE 20�LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Pending against Sears and certain of its officers and directors are a number of lawsuits, described below, that relate to Sears� former credit card
business and public statements about it. The Company believes that all of these claims lack merit and, except as noted below, is defending
against them vigorously.

� In re: Sears, Roebuck and Co. Securities Litigation�On and after October 18, 2002, several actions were filed in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Illinois against Sears and certain former officers alleging that certain public
announcements by Sears concerning its credit card business violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The Court consolidated the actions and certified the consolidated action as a class action.
On January 18, 2007, Sears made a payment to plaintiffs of approximately $215 million pursuant to the terms of a settlement dated
September 14, 2006. Sears received proceeds totaling $125 million from claims made under relevant insurance policies and thus the
cash payment for settlement by Sears was approximately $90 million on a pre-tax basis. On January 10, 2007, the Court entered an
Order and Final Judgment as to the consolidated action and, with the time for appeal of such Order and Final Judgment having
expired without any appeal having been filed, this matter is concluded. In agreeing to the settlement, defendants did not admit any
wrongdoing and deny committing any violation of law. Defendants agreed to the settlement solely to eliminate the uncertainties,
burden and expense of further protracted litigation.

� In re: Sears, Roebuck and Co. ERISA Litigation�On and after November 15, 2002, several actions were filed in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Illinois against Sears, certain officers and directors, and alleged fiduciaries of Sears� 401(k)
Savings Plan (the �Plan�), seeking damages and equitable relief under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
(�ERISA�). The plaintiffs purport to represent participants in the Plan, and allege breaches of fiduciary duties under ERISA in
connection with the Plan�s investment in Sears� common shares and alleged communications made to Plan participants regarding
Sears� financial condition. The Court has consolidated these actions and certified the consolidated action as a class action. Pursuant to
an agreement dated February 13, 2007, defendants have agreed to settle the matter. Defendants do not admit any wrongdoing and
deny any committing any violation of law. Defendants agreed to the settlement solely to eliminate the uncertainties, burden and
expense of further protracted litigation. The settlement is not expected to have a material adverse effect on annual results of
operations, financial position, liquidity or capital resources of the Company.

� Marilyn Clark, derivatively on behalf of Sears, Roebuck and Co. v. Alan J. Lacy, et al.�On October 23, 2002, a purported derivative
suit was filed in the Supreme Court of the State of New York (the �New York Court�) against Sears (as a nominal defendant) and
certain current and former directors seeking damages on behalf of Sears. The complaint purports to allege a breach of fiduciary duty
by the directors with respect to Sears� management of its credit business. Two similar suits were subsequently filed in the Circuit
Court of Cook County, Illinois (the �Illinois State Court�), and a third was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of Illinois. The New York Court derivative suit was dismissed on June 21, 2004. A New York appellate court affirmed the
dismissal on December 6, 2005, and the time for further appeal has expired. The two Illinois State Court derivative suits were
dismissed on September 30, 2004. The order of dismissal became final on December 1, 2004, and the time to appeal has expired. The
defendant directors filed a motion to dismiss the Illinois federal court action on May 22, 2006. Briefing on defendants� motion has
been stayed.

� Thomas G. Ong for Thomas G. Ong IRA, et al. v. Sears, Roebuck & Co., et al.�On June 17, 2003, an action was filed in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois against Sears and certain officers, purportedly on behalf of a class of all
persons who, between June 21, 2002 and
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October 17, 2002, purchased the 7% notes that SRAC issued on June 21, 2002. Pursuant to a subsequently filed amended complaint,
plaintiffs named as additional defendants certain former Sears officers not originally named, SRAC and several investment banking
firms which had acted as underwriters for SRAC�s March 18, May 21 and June 21, 2002 notes offerings. The complaint purports to
allege violations of Sections 11, 12(a)(2), and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933, Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder and, as against the individual defendants, violations of §20(a) of the Exchange Act. The complaint purports
to allege that defendants made a number of false and misleading statements in one or more prospectuses for debt securities offerings
and in SEC filings and other public statements, concerning the adequacy of reserves for uncollectible accounts, and the condition of
Sears� former credit business, among other things. Plaintiffs have filed a motion for class certification. Discovery is underway.

Following the announcement of the Merger on November 17, 2004, several actions have been filed relating to the transaction. These lawsuits are
in their preliminary stages, and defendants have not yet been required to respond to certain of the complaints. The Company believes that all of
these claims lack merit and intends to defend against them vigorously.

� William Fischer, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated v. Sears, Roebuck and Co., et al.�Three actions were filed
and then consolidated in the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois. These actions assert claims on behalf of a purported class of
Sears� stockholders against Sears and certain of its officers and directors, together with Kmart, Edward S. Lampert, William C.
Crowley and other affiliated entities, alleging breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the Merger and seeking damages. The
plaintiffs allege that the Merger favors interested defendants by awarding them disproportionate benefits, and that the defendants
failed to take appropriate steps to maximize the value of a merger transaction for Sears� stockholders. On September 7, 2006,
plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal of the court�s August 8, 2006 order dismissing plaintiffs� amended complaint. Briefing on the appeal
is underway.

� Maurice Levie, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated v. Sears, Roebuck & Co., et al.�One action has been filed in
the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois. This action asserts claims under the federal securities laws on
behalf of a purported class of Sears� stockholders against Sears and Alan J. Lacy, for allegedly failing to make timely disclosure of
merger discussions with Kmart during the period September 9 through November 16, 2004, and seeks damages. The court appointed
a lead plaintiff and lead counsel, and an amended complaint was filed on March 11, 2005. The amended complaint names Edward S.
Lampert and ESL Partners, L.P. as additional defendants, and purports to assert claims on behalf of sellers of Sears stock during the
period September 9 through November 16, 2004. The defendants have answered the amended complaint. On October 2, 2006,
plaintiffs filed their motion for class certification, the briefing on which has been completed. Meanwhile, the parties have
commenced written discovery.

Effective May 11, 2005, Sears terminated for cause its Master Services Agreement (the �Agreement�) with Computer Sciences Corporation
(�CSC�). CSC had been providing information technology infrastructure support services, including desktops, servers, and systems to support
Sears-related websites, voice and data networks and decision support technology to Sears and its subsidiaries under the 10-year Agreement
entered into in June 2004. CSC is obligated to continue providing these services for an extended period following termination of the Agreement.
CSC disputes Sears� assertion that grounds for termination for cause existed and claims that, as a result of terminating this Agreement, Sears is
liable to CSC for damages.

CSC filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois (the �District Court�) on March 18, 2005 seeking a
declaratory judgment that CSC was not in material breach of the Agreement and an injunction to prevent Sears from terminating the Agreement
for cause. On April 14, 2005, the
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District Court denied CSC�s motion for a preliminary injunction and granted Sears� motion to compel arbitration. On April 22, 2005 the District
Court denied CSC�s motion for reconsideration of the District Court�s April 14th ruling, and CSC appealed the District Court�s ruling to the United
States Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit. On February 21, 2007, the Court dismissed the appeal. On December 12, 2006, both Sears and
CSC filed separate Statements of Claim and Demands for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association. The parties have begun
selecting an arbitration panel.

In Capital Factors v. Kmart Corporation, the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois ruled that the Bankruptcy Court did
not have the authority to authorize the payment of pre-petition claims of certain trade vendors by the Company. An appeal of the ruling and
subsequent motions for rehearing were denied. In order to satisfy its fiduciary responsibility to pursue claims against the critical vendors during
the pendency of the appeal, in January 2004 the Company filed suit against a total of 1,189 vendors that received these payments seeking to
recover in excess of $174 million paid to the critical vendors. To date, Kmart has settled approximately 1,135 critical vendor claims for a total
recovery the Company values at approximately $80 million.

As previously reported in Kmart�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for its fiscal year ended January 26, 2005, the staff of the Securities and
Exchange Commission has been investigating, and the U.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of Michigan has undertaken an inquiry into, the
manner in which Kmart recorded vendor allowances before a change in accounting principles at the end of fiscal 2001 and the disclosure of
certain events bearing on the Predecessor Company�s liquidity in the fall of 2001. Kmart has cooperated with the SEC and the U.S. Attorney�s
office with respect to these matters, which are ongoing.

On August 23, 2005, the SEC filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan against the Predecessor
Company�s former chief executive officer and its former chief financial officer alleging that they misled investors about the Predecessor
Company�s liquidity and related matters in the months preceding its bankruptcy in violation of federal securities law. The complaint seeks
permanent injunctions, disgorgement with interest, civil penalties and officer and director bars. Kmart is not named as a defendant in the action.
In its press release announcing the filing of the complaint, the SEC stated that its Kmart investigation is continuing.

In re: Sears Holdings Corporation Securities Litigation�In May and July 2006, two putative class action lawsuits, which each name as defendants
Sears Holdings Corporation and Edward Lampert, were filed in United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, purportedly
on behalf of a class of persons that sold shares of Kmart Holding Corp stock on or after May 6, 2003 through June 4, 2004. The plaintiffs in each
case allege that Kmart�s Plan of Reorganization and Disclosure Statement filed on January 24, 2003 and amended on February 25, 2003
misrepresented Kmart�s assets, particularly its real estate holdings, as evidenced by the prices at which Kmart subsequently sold certain of its
stores in June 2004 to Home Depot and Sears. The plaintiffs seek damages for alleged misrepresentations. On December 19, 2006, the Court
consolidated the actions. Plaintiffs� consolidated complaint is due on or before March 30, 2007.

AIG Annuity Insurance Company, et al. v. Sears, Roebuck and Co.�On October 12, 2004, an action was filed against Sears in the District Court,
192nd Judicial District, Dallas County, Texas by several holders of certain bonds issued by Sears from 1991 through 1993. Plaintiffs purport to
allege under theories of breach of contract and misrepresentation, that Sears prematurely redeemed the bonds in 2004 following Sears� sale of the
credit business in 2003. On February 2, 2007, a jury in the case reached a verdict against Sears and awarded plaintiffs approximately $73.5
million, not including interest which may also be awarded by the Court. Sears will file post-trial motions seeking a new trial and, if necessary,
appeal any adverse decisions.

97

Edgar Filing: SEARS HOLDINGS CORP - Form 10-K

117



SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

The Company is subject to various other legal and governmental proceedings, many involving litigation incidental to its businesses. Some
matters contain class action allegations, employment claims, environmental and asbestos exposure allegations and other consumer-based claims,
each of which may seek compensatory, punitive or treble damage claims (potentially in large amounts) or as well as other types of relief. In
addition, certain of these proceedings are in jurisdictions with reputations for aggressive application of laws and procedures against corporate
defendants. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies,� the Company accrues an
undiscounted liability for those contingencies where the incurrence of a loss is probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated and the
Company does not record liabilities when the likelihood that the liability has been incurred is probable but the amount cannot be reasonably
estimated, or when the liability is believed to be only reasonably possible or remote. Because litigation outcomes are inherently unpredictable,
these assessments often involve a series of complex assessments by management about future events and can rely heavily on estimates and
assumptions. While the consequences of certain unresolved proceedings are not presently determinable, an adverse outcome from certain matters
could have a material adverse effect on the Company�s earnings in any given reporting period. However, in the opinion of management of the
Company after consulting with legal counsel, and taking into account insurance and reserves, the ultimate liability is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on the financial position, liquidity or capital resources of the Company.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company recorded a gain of $36 million for the aggregate amount received by Holdings in June
2006 as part of the settlement of Visa/MasterCard litigation concerning alleged unlawful inflation of interchange fees. The Company has
recorded the $36 million gain as a reduction to Selling and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of income for the fiscal year
ended February 3, 2007.

NOTE 21�QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

2006

millions
First

Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Total revenues $ 11,998 $ 12,785 $ 11,941 $ 16,288
Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 8,665 9,158 8,557 11,440
Selling and administrative 2,721 2,827 2,834 3,199
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 180 294 196 820
Net income 180 294 196 820
Basic and diluted net income per share 1.14 1.88 1.27 5.33

2005

millions
First

Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Total revenues $ 7,644 $ 13,192 $ 12,202 $ 16,086
Cost of sales, buying and occupancy 5,661 9,541 8,795 11,508
Selling and administrative 1,729 3,009 2,981 3,089
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 81 161 58 648
Net income (loss) (9) 161 58 648
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (0.07) 0.98 0.35 4.03
Earnings per share amounts for each quarter are required to be computed independently and may not equal the amount computed for the total
year.

98

Edgar Filing: SEARS HOLDINGS CORP - Form 10-K

118



SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements�(Continued)

Quarterly Items:

(1) The fourth quarter of 2006 includes: (i) $27 million in pre-tax losses ($0.11 per diluted share) on the Company�s total return swap
investments; (ii) pre-tax gains of $50 million ($0.20 per diluted share) on the sale of assets; (iii) a tax benefit of $25 million ($0.17 per diluted
share) related to the resolution of certain income tax matters and (iv) a pre-tax charge of $74 million ($0.29 per diluted share) related to an
unfavorable verdict in connection with a pre-merger legal matter concerning Sears� redemption of certain bonds in 2004. The fourth quarter of
fiscal 2006 included 14 weeks.

(2) The third quarter of 2006 includes (i) pre-tax gains of $101 million ($0.42 per diluted share) on the Company�s total return swap investments
and (ii) $6 million of net income ($0.04 per diluted share) related to the resolution of certain income tax matters. The third quarter of 2005
includes $59 million in pre-tax charges ($0.13 per diluted share) for merger-related restructuring activities.

(3) The second quarter of 2006 includes (i) a $36 million pre-tax gain ($0.14 per diluted share) representing the Company�s portion of proceeds
received related to the settlement of Visa/MasterCard antitrust litigation. The second quarter of 2005 includes $42 million in pre-tax charges
($0.16 per diluted share) for merger-related restructuring activities.

(4) The first quarter of 2005 includes an after-tax charge of $90 million ($0.58 per diluted share) for the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting for certain indirect overhead costs included in inventory.
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Schedule II�Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Fiscal Years 2006, 2005 and 2004

millions

Balance
at

beginning
of period

Additions
charged

to
costs
and

expenses

Additions
(deductions)

resulting from
the Merger
charged to

other accounts (Deductions)
Balance at

end of period
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts(1):
Fiscal 2006 $ 35 $ 64 $ �  $ (70) $ 29
Fiscal 2005 40 71 16 (92) 35
Fiscal 2004 78 64 �  (102) 40
Allowance for Deferred Tax Assets(2):
Fiscal 2006 330 2 �  �  332
Fiscal 2005 1,249 24 330 (200) 330

(1,073)
Fiscal 2004 2,351 53 �  (1,155) 1,249

(1) Charges to the account are for the purposes for which the reserves were created.
(2) The Predecessor Company recorded a full valuation allowance against its pre-petition deferred tax assets in accordance with SFAS

No. 109, as realization of such assets in future years was uncertain. During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, the Company recognized reversals
of, $1,249 million and $1,155 million, respectively, based on the utilization (or projected utilization) of such deferred tax assets. As of
February 3, 2007, management continues to believe that all of the Company�s pre-petition net deferred tax assets will more likely than not
be realized due to the Merger and the actual and forecasted levels of profitability, and as such the related valuation allowance was reduced
to zero at January 28, 2006. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, the portion of the reversal of the valuation allowance attributable to the
Merger ($1,073 million) was recorded as an adjustment to goodwill attributable to the Merger. In accordance with SOP 90-7, the
remaining portion of the reversal of the valuation allowance is recorded as a direct credit to capital in excess of par.

In connection with the Merger, deferred tax assets of $350 million were recorded related to state net operating losses (�NOLs�) of Sears. A
valuation allowance of $330 million was originally recorded with respect to this deferred tax asset. In fiscal 2006, deferred tax assets relating to
the NOLs were reduced $3 million to a total of $347 million. A valuation allowance of an additional $2 million was recorded, bringing the total
valuation allowance to $332 million.
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MANAGEMENT�S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

March 27, 2007

The management of Sears Holdings Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company�s principal executive and
principal financial officers and effected by the Company�s board of directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

� pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company;

� provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

� provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
Company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007. In making its
assessment, management used the criteria set forth in the Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The assessment included the documentation and understanding of the Company�s internal
control over financial reporting. Management evaluated the design effectiveness and tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over
financial reporting to form its conclusion.

Based on this evaluation, management concluded that, as of February 3, 2007, the Company�s internal control over financial reporting is effective
to provide reasonable assurance that the Company�s financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has reported on management�s assertion with respect to the effectiveness
of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, as stated in their report included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Sears Holdings Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Sears Holdings Corporation and subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of February 3,
2007 and January 28, 2006 and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders� equity and cash flows for the fiscal years then ended.
Our audits also included the financial statement schedule, listed in the Index at Item 8, for the years ended February 3, 2007 and January 28,
2006. We also have audited management�s assessment, included in the accompanying Management�s Annual Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). The Company�s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule, an opinion on management�s assessment, and an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit
of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management�s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company�s principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company�s board of directors, management, and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the fiscal years then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally

102

Edgar Filing: SEARS HOLDINGS CORP - Form 10-K

122



accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information for the fiscal years ended February 3,
2007 and January 28, 2006 set forth therein. Also, in our opinion, management�s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Furthermore, in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

As discussed in Notes 3 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for pension and other
postretirement benefits in both fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, and its method of accounting for certain indirect buying, warehousing and
distribution costs in fiscal 2005.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois

March 27, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM�BDO SEIDMAN, LLP

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Sears Holdings Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of income, shareholders� equity and cash flows of Kmart Holding Corporation and
subsidiaries for the year ended January 26, 2005. We have also audited the schedule, listed in the accompanying index, for the year ended
January 26, 2005. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and schedule are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
and schedule. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements and schedule. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash
flows of Kmart Holding Corporation and subsidiaries for the year ended January 26, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Also, in our opinion, the schedule for the year ended January 26, 2005 presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

/s/ BDO SEIDMAN, LLP
BDO Seidman, LLP
Troy, Michigan

March 4, 2005
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
The Company�s management, with the participation of the Company�s principal executive officer and principal financial officer, conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the �Exchange Act�), as of the end of the period covered by this report (the �Evaluation
Date�). Based on this evaluation, the principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, the
Company�s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports
that it files or submits under the Exchange Act (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC�s
rules and forms and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to the Company�s management, including its principal executive and principal
financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

In addition, based on that evaluation, no changes in the Company�s internal control over financial reporting have occurred during the Company�s
last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company�s internal control over financial
reporting.

The Company is in the process of converting the information technology systems of the Sears Domestic and Kmart segments to a common
platform. The objectives of the systems conversion is to establish a common set of processes and systems for Sears Domestic and Kmart and to
improve the customer experience. The information technology conversion plan is expected to be completed over the next two years. For fiscal
2007, the Company�s information technology plan involves the conversions of a number of key financial systems, including the general ledger
and stock ledger, among others. Such conversions involve significant changes to internal processes and internal controls over financial reporting.
Although the conversion has proceeded to date without material adverse effects, the possibility exists that our conversion to new or common
systems could adversely affect the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures or our results of operations in future periods. We are reviewing
each system as it is being implemented and the controls affected by the implementation of the new systems, and are making appropriate changes
to affected internal controls as we implement the new systems. We believe that the controls as modified are appropriate and functioning
effectively.

See Management�s Annual Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and the Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting
Firm included in Item 8 of this Report, which reports are incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers
Information regarding directors and executive officers of Holdings is incorporated herein by reference to the information regarding Director
nominees and current Directors under �Item 1. Election of Directors� and the information under �Committees of the Board of Directors,� �Director
Independence� and �Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance� of the 2007 Proxy Statement and to Part I of this Report.

Holdings has adopted a Code of Conduct, which applies to all employees, including the Company�s principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer, and a Code of Conduct for its Board of Directors. Directors who are also officers of Holdings
are subject to both codes of conduct. Each code of conduct is a code of ethics as defined in Item 406 of SEC Regulation S-K. The codes of
conduct are available on the Corporate Governance section of the Company�s website at www.searsholdings.com. Any amendment to, or waiver
from, a provision of the codes of conduct will be posted to the above-referenced website.

There were no changes to the process by which stockholders may recommend nominees to the Board of Directors during the last fiscal year.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Information regarding executive and director compensation is incorporated by reference to the material under the captions �Compensation of
Directors,� �Executive Compensation,� �Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation� and �Compensation Committee Report� of the
2007 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated herein by reference to the material under
the heading �Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership� of the 2007 Proxy Statement.

See also �Equity Compensation Plan Information� in Item 5 of this Report for a discussion of securities authorized for issuance under equity
compensation plans.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated herein by reference to the material under the heading �Certain
Relationships and Transactions� and �Corporate Governance� of the 2007 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Information regarding principal accountant fees and services is incorporated herein by reference to the material under the heading �Independent
Auditor Fees� of the 2007 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1. Financial Statements
Financial statements filed as part of this Form 10-K are listed under Item 8.

2. Financial Statement Schedules
Financial statement schedules filed as part of this Form 10-K are listed under Item 8.

The separate financial statements and summarized financial information of majority-owned subsidiaries not consolidated and of 50% or less
owned persons have been omitted because they are not required pursuant to conditions set forth in Rules 3-09 and 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X.

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not required under the instructions contained in Regulation S-X because the information
called for is contained in the financial statements and notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
An �Exhibit Index� has been filed as part of this Report beginning on Page E-1 and is incorporated herein by this reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SEARS HOLDINGS CORPORATION

By: /s/    WILLIAM K. PHELAN        

Name: William K. Phelan
Title: Vice President and Controller

March 27, 2007
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities stated and on the dates indicated.

* AYLWIN B. LEWIS

Aylwin B. Lewis

Director, Chief Executive Officer and President
(principal executive officer)

March 27, 2007

* EDWARD S. LAMPERT

Edward S. Lampert

Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors March 27, 2007

* DONALD J. CARTY

Donald J. Carty

Director March 27, 2007

* WILLIAM C. CROWLEY

William C. Crowley

Director, Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial and Administrative Officer (principal
financial officer)

March 27, 2007

* STEVEN T. MNUCHIN

Steven T. Mnuchin

Director March 27, 2007

* RICHARD C. PERRY

Richard C. Perry

Director March 27, 2007

* ANN N. REESE

Ann N. Reese

Director March 27, 2007

* THOMAS J. TISCH

Thomas J. Tisch

Director March 27, 2007

* WILLIAM K. PHELAN

William K. Phelan

Vice President and Controller (principal
accounting officer)

March 27, 2007
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By /S/    WILLIAM K. PHELAN        

* William K. Phelan

Individually and as Attorney-in-fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX

    3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
March 24, 2005, filed on March 24, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).

    3.2 Restated By-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated March 24, 2005,
filed on March 24, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).

    4.1 Registrant hereby agrees to furnish to the Commission, upon request, the instruments defining the rights of holders of each issue
of long-term debt of Registrant and its consolidated subsidiaries.

  10.1 Registrant�s 2005 Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Program (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to Registrant�s Current
Report on Form 8-K/A (Amendment No. 1) dated September 29, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).**

  10.2 First Amendment to Registrant�s 2005 Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Program (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)
to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 16, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).**

  10.3 Registrant�s Senior Executive SHC 2005 Annual Incentive Plan Document (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to
Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated April 26, 2005, filed on April 29, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).**

  10.4 Sears, Roebuck and Co.�s Supplemental Retirement Income Plan, as amended and restated effective March 25, 1997 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.(ii)(11) to Sears, Roebuck and Co.�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 1,
2000 (File No. 1-416)).**

  10.5 Sears Holdings Corporation 2006 Stock Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Appendix C to Registrant�s Proxy
Statement dated March 15, 2006 (File No. 000-51217)).**

  10.6 Sears Holdings Corporation Umbrella Incentive Program (incorporated by reference to Appendix D to Registrant�s Proxy
Statement dated March 15, 2006 (File No. 000-51217)).**

  10.7 Form of Kmart Holding Corporation Long Term Incentive Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Kmart
Holding Corporation�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 29, 2003 (File No. 000-50278)).**

*10.8 Kmart Long Term Incentive Plan (2004).**

  10.9 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of March 24, 2005 between Sears Holdings Corporation and Aylwin B.
Lewis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated March 24, 2005, filed on
March 30, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).**

  10.10 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement between Kmart Holding Corporation and Aylwin B. Lewis (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registrant�s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on Form S-8, filed on March 24, 2005 (File No.
333-123544)).**

  10.11 Form of Restricted Share Agreement between Kmart Holding Corporation and Aylwin B. Lewis (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.5 to Registrant�s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on Form S-8, filed on March 24, 2005 (File No. 333-123544)).**

  10.12 Form of Restricted Share Agreement between Kmart Holding Corporation and Aylwin B. Lewis (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.6 to Registrant�s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on Form S-8, filed on March 24, 2005 (File No. 333-123544)).**

  10.13 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated September 7, 2005, between the Registrant and Alan J. Lacy (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 8, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).**
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  10.14 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2005, between Sears Holdings Corporation and Alan Lacy
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated March 24, 2005, filed on March 30,
2005 (File No. 000- 51217)).**

  10.15 Restricted Share Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2005, between Sears Holdings Corporation and Alan J. Lacy (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated March 24, 2005, filed on March 30, 2005 (File No.
000- 51217)).**

  10.16 Letter from Registrant to W. Bruce Johnson relating to employment dated February 3, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.16 to Registrant�s Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2006 (the �2005 10-K�)) (File No.
000-51217).**

  10.17 Kmart Management Corporation Restricted Stock Agreement with W. Bruce Johnson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4
to Kmart Holding Corporation�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the fiscal quarter ended October 29, 2003 (File No.
000-50278)).**

  10.18 Letter from Registrant to Craig T. Monaghan relating to employment dated July 26, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated July 26, 2006, filed on August 1, 2006 (File No. 000-51217)).**

*10.19 Letter from Registrant to Karen A. Austin relating to employment dated February 1, 2006.**

*10.20 Letter from Registrant to Maureen McGuire relating to employment dated September 28, 2005.**

  10.21 Form of Executive Severance/Non-Compete Agreement for Senior Executives of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(c) to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated April 26, 2005, filed on April 29, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).**

  10.22 Form of Executive Severance/Non-Compete Agreement for Senior Executives of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(d) to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated April 26, 2005, filed on April 29, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).**

  10.23 Form of Non-Compete/Change of Control Agreement for Executive Officers of Sears, Roebuck and Co. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10 to Sears, Roebuck and Co.�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 3, 1999 (File
No. 1-416)).**

  10.24 Form of Executive Non-Disclosure and Non-Solicitation of Employees Agreement and Form of Executive
Severance/Non-Compete Agreement for Executive Officers of Sears, Roebuck and Co. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.(ii)(26) to Sears, Roebuck and Co.�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2001 (File No.
1-416)).**

  10.25 Revised Form of Executive Severance/Non-Compete Agreement for Senior Executives of the Registrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 29, 2005 (File No.
000-51217)).**

  10.26 Revised Form of Executive Severance/Non-Compete Agreement for Senior Executives of the Registrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 29, 2005 (File No.
000-51217)).**

  10.27 Sears Holdings Corporation Director Compensation Program (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to Registrant�s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 29, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).**

  10.28 Letter of Credit Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2004 among Kmart Corporation, Bank of America, National Association and
Fleet National Bank as issuing banks (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Kmart Holding Corporation�s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q, for the fiscal quarter ended July 28, 2004 (File No. 000-50278)).
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  10.29 First Amendment to Letter of Credit Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2004 among Kmart Corporation, Bank of America,
National Association and Fleet National Bank as issuing banks (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Kmart Holding
Corporation�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the fiscal quarter ended October 27, 2004 (File No. 000-50278)).

  10.30 Second Amendment to Letter of Credit Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2004, among Kmart Corporation, Bank of America,
National Association and Fleet National Bank as issuing banks (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to the Kmart Holding
Corporation�s Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the fiscal year ended January 26, 2005 (File No. 000-50278)).

  10.31 Third Amendment to Letter of Credit Agreement, dated as of July 21, 2006, among Kmart Corporation, Sears, Roebuck and Co.,
and Bank of America, National Association as issuing bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant�s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 29, 2006 (File No. 000-51217)).

  10.32 Guarantee executed by Sears, Roebuck and Co. under the Indenture, dated as of May 15, 1995, between Sears Roebuck
Acceptance Corp. and JP Morgan Chase Bank (successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A.), as supplemented by the First
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 3, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(g) to Sears Roebuck Acceptance
Corp.�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 27, 2003 (File No. 1-4040)).

  10.33 Guarantee executed by Sears, Roebuck and Co. under the Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2002, between Sears Roebuck
Acceptance Corp. and BNY Midwest Trust Company, as supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
November 3, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(h) to Sears Roebuck Acceptance Corp.�s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 27, 2003 (File No. 1-4040)).

  10.34 Guarantee dated as of November 3, 2003 by Sears, Roebuck and Co. of the commercial paper master notes of Sears Roebuck
Acceptance Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Sears, Roebuck and Co.�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 3, 2004 (File No. 1-416)).

  10.35 Five-Year Credit Agreement, dated as of February 22, 2005 (the �Credit Agreement�), among Sears Holdings Corporation, Sears
Roebuck Acceptance Corp. and Kmart Corporation as Borrowers, the Initial Lenders named therein, Citicorp USA, Inc. and Bank
of America, N.A., as Syndication Agents, Barclays Bank PLC, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., HSBC Bank USA, Merrill Lynch
Bank USA, Morgan Stanley Bank, The Royal Bank of Scotland, PLC and Wachovia Bank National Association, the
Documentation Agents, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Banc of America Securities LLC, as joint
Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(a) to Sears Roebuck Acceptance Corp.�s current report on Form 8-K dated February 22, 2005, filed on February 28,
2005 (File No. 1-4040)).

  10.36 First Amendment, dated as of November 4, 2005, to the Credit Agreement, among the Registrant, Sears Roebuck Acceptance
Corp., Kmart Corporation, the Lenders party thereto, certain other parties, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative
agent for the Lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the 2005 10-K (File No. 000-51217)).

  10.37 Guarantee and Collateral Agreement dated March 24, 2005 by and among the Registrant, Sears, Roebuck and Co., and certain
other affiliates of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to Registrant�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).

  10.38 Purchase, Sale and Servicing Transfer Agreement, dated as of July 15, 2003, by and among Sears, Roebuck and Co., certain
subsidiaries of Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Citicorp (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sears, Roebuck and Co.�s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 15, 2003 (File No. 1-416)).
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  10.39 Amendment No. 1, dated as of November 3, 2003, to the Purchase, Sale and Servicing Transfer Agreement, by and among Sears,
Roebuck and Co., certain subsidiaries of Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Citicorp (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2(b) to Sears,
Roebuck and Co.�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 27, 2003 (File No. 1-416)).

  10.40 Amended and Restated Program Agreement, dated as of July 15, 2003, amended and restated as of November 3, 2003, by and
between Sears, Roebuck and Co., Sears Intellectual Property Management Company and Citibank (USA) N.A. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(a) to Sears, Roebuck and Co.�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 27,
2003 (File No. 1-416).

  10.41 Terms Sheet For Revision of Program Agreement Between Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Citibank USA, N.A., dated April 29,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to Registrant�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April
30, 2005 (File No. 000-51217)).

  10.42 Registrant�s 2006 Long-Term Incentive Program (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to the 2005 10-K) (File No.
000-51217).**

  10.43 Registrant�s 2006 Annual Incentive Plan Document (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to the 2005 10-K) (File No.
000-51217).**

*10.44 Form of Sears Holdings Corporation Restricted Stock Award Agreement.**

*10.45 Form of Sears Holdings Corporation Executive Long Term Incentive Plan Award Document.**

*21 Subsidiaries of Registrant.

*23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

*23.2 Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP.

*24 Power of Attorney of certain officers and directors of Registrant.

*31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*32. Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Filed herewith
** A management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report pursuant to Item 15(b) of

Form 10-K.
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